
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY 
COUNCIL MEETING 

PACKET 
 

Thursday, August 20, 2020 
 

6:00 p.m. 

CITY 01= 

WIMBERLEY 



   City of Wimberley 
   221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 20, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 

 
AGENDA 

 
In accordance with order of the Office of the Governor issued March 16, 2020, the City Council of 
the City of Wimberley will conduct a teleconference/video conference meeting in order to advance 
the public health goal of limiting face-to-face meetings (also called “social distancing”) to slow the 
spread of the Coronavirus (COVID-19).  
 
 The meeting will be held on Thursday, August 20, 2020, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
The public may participate in this meeting via the following toll-free numbers 888-475-4499 or 
877-853-5257 and/or using the Zoom meeting ID 865 6638 2940 and using the password 
847379.  
 
The public will be permitted to offer public comments and participate in any public hearing via 
teleconference or video conference, as provided by the agenda and as permitted by the presiding 
officer during the meeting.   
 
Anyone wishing to offer public comments, participate in any public hearing, or offer written 
questions or comments must notify City Secretary, Laura Calcote, at 
lcalcote@cityofwimberley.com, at least two hours before the meeting.  
  
A recording of the meeting will be made and will be available to the public in accordance with the 
Texas Public Information Act upon written request. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  August 20, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. CALL OF ROLL   City Secretary, Laura Calcote    
 
3. INVOCATION   Cypress Creek Church Pastor, Jose Abaroa 
   
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/SALUTE TO THE TEXAS FLAG 
 
5. CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS 

Citizens must sign-in with City Secretary, Laura Calcote, via email at  
lcalcote@cityofwimberley.com at least two (2) hours before the meeting to address City Council.  
Limit your comments to three (3) minutes. City Council will listen to the comments but cannot  
discuss or respond to the comments during the meeting. Inquiries about matters not listed on the  
agenda will either be directed to staff or placed on a future agenda for Council consideration.   

1

mailto:lcalcote@cityofwimberley.com
mailto:lcalcote@cityofwimberley.com


Comments from speakers should not be directed towards any specific member of City Council  
or City staff. Comments should not be accusatory, derogatory or threatening in nature. 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
 
6.1. Presentation regarding the preliminary renderings for the Oak Drive Project (Architect 

Neel Morton) 
 

6.2. Presentation regarding the initial designs for City’s wayfinding signage (Signcrafters)  
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

7.1. Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held August 6, 2020. 
 

7.2. Approval of Mayor Gina Fulkerson’s appointment of Noland Martin to the Parks and 
Recreation Board. 
 

7.3. Approval of Buck Baccus to the Economic Support and Development Committee. 
 

7.4. Approval of Matthew Buchanan to the Economic Support and Development Committee. 
 

7.5. Approval of Stephen Klepfer to the Economic Support and Development Committee. 
 

7.6. Approval of Chris Oddo to the Economic Support and Development Committee. 
 

7.7. Approval of Russell Whisler to the Economic Support and Development Committee. 
 
8. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

 
Updates regarding sales tax, City facilities, the COVID-19 virus and City projects (City 
Administrator Shawn Cox)  
 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
9.1. Hold a public hearing and consider approval regarding case ZA-20-002, an application to 

change the zoning from Commercial - Low Impact (C-1) to Commercial – High Impact 
(C-3) for a property located at 100 Oak Dr., Wimberley, Hays County, Texas; and 
providing for the following: delineation on zoning map; findings of fact; severability; 
effective date and proper notice and meeting. (Applicant Karen O’Neill) 
 

9.2. Hold a public hearing and consider approval regarding case CUP-20-004, an application 
for a Conditional Use Permit to allow for the operation of a bar/tavern on property zoned 
Commercial – High Impact (C-3) located at 100 Oak Dr., Wimberley, Hays County, 
Texas. (Applicant Karen O’Neill) 

 
 
 

 

2



9.3. Hold a public hearing and consider approval regarding an ordinance amending Chapter 
9 (Planning & Development Regulations) Article 9.03 (Zoning), Division 3, (District 
Regulations) Section 9.03.085 (Commercial-High Impact) of the City of Wimberley Code 
of Ordinances to add Flea Market/Market Day; and providing for the following: Findings 
of Fact, A Savings Clause, A Repealing Clause, A Severability Clause, and Effective 
Date, and Proper Notice and Meeting. 

 
10. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
10.1.Discuss and consider possible action to approve Amendment Number 1, for the Grant 

Administration Services Contract for the 2015 GLO Disaster Recovery Grant between 
the City of Wimberley and Langford Community Management Services, to add the 
contract number and Grant Administration fee. (Langford Community Management 
Services) 

 
10.2.Discuss and consider possible action regarding the status of the Central Wimberley 

Wastewater Project. (Project Manager Craig Fore) 
 

10.3.Discuss and consider possible action regarding the Fiscal Year 2021 Budget. (Mayor 
Gina Fulkerson and City Administrator Shawn Cox) 

 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, Subchapter D, the City Council 
may convene in a closed session. After the Executive Session, discussion on any of the 
following items, any final action or vote taken will be in public.  
 
Executive Session pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.071 (Consultation with 
Legal Counsel) and 551.074 (Personnel Matters) City Council will meet to deliberate the 
appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment duties, discipline or dismissal of a 
public officer or employee: City Administrator Shawn Cox. 
  

12. OPEN SESSION 
 
Discussion and possible action resulting from Executive Session. 
 

13. CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  
 
13.1. Announcements 

 
13.2. Future agenda items 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The City Council may retire into Executive Session at any time between the meeting’s 
opening and adjournment for the purpose of discussing any matters listed on the agenda as 
authorized by the Texas Government Code including, but not limited to, homeland security 
pursuant to Chapter 418.183 of the Texas Government Code; consultation with legal counsel 

3



pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code; discussion about real estate 
acquisition pursuant to Chapter 551.072 of the Texas Government Code; discussion of 
personnel matters pursuant to Chapter 551.074 of the Texas Government Code; 
deliberations about gifts and donations pursuant to Chapter 551.076 of the Texas 
Government Code; discussion of economic development pursuant to Chapter 551.087 of the 
Texas Government Code; action, if any, will be taken in open session. 

 
CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify the above Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board at Wimberley 
City Hall, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and to 
the City’s website, www.cityofwimberley.com, in compliance with Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code, on Monday, August 17, 2020, by 6:00 p.m., and remained posted for at 
least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

 
__________________________________________________ 

Laura J. Calcote, MPA, TRMC  
City Secretary 

 
The City of Wimberley is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications will be provided upon request. 
Please contact City Secretary Laura Calcote at (512) 847-0025 two business days in advance 
of the meeting for appropriate arrangements. 
 
 

 

4

~(]: .,~, 
. 4.J_ 8tAL O\' 

* ¢ 



  

 
 

AGENDA FORM 

 

 

In July, City Council approved moving forward with architectural plans for visitor parking, ADA-
compliant sidewalks, public restrooms and a visitor’s kiosk on Oak Drive adjacent to Wimberley 
Square.  Council engaged Office Of Architecture, an award-winning local architectural firm, to 
undertake the plan.  

Office of Architecture’s Neel Morton will present initial concepts, which will enable the City to 
determine next steps including any additional needs and permissions as well as costs of 
construction.  

 

Motion  ☐ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 0 

Current Estimate:                 $ 0 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $ 0

     

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Oak Drive Design Plan Presentation 

SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca Minnick, Place 1 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 13, 2020 

MEETING DATE:      August 20, 2020 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

REQUESTED ACTION  

5



  

 
 

AGENDA FORM 

 

 

In a community like Wimberley, with multiple tourist destinations and limited traffic throughways, 
wayfinding signage is essential. It is also an important element in managing traffic flow and overall 
safety. In coordination with the city’s Downtown Improvement Task Force, Signcrafters has 
developed several design concepts for these signs for Council’s review.  

Locating, constructing and installing signs will be a months-long process that will not commence 
until the city’s sewer system is completed. Designs are the first step in this initiative, which has 
been years in the making.  

 

Motion  ☐ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $  

Current Estimate:                 $  

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

     

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Wayfaring Signage Concepts 

SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca Minnick, Place 1 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 13, 2020 

MEETING DATE:      August 20, 2020 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

REQUESTED ACTION  

6



  

 
 

AGENDA FORM 

 

 
 
 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☐ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $  

Current Estimate:                 $  

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

    

 

Approval of Items 7.1 through 7.3.  

  

• July 16th Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
• July 23rd Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
• July 30th Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
• Kelly Shand’s Application 
• Clay Ewing’s Application 
• Anne Hollow’s Application 
• Josh Smith’s Application  

AGENDA ITEM: Consent Agenda 

SUBMITTED BY: Laura Calcote, City Secretary 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 10, 2020 

MEETING DATE: July 16, 2020 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

REQUESTED ACTION  

ATTACHMENT/S 

  

7



   City of Wimberley 
   221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 6, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 

 
MINUTES 

 
In accordance with order of the Office of the Governor issued March 16, 2020, the City Council of 
the City of Wimberley will conduct a teleconference/video conference meeting in order to advance 
the public health goal of limiting face-to-face meetings (also called “social distancing”) to slow the 
spread of the Coronavirus (COVID-19).  
 
 The meeting will be held on Thursday, August 6, 2020, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
The public may participate in this meeting via the following toll-free numbers 888-475-4499 or 
877-853-5257 and/or using the Zoom meeting ID 850 3364 2333 and using the password 
744530.  
 
The public will be permitted to offer public comments and participate in any public hearing via 
teleconference or video conference, as provided by the agenda and as permitted by the presiding 
officer during the meeting.   
 
Anyone wishing to offer public comments, participate in any public hearing, or offer written 
questions or comments must notify City Secretary, Laura Calcote, at 
lcalcote@cityofwimberley.com, at least two hours before the meeting.  
  
A recording of the meeting will be made and will be available to the public in accordance with the 
Texas Public Information Act upon written request. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CALL TO ORDER   
Mayor, Gina Fulkerson, called the meeting to order on August 6, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
CALL OF ROLL    
Council Members Present: Gina Fulkerson Mayor (via teleconference)   

Rebecca Minnick Place One (via teleconference)   
Teresa Shell  Place Two (via teleconference)   
Christine Byrne Place Three (via teleconference)   
Jim Chiles  Place Four (via teleconference)   
Bo Bowman  Place Five (via teleconference)  

  
City Staff Present:  Shawn Cox  City Administrator (via teleconference)   

Laura Calcote City Secretary (via teleconference)   
Sarah Griffin  City Attorney (via teleconference) 

8

mailto:lcalcote@cityofwimberley.com


Terri Provost  Community Center Director (via teleconference)  
John Provost Public Works Superintendent (via 

teleconference)  
Nathan Glaiser Parks Natural Resource & Maintenance 

Manager (via teleconference)  
Richard Shaver Parks Operations & Programs Manager (via 

teleconference) 
 
INVOCATION    
Wimberley United Methodist Church Reverend, Wes Cain, gave the invocation. 
   
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/SALUTE TO THE TEXAS FLAG 
Mayor, Gina Fulkerson, led the pledges to the United States and Texas flags. 
 
CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no citizen’s comments. 
 
PRESENTATION 
Presentation regarding the 2020 Census. (U.S. Census Bureau Liaison Viviana Kfir) 
Census Partnership Specialist, Viviana Kfir, presented information regarding the 2020 census 
response figures within Hays County, including Wimberley, which had a lower response 
percentage compared to other areas of the County.  The COVID-19 pandemic had caused 
issues with the response rate in general, and there had been a lower response rate among 
minority populations.  Ms. Kfir asked for the City’s assistance in reaching out to the Wimberley 
citizenry to encourage the populace to complete the 2020 census before the September 30th 
deadline. 
Linda Calvert, President of the League of Women Voters – Hays County, added the League was 
planning to have a pop-up trunk in the Wimberley area with voter registration and census 
information in the coming weeks. 

  
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented, was made by Council Member 
Rebecca Minnick.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Christine Byrne.  Motion 
carried unanimously (5-0). 
7.1. Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held July 16, 2020. 

 
7.2. Approval of minutes from the Special City Council Meeting held July 23, 2020. 

 
7.3. Approval of minutes from the Special City Council Meeting held July 30, 2020. 

 
7.4. Approval of Bex Hale’s resignation from the Parks and Recreation Board. 

 
7.5. Approval of Place Three Council Member Christine Byrne’s appointment of Kelley Shand to 

the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 

7.6. Approval of Clay Ewing to the Economic Support and Development Committee. 
 

7.7. Approval of Anne Hollows to the Economic Support and Development Committee. 

9



 
7.8. Approval of Josh Smith to the Economic Support and Development Committee. 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
City Administrator, Shawn Cox, provided an update pertaining to City Hall still being closed to 
the public during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, hand sanitizing stations arriving and 
swimming reservations at Blue Hole Regional Park being booked through the end of August.  
Mr. Cox also noted the recently completed road projects in the City and potential projects for the 
next fiscal year. 
 
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
9.1. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the status of the Central Wimberley 

Wastewater Project. (Project Manager Craig Fore) 
Project Manager, Craig Fore, provided an overview of the status of the Central Wimberley 
Wastewater Project, which included construction updates, coordination with state agencies, 
communication with system users and the project’s schedule.   
No action was taken on this item. 
 

9.2. Discuss and consider possible action to approve Ordinance No. 2020-21, extending 
Ordinance 2020-16 renewing a Declaration of Local Disaster and Public Health Emergency; 
providing a savings clause; providing a severability clause; providing an effective date. 
(Mayor Gina Fulkerson) 
Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2020-21, extending Ordinance 2020-16 renewing a 
Declaration of Local Disaster and Public Health Emergency; providing a savings 
clause; providing a severability clause; providing an effective date, was made by 
Council Member Christine Byrne.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Teresa 
Shell.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
9.3. Discuss and consider possible action to approve Resolution No. 05-2020, authorizing an 

amendment to the 2019/2020 Operating Budget (Budget Amendment No. 2), providing for 
the transfer of funds in the General Fund to the Wastewater Collection and Treatment Plant 
Fund; and providing an effective date. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
City Administrator, Shawn Cox, presented the budget amendment, which would transfer 
funds in the General Fund to the Wastewater Collection and Treatment Plant Fund to assist 
in paying an invoice from Capital Excavation.  The funds would be reimbursed by bond 
proceeds once funding was released by the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB).  
There was discussion among Mr. Cox and Council pertaining to the fiscal forecast provided 
and the reimbursement process by the TWDB. 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 05-2020, authorizing an amendment to the 
2019/2020 Operating Budget (Budget Amendment No. 2), providing for the transfer of 
funds in the General Fund to the Wastewater Collection and Treatment Plant Fund; 
and providing an effective date, was made by Council Member Christine Byrne.  
Motion was seconded by Council Member Jim Chiles.  Motion carried unanimously 
(5-0). 

 
9.4. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the Fiscal Year 2021 Budget. (Mayor Gina 

Fulkerson and City Administrator Shawn Cox) 

10



The Parks Department presented supplemental items for the Fiscal Year 2021 Budget, 
including $5,000 for leak detection and repair work at Blue Hole Regional Park, $18,000 for 
a parking lot at Old Baldy, $7,500 to the General Fund for signage at the Patsy Glenn 
Refuge and $20,000-25,000 for a playground at the Martha Knies Park.  There was 
discussion among Council and staff regarding these requested supplemental items for the 
budget.  A Special City Council Meeting would be held on Thursday, August 27th, at 6:00 
p.m., to further discuss these items and the overall FY 2021 Budget. 
No action was taken on this item. 

 
9.5. Discussion and possible action regarding calling a Special City Council Meeting for 

September 2, 2020 – City Administrator. (Mayor Gina Fulkerson) 
There was discussion to schedule another Special City Council Meeting on Wednesday, 
September 2nd, at 2:00 p.m. 
No action was taken on this item. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
City Council adjourned into Executive Session at 7:21 p.m., in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551, Subchapter D, for the following purposes: 

 
Section 551.071 (Consultation with Legal Counsel) and 551.074 (Personnel Matters) City 
Council will meet to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment duties, 
discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee: City Administrator Shawn Cox.  

 
OPEN SESSION 
Regular Session reconvened at 8:04 p.m. 
No action was taken. 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  
12.1. Announcements – None. 

 
12.2. Future agenda items – Council Member, Rebecca Minnick, stated there would be a 

presentation by Neel Morton Architects regarding the Oak Drive improvements at the next 
Regular City Council Meeting. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:04 p.m. was made by Council Member Christine 
Byrne.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Bo Bowman.  Motion carried 
unanimously (5-0). 
 
RECORDED BY:    
    
_______________________________    
Laura J. Calcote, City Secretary     

APPROVED BY:   
  

________________________________   
Gina V. Fulkerson, Mayor 

  

11



Application for Appointment to City Board/Commission/Committee 

Name of Board/Commission/Committee:  __________________________________________________ 

Nominated By:   

Name: Phone: E-mail:  

Physical Address:  

Mailing Address 
(If different than physical address): 

Employer: Position/Occupation: 

Business Number: Fax:  

I reside: ( ) Inside Wimberley’s City Limits ( ) Wimberley’s ETJ ( ) Outside ETJ  

I am a registered voter in: ( ) City of Wimberley ( ) Hays County ( ) Not Registered 

Do you or your employer have any business or other dealings with the City of Wimberley, which might present 
a conflict of interest? ( ) Yes ( ) No 
If “Yes” please explain: _________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Are you committed to devote the necessary amount of time to serve on this Board/Commission/Committee 
and to attend all regularly scheduled meetings? ( ) Yes ( ) No 

Would you consider serving on a different Board/Commission/Committee?  (     ) Yes (     ) No 

Signature: _   Date: __________ 

Note: Your application will be kept on file for 12 months and maintained under the Texas Open Records Act as public information. It is recommended that you submit a 
letter of interest and a brief resume with your application. Please submit any information to the City Secretary, City of Wimberley, 221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberley, Texas 
78676. 

Please describe any qualifications, expertise, credentials or special interests that relate to your possible appointment. 
If you are not responding to a specific advertisement, please indicate the Board/Commission/Committee that you 
would prefer to serve on. Attach a separate sheet, if necessary. 

12



13

Application for Appointment to City Board/Commission/Committee 
Name of Board/Commission/Committee: Economic Support & Development Committee (ESDC) 

Nominated By: Rebecca Minnick, Place 1 

N Buck Baccus Ph ame:____ on 

Physical Address. 

Mailing Address 
(If different than physical address): ________________________ _ 

E I 
Baccus Capital Investments mp oyer: _______________ Position/Occupation: __________ _ 

Business Number: ______________ Fax: ______________ _ 

I reside: 0 Inside Wimberley's City Limits O Wimberley's ET J 

I am a registered voter in: 0 City of Wimberley O Hays County 

0 Outside ET J 

0 Not Registered 

Do you or your employer hav, al business or other dealings with the City of Wimberley, which might present 
a conflict of interest? ✓ Yes O No 
If "Yes" please explain: _____________________________ _ 

own The Lumberyard 

Are you committed to devote the necessary amount of time to serve on this Board/Commission/Committee 
and to attend all regularly scheduled meetings? 0 Yes O No 

Would you consider serving on a different Board/Commission/Committee? 0 Yes 0 No 

Please describe any qualifications, expertise, credentials or special interests that relate to your possible appointment. 
If you are not responding to a specific advertisement, please indicate the Board/Commission/Committee that you 
would prefer to serve on. Attach a separate sheet, if necessary. 

35 yr track record in the acquisition, development and ownership of commercial real properties. 
throughout the Southwest. Business owner since 1992. Founder/President of the Lonestar Soccer 
Club, one of the largest youth sports organizations in the US employing 100+ and serving over 8,000 
boys and girls throughout Central Texas. Sat on numerous committees in Wimberley (HOT, 
Transportation. Downtown Task Force) and the Tucson Downtown All iance which evolved into Rio 
Nuevo multi-purpose district. Property owner in several downtown markets. 

Signature: ____________________ _ Date: 8.07.2020 

Note: Your application will be kept on file for 12 months and maintained under the Texas Open Records Act as public information. It is recommendedthatyousubmita letterofinterestandabriefresumewithyourapplication.PleasesubmitanyinformationtotheCitySecretary, City of Wimberley, 221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberley, Texas 78676. 



14

Application for Appointment to City Board/Commission/Committee 
Economic Support & Development Committee (ESDC) 

Name of Board/Commission/Committee: ------------------------
Rebecca Minnick, Place 1 

Nominated By: ______________________ _ 

Matthew Buchanan 
Name: ___ _ 

Mailing Address 
(If different than physical address): ________________________ _ 

Self/ The Leaning Pear Restaurant Owner 
Employer: ________________ Position/Occupation: ___________ _ 

512-847-7327 
Business Number: _______________ Fax: _______________ _ 

I reside: 0 Inside Wimberley's City Limits (D Wimberley's ETJ ~ V ~ Outside ET J 

(D Not Registered I am a registered voter in: 0 City of Wimberley ~II'~ Hays County 

Do you or your employer hav, anf business or other dealings with the City of Wimberley, which might present 
a conflict of interest? Yes (lvt No 
If "Yes" please explain: ______________________________ _ 

Are you committed to devote the necessary amount of time to serve on this Board/Commission/Committee 
and to attend all regularly scheduled meetings? ~Vt Yes O No 

Would you consider serving on a different Board/Commission/Committee? 0 Yes ~II'~ No 

Please describe any qualifications, expertise, credentials or special interests that relate to your possible appointment. 
If you are not responding to a specific advertisement, please indicate the Board/Commission/Committee that you 
would prefer to serve on. Attach a separate sheet, if necessary. 
Prevously served on the Downtown Task Force Committee and have almost 13 years of owning/ 
operating a business here in Wimberley. 

~1:$-/, 

Signature: / ~~ , 
8/2/20 

Date: -------------

Note: Your application will be kept on file for 12 months and maintained under the Texas Open Records Act as public information. It is recommendedthatyousubmita 
letter of interest and a briefresumewithyourapplication. PleasesubmitanyinformationtotheCitySecretary, City of Wimberley, 221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberley, Texas 
78676. 



15

Application for Appointment to City Board/Commission/Committee 

Name of Board/Commission/Committee: Economic Support & Development Committee (ESDC) 

Nominated By: Rebecca Minnick, Place 1 

Name:Stephen Klepfer Phone 

Physical Address 

Mailing Address 
(If different than physical address): 

E I Self P .1. 10 1. Owner mp oyer: _______________ os110n ccupa 10n: __________ _ 

Business Number:512-842-3044 Fax:512-847-0081 

I reside: 0 Inside Wimberley's City Limits 0 Wimberley's ET J 

I am a registered voter in: @ City of Wimberley @ Hays County 

0 Outside ET J 

0 Not Registered 

Do you or your employer hav, al business or other dealings with the City of Wimberley, which might present 
a conflict of interest? Yes 0 No 
If "Yes" please explain: ____________________________ _ 

Are you committed to devote the necessary amount of time to serve on this Board/Commission/Committee 
and to attend all regularly scheduled meetings? 0 Yes O No 

Would you consider serving on a different Board/Commission/Committee? 0 Yes O No 

Please describe any qualifications, expertise, credentials or special interests that relate to your possible appointment. 
If you are not responding to a specific advertisement, please indicate the Board/Commission/Committee that you 
would prefer to serve on. Attach a separate sheet, if necessary. 

Former Mayor, Council member, PZ Commissioner, Comprehensive Plan Review Committee, 
Chamber of Commererce Treasurer, Ordinance Review Committee, Friends of Blue Hole Board of 
Do rectors 

Date: _~_._r_}--+-1.----a.t) __ _ 

Note: Your application wlll be kept on file for 12 months and maintained under the Texas Open Records Act as public: lnfonnatlon. It Is rec:ommendedthatyousubmlta 
letter of Interest and a brief mumewlth yourappllcatlon. Please submltany lnfonnatlon to the City Secretary, City of Wimberley, 221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberley, Texas 
78676. 



16

Application for Appointment to City Board/Commission/Committee 

Name of Board/Commission/Committee: Economic Support & Development Committee (ESDC) 

Nominated By: Rebecca Minnick, Place 1 

Name: Chris Oddo E-mail: 

Mailing Address 
(If different than physical address): _______________________ _ 

Employer: tower commercial broker Position/Occupation: __________ _ 

Business Number: 512-73G-5933 Fax: --------------- ----------------
1 reside: 0 Inside Wimberley's City Limits O Wimberley's ET J 0 Outside ET J 

0 Not Registered I am a registered voter in: 0 City of Wimberley @ Hays County 

Do you or your employer hav, al business or other dealings w~h the City of Wimberley, which might present 
a conflict of interest? Yes 0 No 
If "Yes" please explain:---------------------------------

Are you committed to devote the necessary amount of time to serve on this Board/Commission/Committee 
and to attend all regularly scheduled meetings? 0 Yes O No 

Would you consider serving on a different Board/Commission/Committee? 0 Yes @ No 

Please describe any qualifications, expertise, credentials or special interests that relate to your possible appointment. 
If you are not responding to a specific advertisement, please indicate the Board/Commission/Committee that you 
would prefer to serve on. Attach a separate sheet, if necessary. 
I have owned commercial and residential real estate in "downtown" Wimberley for over 9 years and want 
the city to grow in a positive, responsible, measured way and have ideas on how that should be achieved. 

. .chnt/t)a@ s IQ natU re .chris j oddo (Aug 5, 2020 15:31 CDTI Date: Aug 5, 2020 

Note: Your application will be kept on file for 12 months and maintained under the Texas Open Records Act as public infonnation. It is recommendedthatyousubmita 
letter of interest and a brief resume with your application. Please submit any information to the City Secretary, City of Wimberley, 221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberley, Texas 
78676. 



17

Application for Appointment to City Board/Commission/Committee 

Name of Board/Commission/Committee: Economic Development Committee 

Nominated By: Rebecca Minnick, Place 1 

Mailing Address 
(If different than physical address): _______________________ _ 

E I Mustad Fishing P ·t· 10 t· Management mp eyer: ________________ osII0n ccupa I0n: __________ _ 

Business Number:_7_86_8_6_3_9_9_1_9 _________ Fax: _____________ _ 

I reside: 0 Inside Wimberley's City Limits O Wimberley's ET J 

I am a registered voter in: 0 City of Wimberley Q Hays County 

0 Outside ET J 

Q Not Registered 

Do you or your employer hav, al business or other dealings w~h the City of Wimberley, which might present 
a conflict of interest? Yes 0 No 
If "Yes" please explain: ____________________________ _ 

Are you committed to devote the necessary amount of time to serve on this Board/Commission/Committee 
and to attend all regularly scheduled meetings? 0 Yes Q No 

Would you consider serving on a different Board/Commission/Committee? 0 Yes O No 

Please describe any qualifications, expertise, credentials or special interests that relate to your possible appointment. 
If you are not responding to a specific advertisement, please indicate the Board/Commission/Committee that you 
would prefer to serve on. Attach a separate sheet, if necessary. 

My wife and I moved back to Wimberley to reside and raise our family here. 
Community and our small town are very important to us and giving back and seeing it prosper is one 
of our top values as a family and myself as an individual. 
I have a background in global business, engineering, and operations working for multinational 
companies to startups. I have also started and currently run a beef and cattle business, a full working 
ranch, and several real estate investments both commercial and residential rental. 

Digitally signed by Russell Whisler 
DN: cn=Russell Whisler, o=Kontiki LLC, ou, email=Russell_whisler@yahoo.com, c=US 

Sig natU re: Date: 2020.08.12 20:33:08 -05'00' Date: 081220 

Note: Your application will be kept on file for 12 months and maintained under the Texas Open Records Act as public information. It is recommendedthatyousubmita 
letter of interest and a brief resume with your application. Please submit any information to the City Secretary, City of Wimberf ey, 221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberfey, Texas 
78676. 



  

 
 

REPORT 

 

 
Hold a public hearing and consider approval regarding case ZA-20-002, an application to change the 
zoning from Commercial - Low Impact (C-1) to Commercial – High Impact (C-3) for a property 
located at 100 Oak Dr., Wimberley, Hays County, Texas 
 
 

  
Property Description 
Applicant(s): Karen O’Neil 
Property Address: 100 Oak Dr., Wimberley TX 
Property Owner: Phillip M & Mary L Van Ostrand 
Legal Description: 0.3489 Acres Out of the ABS 461 Amasa Turner Survey 
Property Size: 0.3489 Acres  
Existing Use of Property: Commercial (Retail) 
Existing Zoning: Commercial – Low Impact (C-1) 
Proposed Use of 
Property: Commercial (Retail & Bar/Tavern) 

Request: Rezone from C-1 to C-3 
Planning Area: III 
Overlay District: City Center 

 
Surrounding Property: 
Frontage: Oak Dr (at corner of Oak Dr. & Wimberley Sq.) 

Surrounding Zoning 
& Land Use 

 Current Zoning: Existing Land Use: 
North of Property C1 & C2 Commercial 
South of Property C1 Commercial (Inn) 
East of Property C1 Commercial 
West of Property C1 Commercial 

 
 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property at 100 Oak Dr. from Commercial – Low Impact 

AGENDA ITEM: ZA-20-002 – Rezone from C1 to C3 – 100 Oak 
Dr. 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 17, 2020 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2020 

ITEM  

REQUEST  

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

18



(C-1) to Commercial – High Impact (C-3).  The purpose for the application is based on the applicants 
request to operate a bar/tavern on the property.  The current C-1 zoning does not allow for this use.  
C-3 zoning does allow for the operation of a bar/tavern, with the approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP). 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission considered this application at their August 13, 2020 meeting.  
There was discussion on the ability to rezone the property to C-3.  The property is 0.3489 acres.  
The minimum lot size for C-3 is 20,000 Square Feet or 0.4591 acres.  While the property’s lot size is 
smaller than the minimum standard established for the C-3 zone, the property is also located in the 
City Center Overlay District, which per the code does not have a minimum lot size standard. 
 
Sec. 9.03.085     Commercial - High Impact; C-3 

d) Development regulations. 
1. Minimum lot size: 20,000 square feet. 

 
Sec. 9.03.222     City Center Overlay District; CC 

g) Site development standards. 
1. Minimum lot size: None. 

 
The Commission voted 5-1to recommend Council approve the requested zoning change contingent 
on the applicant receiving authority (either through a variance or other means) which would allow 
the property to be rezoned to C-3.  As the property is located in the City Center Overlay District, 
which does not have a minimum lot size, the property meets the minimum standards to be rezoned 
to C-3.  
     

 

 
Surrounding Neighbor Notification Letters (200’): July 27, 2020 
Published Legal Notice (Wimberley View): July 16, 2020 
Zoning Application Sign Placed: July 6, 2020 

 
  

 
At the time of positing, no comments for or against have been received. 
 
 
 

• ZA-20-002 – Application 
• ZA-20-002 – Legal Posting 
• ZA-20-002 – Notification Letter w/Map 
• ZA-20-002 – Sign Posting Notice 
• Map of City Center Overlay District 
• Ordinance No. 2020-17 

LEGAL NOTICE 

  

COMMENTS 

  

ATTACHMENT/S 

  

19



20

Expanded (Commercial) 

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

APPLICATION DA TE: ~ k' -z_c:> 

TENTATIVE P&Z HEARING: '=t"/clf-i;, TENTATIVE COUNCIL HEARING: ------c.~ ....a.,{1'--~ -f u ___ _ 

cnY INITIATED= □ YEs - ~ No PLANNING AREA= V zoNING REQUESTED= ----'c=-----3 __ _ 

ZONINGFEES: $7'5() DATE PAID: RECEIVED BY: ----- --------

,, . 

APPLICATION FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING 
NON-RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENTS, MOBILE HOME DEVELOPMENTS . 

. , , I • 

' .. i .· . • .. . : '1 . I . . 1 • , ~ ,. ... " "·· 11 • : !· 

OWNER, AGENT AND.PROJECl DATA 

STREET ADDRESS OF HAYS COUNTY CENTRAL 
PROPERTY TO ( ~m) APPRAISAL DISTRICT 
BE ZONED: l 00 Oa.k..I:>r 1 ~Ct S Wimberley, Texas PROPERTY ID#: R \'6 3C{L ** 
* New street addresses can be obtained by calling (512) 393-2160 
** This number may be obtained this from your pr,operty tax statement or HCAD's website. 

' &-•· 

PLEASE PROVIDE DIRECTIONS TO YOUR PROPERTY: 

NOTE: Please clearly mark your property so it is easily identifiable. 

1. OWNER'S NAME: fu, l ti-- M_cu'y Vf%ftil;moME PHONE: (5 I~ <g' '-f ~- J 3 g 1 
~r-~~,J ;' BUSINESS PHONE: (51~ ~41- a\\ 3 
V _. \ ' ·vvH\;.\ FAX: ( . ) .. 

. · E-MAIL: °'\'"'\_ i _Ct.(\_ O_Sf ____ ~---@--~-,c..\o- u.&:---:Ca\-
OWNER'S CURRENT MAILING ' -r-' 

ADDRESS I~ o ©p_L~ CITY vJ i. Mbe/Le..{ STATE-,-~ zir?i;fo1"' 
EMAIL: 1'"~r\OS-\,~ \UouA. • C:.OM• \ 

2. AGENT'S NAME: KctrU\ a' N~ll AGENT'S PHONE: (SI~ ~la l; 1 so] 
fi) FAX: ( ) 

AGENT'S FIRM NAME~')f,e af J'M"'-o(_;".:£, E-MAIL: f4"S±wf pc..r &.d',¢.-1Jf-Xl(2,,~) 

AGENT'S FIRM MAILING 
ADDRESS: q I I th )I,,.. Me~ CITY W i rnber lo{ sTATE-1;( 
EMAIL: -to..!ai-e.~f»r~·,4::e w+ k..@~t . ~ 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING - PAGE 1 of 4 



21

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

'-"» ◄ 01r · t.s· ,I 0 
3. TOTAL AREA TO BE ZONED: ACRES ___ (ORr -SQ.FT._r"J---=0::;.,..;;;;;_ __ TOTAL NO. of TRACTS: ___ _ 

4. PLANNING AREA(s) :·Lfou 5. REauEsTED zoN1NG cLAss1F1cAT10N: · C 3 
PRoPosED usE(s): w ·\ t\e.. ~ t>e.e.c so.l~s 
6. EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION(S) AND USES (if applicable): __ e,.;;;.__.._l __________ _ 

7. LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Street Address: \ 0() Oa.'c.. ~ · ( ( 01\~~ Subdivision: _ _____,,~ ___ - -----=-\0..,..___\....;,...M. __ - _S=-'l----c ___ _ 

Block(s) ____________ Lot(s ). ______________ _ 

Plat Book: -1\Rs '-½le I Page Number: f\~1Ult'lt.{ ~"°( 
8. DEED RECORDS: (REFERENCE OF DEED CONVEYING PROPERTY TO THE PRESENT OWNER): 

' ' ; . 
VOLlJME;. ________ PAGE: ________ ·· oF COUNTY PLAT RECORDS 

9. OTHER PROVISIONS 

A. IS PROPERTY IN AN OVERLAY DISTRICT? YES ___ N? ~ UNKNOWN __ _ 

TYPE OF OVERLAY ZONE(S) (if applicable) _____________________ _ 

B. FLOOD PLAIN (What, if any, flood zone does your property occupy?): __ \\,J....::,C___;:_~--=::...,__---------

C. ELECTRiC UTILITY PROVID~R : - " ~......::1'i:1111C....-:::Q_,::1111o1....-_· _ ·_- .. _: _;_._·~,,_.~----------------

.-~J\T~~ u~1~1TY PR~v1b
1
~R:. . _ ~•• ~~~-¾£ ~•~~~ 

. WASTEWATER UTILITt PRO\/IDER:__._· ...... r-. ~---~~~~ ......... ~t...=....\.;;._~-=---"'------::aa.=1------------

\ 
HA'(S COUNT)" SEPTIC PERMIT NUMBER (if applicable): ________________ _ 

Related C~ses., _If Applicable 

□ .. Zoning ... .. •,·· 
D Building Permit 
D Subdivision 
O · Sign Permit .; 
D Engineered construction 

• , I I • 

F,jle_ No. ______ _ 
File No. -------
File No. -------
File No. , -------
File No. -------

APPLICATION FOR ZONING - PAGE 2 of 4 



22

SITE INSPECTION AUTHORIZATION 

Applicant/owner, or Applicant's authorized agent, hereby authorizes the City of Wimberley 
representatives to visit and inspect the property for which this application is being submitted. 

Date: &::' (;\."' JC:>,o 

WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: ------- AGENT SIGNATURE --------------

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF EXISTING 
Subdivision Plat Notes, Deed Restrictions Restrictive Covenants 

and/or Zoning Conditional Use Permits 

I, the Applicant herein, have checked the subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive 

covenants and/or zoning conditional use permits prohibiting certain uses and/or requiring certain 

development restrictions (for example, height, access, screening) on the property now being zoned 

on my behalf and located at: /DO o~Br. , and more particularly 

known as Lot ____ , Block _____ of the ___________ Subdivision. 

If a conflict should result with the request I am submitting to the City of Wimberley due to . 
subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional use permits it 

will be my responsibility to resolve it. I also acknowledge that I understand the implications of use 

and/or development restrictions that are a result of subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive 

covenants and/or zoning conditional use permits. 

I understand that if requested, I must provide copies of any and all subdivision plat notes, deed 

restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional use permit information, which may apply 
f 

to this property. 

Date: {, - /,:f;L - 2PJ1[;> APPLICANT SIGNATURE ~ u,,. Q¼ fl) 
WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: AGENT SIGNATURE ------- --------------

APPLICATION FOR ZONING - PAGE 3 of 4 



23

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST 

TO ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE COMPLIED WITH THE ZONING APPLICATION 
REQUIREMENTS, REVIEW THE FOLLOWING LIST. FAILURE TO COMPLETE THE 
NECESSARJ STE~PS CAN CA.USE A DELAY IN PROCESSING YOUR APPLICATION. 

D Complete "Application For Zoning" 

D Provide plat map of property to be zoned which includes all properties within 200 feet of 
any portion of Applicant's property; and which clearly indicates streets in surrounding 
area. 

D Provide plat map of the specific property to be zoned. 

D Provide names and addresses of property owners within 200 feet of any portion of 
Applicant's property. 

D Provide a legal description of the property to be zoned. 

D Sign/date Submittal Verification form. 

D Sign/date Site Inspection Authorization form. 

D Sign/date Acknowledgement Form. 

D Pay Zoning Fee ( this fee is based on the cost of services incurred by the City of 
Wimberley in reviewing, processing and recording the zoning request). 

D Applicant agrees to attend a pr,;f lonifg, corlf eren~prior to acceptance of Application. 

D Applicant agrees to attend Planning & Zoning Commission hearings scheduled for 
Applicant's proposed zoning. 

D Applicant agrees to attend City Council hearing scheduled for Applicant's proposed 
zoning or waives his/her rights of appearance (see below). 

SUBMITTAL VERIFICATION AND/OR WAIVER OF APPEARANCE 

My signature attests to the fact that the attached application package is complete and accurate 
to the best of my knowledge. I understand that City review of this Application is dependent 
upon the accuracy of the information provided and that any inaccurate or inadequate 
information provided by me, my firm, or agent, may delay the review of the Application. 

( ) I hereby waive my right to appear before the City of Wimberley City Council at the public hearing 
to be held c~mcerning th,e zoning of my above-referenced property. I ~mqerstanq thpt my failure 
to appear aflows the Council to consider my zoning request; howeve'r, if questions cfre raised 

that cannot be answered, the matter will be continued. J{a ! ···: .. ·. 
Date: (, • /;J..' ;).J).:>o APPLICANT SIGNATURE -~./~ 

f· ( 

WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date: ------

APPLICATION FOR ZONING - PAGE 4 of 4 



 
Page 8 — THE WIMBERLEY VIEW, WIMBERLEY, TX., THURSDAY, JULY 16, 2020  

IMMEDIATE HIRE

For male and female 
caregivers in 

surrounding loca- 
tions. Please contact 

hiring manager. 

830.625.0444.

MOVING SALE

Furniture, clothes, 
tools, etc.

Saturday July 18th 
8-4

79 Saddlerock Ridge
Woodcreek North

Wimberley

NICE WASHERS 

/dryers/stoves
$250/up. Refrigera- 
tors $200/up.  Guar- 

anteed Appliances, 

Sales / Service. 

512-392-0373.

WOODCREEK LOT 

for Sale $28,000 + 
closing cost

Sec 20 Lot 329
GEO #90611208
Geographic ID  

R52090
Address:

2 Maplewood Circle
Wimberly, Texas 

78676
(203) 948-4444

EYE SORES 

TREE AND 

HAULING 

SERVICE.

ALL TYPES OF 

CLEANUP

We will remove all 
your eye sores! Land- 
scaping fire preven- 
tion & flood preven- 
tion. Lot clearing, 

cleanup & removal. 
Tree trimming & cut- 

ting. Hauling of 
brush, 

trash & junk. Home 
leveling & Bobcat 

work. Land clearing & 
dozer services.  We 

move and level 
portable buildings.
Call for an estimate 
today. 512-312-1227 

or 512-689-3415

CALL JOHN 

WILTON 

for all your home 
renovations, repairs 

and handyman 
needs.

512-618-1089
Down to Earth 

Services

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

Notice is given that original Letters Testa- 
mentary for the Estate of Nancy J. Coloton,  
Deceased were issued on July 1, 2020 in 
Cause No. 20-0167-P pending in the 
County Court at Law of Hays County, 
Texas, to Lydia Wright Bradford, 
Independent Executor. 

All persons having claims against this 
Estate which is currently being adminis- 
tered are required to present them to the 
undersigned within the time and in the 
manner prescribed by law.

Estate of Nancy J. Coloton, Deceased
c/o BILL CLINE,JR.
Bill Cline Law Office, P.C.
P.O. Box 2502, 120 Joe Wimberley Blvd., 
Suite 103 Wimberley, Texas 78676

BILL CLINE, JR.
Attorney for Independent Executor
State Bar No.: 04397000

PUBLIC NOTICE

By order of the Hays County Commission- 

ers Court, notice is hereby given that on 

Tuesday, July 21, 2020 at 9 a.m. in the 

Hays County Courthouse, 111 E. San Anto- 

nio Street, the Hays County Commission- 

ers Court will hold a public hearing to con- 
sider:

REDUCING THE CURRENT 60 MPH 

SPEED LIMIT TO 45 MPH ON THE 

WEST END OF WINTERS MILL PARK- 

WAY FOR THE NEW WISD BLUE HOLE 

PRIMARY SCHOOL.

LEGAL NOTICE

Application has been made 

with the Texas Alcoholic Bever- 

age Commission for a 

Wine/Beer Retailers Permit for 

on and off premise by Karen 

O’Neill dba Taste of Paradise, 

to be located at 100 Oak Dr. 

Concession, Wimberley, Hays 

County Texas. Taste of Par- 

adise is a sole proprietorship 

owned solely by Karen O’Neill.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

(Request for Zoning)

Notice is hereby given that the Planning & 

Zoning Commission of the City of Wimber- 

ley will hold a public hearing at the Wimber- 

ley City Hall on Thursday, August 13, 2020 

at 6:00 p.m. to consider the following: ZA- 

20-002 – a request to change the zoning 

from Commercial - Low Impact (C-1) to 

Commercial - High Impact (C-3) for a 

property located at 100 Oak Dr..  Upon 

recommendation of the Planning & Zoning 

Commission, the City Council will also hold 

a public hearing on Thursday, August 20, 

2020, at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall.   Comments 

on this request from any member of the 

public may be presented in person at City 

Hall, by mail (221 Stillwater, Wimberley, 

Texas), or by email (scox@cityofwimberley

.com) prior to the hearing. The public will 

be granted an opportunity to speak at the 

hearings. Additional information concern- 

ing the proposed action is available for 

review at the Wimberley City Hall, 221 

Stillwater, Wimberley, Texas.

PUBLIC NOTICE

By order of the Hays County Commission- 

ers Court, notice is hereby given that on 

July 28th, 2020 at 9 a.m. in the Hays 

County Courthouse, 111 E. San Antonio 

Street, the Hays County Commissioners 

Court will hold a public hearing to consider:

Burnett Ranch, Section One, Lot 35, Replat

NOTICE OF APPLICATION TO 

SUBDIVIDE

An application has been filed with HAYS 

COUNTY to subdivide 9.38 acres of prop- 
erty located along Circle Drive, Wimberley, 

Texas 78676. Information regarding the 

application may be obtained from Hays 

County Development Services 

(512) 393-2150. Tracking number: PLN- 

1433-PC

Misc.

Services

Land for

Sale

Public 

Notice

Public 

Notice

Public 

Notice

Public 

Notice

PUBLIC NOTICE

Dripping Springs Independent School 
District is requesting proposals for Charter 
Bus Services under RFP # 20-21-001 
Charter Bus Services - Multiple Award. 
Proposals will be received in the Business 
Office of the Dripping Springs Independent 
School District, 510 West Mercer Street 
P.O. Box 479, Dripping Springs, Texas 
78620.  Proposals shall be addressed to 
Michelle Lyons, Purchasing Coordinator. 
Any questions pertaining to the proposal 
specifications should be directed to 
Michelle Lyons, Purchasing Coordinator – 
CTSBO, michelle.lyons@dsisdtx.us. All 
proposals must be received by 2:00 P.M. 
(CST) on August 6, 2020.
Dripping Springs Independent School 
District reserves the right to accept or 
reject any or all bids, to waive any 
formalities and irregularities in the bids 
received, and to accept the offer(s) most 
advantageous to the District.

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

Notice is hereby given that original Letters 
of Administration for the Estate of Jeffrey 
Paul Oakford, Sr., Deceased, were issued 
on July 9, 2020 in Cause No. 20-0181-P 
pending in the County Court at Law of Hays 
County, Texas, to Dorothy A. Oakford, as 
Independent Administrator of said Estate.  
All persons having claims against this 
Estate are required to present them to said 
Administrator, Dorothy A. Oakford, 200 
Oak Heights, Wimberley Texas 78676 
within the time and in the manner 
prescribed by Law.

Dated the 9th day of July 2020
  
Patrick G. Rehmet, Attorney
for Dorothy A. Oakford
State Bar No: 16738800
P.O. Box 1916
Wimberley, Texas 78676
Tele: 512-395-7320
Fax: 512-847-1274
E-mail: “prehmet@austin.rr.com”

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

(Conditional Use Permit)

Notice is hereby given that the Planning & 
Zoning Commission of the City of Wimber- 
ley will hold a public hearing at the Wimber- 
ley City Hall on Thursday, August 13, 2020 
at 6:00 p.m. to consider the following: CUP- 
20-004 – an application for a Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) to allow the operation of 
a bar/tavern at 100 Oak Dr..  Upon recom- 
mendation of the Planning & Zoning 
Commission, the City Council will also hold 
a public hearing on Thursday, August 20, 
2020, at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall.   Comments 
on this request from any member of the 
public may be presented in person at City 
Hall, by mail (221 Southriver, Wimberley, 
TX), or by email (scox@cityofwimberley
.com) prior to the hearing. The public will 
be granted an opportunity to speak at the 
hearings. Additional information concern- 
ing the proposed action is available for re- 
view at the Wimberley City Hall, 221 
Stillwater, Wimberley, Texas.

24

• 1 VISA 1 
l■:--41 lal 

The Wimberley Vi 

P.O. Box 49 Wimberley, Texas 78676 512-8~ 

Did you know? 
You can now view the 

Legals and Public 
Notices Online at 

wimberleyview@gmail.com 

General Help 
Wanted 

General Help 
Wanted 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
NEWSPAPER CARRIERS NEEDED! 

General 
Help Wanted 

Garage 
Sales 

Misc. 
Merchandise 

j Both r 
11ncluding I 

rravide us 

( 

It's easy to blame the driver when a bi! 
rig is involved in a wreck, but the truth ii 
usually much more complex. When truckin! 
company management cuts comers ir 
training, equipment and maintenance 
the rest of us pay the price. We havi 
represented families for years who havi 
been harmed by these parties. If you o 
someone you love has been killed or injurel 
in a truck wreck, call us today. Evidena 
can disappear so CALL NOW. 

*** Be Your 
Choose You 

looking tor CDl driver~ 
over the countrv, ~ 

Experience preferred. M1 
willing to keep logs. No DI 

uality 

onate A I 
or Car ToG 
B□1~An! 

"2-Night Free Vac 

100-100-, 
www.boatange 

sponsored by boat angel outreach centers STOP CRII 

City Admin
Highlight



July 27, 2020 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Re: File No. ZA-20-002 
100 Oak Drive 

 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
You are receiving this letter because you own property within 200 feet of the above-referenced location.   
 
The applicant, Karen O’Neil, is proposing to change the zoning from Commercial - Low Impact (C-1) to 
Commercial - High Impact (C-3) for property located at Oak Drive.  The City of Wimberley Planning and 
Zoning Commission will consider this request at a public hearing on Thursday, August 13, 2020, at 6:00 
p.m. Upon recommendation from the Commission, the City Council will hold a public hearing to consider 
the same request on Thursday, August 20, 2020, at 6:00 p.m.  Either of these Public Hearings may be held 
in accordance with Order of the Office of the Governor issued March 16, 2020, whereby the public hearing 
may be conducted in a telephonic meeting in order to advance the public health goal of limiting face-to-
face meetings (also called “social distancing”) to slow the spread of the Coronavirus (COVID-19). 
 
Because the granting of this request may affect your property, you are encouraged to participate in the 
zoning process.  The public will be given an opportunity to speak during the hearing.  If you wish to 
comment but are unable to participate, written comments may be submitted prior to the meeting.   
 
Additional information regarding the proposed request is available on request.  Should you have 
questions, please feel free to email or contact me at 512-847-0025. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Shawn Cox 
City Administrator 
scox@cityofwimberley.com 

25

~~ 



RR 12

O
AK D

R

H
ENSO

N
 RD

W
IM

BERLEY S
Q

BLUE H
ERON R

UN

C1

C1

C3

L2

C3

C3

R2

C3

C2

R2

C1

C1

C1

C1

C1

C3

L1

C3

C1

C3

C3

C1
C1

C1

C1

MH

R3

C2

C1

R2

C1

R2

R2

C1

C1

C1

C1

PR2

C1

C1

C1

C3

C1

R2

PR1

C2

R3

R2

C1

C1

C1

C2

C1

C2

C1

R1 R3

26



27

~ 

,:~ ~ 

. ~ti .. 
.. ~~ 

.,.,_"$--y~ 
- . .=:=.::. ---- --
~ -

DATE: July 6, 2020 

ZONING NO: ZA-20-002 

City of Wimberley 
221 Stillwater, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

(512} 847-0025 Fax (512} 847-0422 www.cityofwimberley.com 

NOTICE BY SIGN POSTING 

APPLICANT: Karen O'Neill 

TO: CODE ENFORCEMENT/PUBLIC WORKS 

Please place a Proposed Zoning Sign on the following property: 

Project Site Address: 100 Oak Dr. 

John Provost 
Public Works/Code Enforcement 



���������	
�������������������������������	���������
�����
�������������
����������������������� �������!"�"�������!"#�

$%&'�()�*%+,-./-'�*-,�012

��
��3����4���5

6789�:;�<7=>?@A?9�<?>BCD�E�F7G?@H��I��
<7=>?@A?9�6789�J7=78H6789�:;�<7=>?@A?9�<?>BCD�E�6789�6?K8?@�LG?@AC9MC9H<?>�E�NC@O?A�J7K?H

PQQ;8
28

City Admin
Polygon



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-17 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS REZONING A 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 100 OAK DR., WIMBERLEY, HAYS COUNTY, 
TEXAS, FROM COMMERCIAL – LOW IMPACT (C-1) TO COMMERCIAL 
– HIGH IMPACT (C-3). 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 211 of Vernon’s Local Government Code empowers the City 

Council of the City of Wimberley to enact zoning regulations and provides for their administration, 
enforcement and amendment, and  
 

WHEREAS, the regulations established by the Wimberley Code of Ordinances Article 
9.03 (Zoning), as amended, (the “Code”) are specifically designed to lessen congestion in the 
streets; secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; promote health and general welfare; 
provide adequate light and air; prevent the overcrowding of land; avoid undue concentration of 
population; facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewers, schools, parks, and 
other public facilities; and; 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wimberley has complied with all notice of 
public hearing as required by the Code and State law; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, in keeping with the spirit and objectives of the area, the City Council has 
given due consideration to all components of said proposed zoning change and the 
recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission concerning recommended 
requirements, conditions and safeguards necessary to protect adjoining property; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to provide harmony between existing 

zoning districts and proposed land uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the Zoning Map by rezoning 0.3489 acres 

of land out of the ABS 461 Amasa Turner Survey, in Wimberley, Hays County, Texas, commonly 
known as 100 Oak Dr. from Commercial – Low Impact (C-1) to Commercial – High Impact (C-
3) zoning classification. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS: 
 

ARTICLE I. FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and factual 
findings of the City of Wimberley and are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this 
Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

 
ARTICLE II. REZONING 

 
THAT the Zoning Map of the City of Wimberley is hereby amended by rezoning 0.3489 

acres of land out of the ABS 461 Amasa Turner Survey, in Wimberley, Hays County, Texas, 
commonly known as 100 Oak Dr. from Commercial – Low Impact (C-1) to Commercial – High 
Impact (C-3) zoning classification. 

29



 
 

ARTICLE IV.  REPEALER 
 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in force when the provisions of this Ordinance become 
effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and provisions contained in this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed, but only to the extent of any such conflict. 

 
ARTICLE V. SEVERABILITY 

 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance be severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional or otherwise 
unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, and the remainder of this Ordinance shall be 
enforced as written. 
 

ARTICLE VI. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and publication as may be 
required by governing law. 
 
 
   ARTICLE VII. PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING 
 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed 
was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code, and the Standard Zoning Enabling Act, Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code.  
Notice was also provided as required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City of Wimberley City Council on the 20th day of 

August  2020 by a vote of    (Ayes) and    (Nays) and    (Abstain). 
 
      CITY OF WIMBERLEY 
 
      By:       
       Gina V. Fulkerson, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________                                                    
Laura Calcote, City Secretary  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
City Attorney 
 

30

,* 
·>c:, · '\ ,-... 

' 11.st-:ALO\• 



  

 
 

REPORT 

 

 
5.2. Hold a public hearing and consider approval regarding case CUP-20-004, an application for a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow for the operation of a bar/tavern on property zoned Commercial – 
High Impact (C-3) located at 100 Oak Dr., Wimberley, Hays County, Texas. 
 
 

  
Property Description 
Applicant(s): Karen O’Neil 
Property Address: 100 Oak Dr., Wimberley TX 
Property Owner: Phillip M & Mary L Van Ostrand 
Legal Description: 0.3489 Acres Out of the ABS 461 Amasa Turner Survey 
Property Size: 0.3489 Acres  
Existing Use of Property: Commercial (Retail) 

Existing Zoning: Commercial – Low Impact (C-1) Requesting Rezoning to Commercial 
– High Impact (C-3) 

Proposed Use of 
Property: Commercial (Retail & Bar/Tavern) 

Request: CUP for Operation of a Bar/Tavern 
Planning Area: III 
Overlay District: City Center 

 
Surrounding Property: 
Frontage: Oak Dr (at corner of Oak Dr. & Wimberley Sq.) 

Surrounding Zoning 
& Land Use 

 Current Zoning: Existing Land Use: 
North of Property C1 & C2 Commercial 
South of Property C1 Commercial (Inn) 
East of Property C1 Commercial 
West of Property C1 Commercial 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: CUP-20-004 – Bar/Tavern – 100 Oak Dr. 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 17, 2020 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2020 

ITEM  

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

31



 

 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to operate a bar/tavern at located at 
100 Oak Dr.  The request is to place the bar/tavern in the small accessory structure south of the 
main building, which is currently unoccupied.  The CUP application has been submitted in 
conjunction with an application to rezone the property from Commercial – Low Impact (C-1) to 
Commercial – High Impact (C-3).  The current zooming of C-1 does not allow for the operation of a 
bar/tavern. 
 
The Planning and zoning Commission considered this request at their August 13, 2020 meeting, and 
voted 5-1 to recommended Council approve the request with the condition that the establishment 
have an agreement for use of a restroom facility for the employee only. 
     

 

 
Surrounding Neighbor Notification Letters (200’): July 27, 2020 
Published Legal Notice (Wimberley View): July 16, 2020 
Zoning Application Sign Placed: July 6, 2020 

 
  

 
At the time of positing, no comments for or against have been received. 
 
 
 

• CUP-20-004 – Application 
• CUP-20-004 – Legal Posting 
• CUP-20-004 – Notification Letter w/Map 
• CUP-20-004 – Sign Posting Notice 
• Ordinance No. 2020-18 

REQUEST  

LEGAL NOTICE 

  

COMMENTS 

  

ATTACHMENT/S 

  

32



33

_ _ . .. .... , ... , •• . J• . t. , ,. · · - ' ·• ' 1 

City of Wimberley 
221 Stillwater, Wimberley, TX 78676 

Pl (512) 847-0025 Fl (512) 847-0422 

www.cityofwimberley.com 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 

No. CUP ?..cJ 

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

" 

, .. 

Application Date: ~/ s/ ZcJ Tentative P&Z Hearing: -:/- fir / 'Zd Tentative Council Hearing: -:, (,1.. /'14) 
'· ... 

FEES: $650.00 DATEPAID: t./~/u CHECKNO. REC'DBY --- ------

PROJECT SITE ADDRESS: -~\~D_0_ O_ ~_~t)_r _. _____ Wimberley, TX 78676 

OWNER/APPLICANT \<areNl CJ >J-eA l\ PHONE ~~ <{<, l , lS-b] 

MAILING ADDRESS: q I \ \-\ ·, %k. M~'f:A- k -
CITY: \JJ~M\>e(~ STATE: TX z1r:Jfi'2J(o 

APPLICANT UNDERSTANDS that the purpose of the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) process is to 
allow certain uses which are not specific; permitted uses within a zoning district. To be consider~d 
for a CUP, the requested use must be listed under "Conditional Uses" within the applicable zoning 
district. 

SPECIFIC CONDITIONAL USE REQUESTED: (e.g. Bed & Breakfast Lodging, Vacation Rental) 

w·. t\e '\-~( ~\t.$ 
Planning Area---- Zoning ____ Total Acreage or Sq. Ft. '6rl ~' I ~Osf 
Subdivision: C - ~ \ M .,. ~ Q Lot ___ Block ___ _ 

Appraisal District Tax ID#: R __ \ ....... ~ ___ 6 __ q~ l~--------
Deed Records Hays County: Volume 9l!> :!a c..((.oj Page AMa.Sitl.~ c;.,...~ 
Is property located in an overlay district? ( ) Yes ( X ) No If Yes, type: _____ _ 

Is property located in flood plain? ( ) Yes ( X) No 

UTILITY PROVIDERS: 

Electric Provider: ? S~ -----''-----'==---------------------

Water Provider or Private Well: c_jtv 0£' w ·, ~L'(_i . 
Wastewater Service Provider or Hays County Septic Permit No: l:i.1~ ~ W .ru.<lt.t 



34

f4 

DATE 

MY REQUEST IS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING: 
The use is harmonious and compatible with surrounding existing uses or proposed uses, and does not 
adversely affect an adjoining site than would a permitted use; 

The use requested by the applicant is set forth as a conditional use in the base district; 

The nature of the use is reasonable; 

The conditional use does not adversely affect the safety or convenience of vehicular or pedestrian 
circulation, including reasonably anticipated traffic and uses in the area; 

The conditional use does not adversely affect an adjacent property by its resulting traffic through the 
location, or its lighting, or its ty~t ~fi ign; and 

That any additional conditions specified, if any, ensure that the intent and purposes of the base 
district are being upheld. 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS/DOCUMENTATION 
Metes and bounds description and a survey (i.e., drawing) exhibit showing the property for which the 
CUP is being requested. 

Site Plan drawn to scale and showing the general arrangement of the project, together with essential 
requirements such as off-street parking facilities; siie height, construction materials, and locations of 
buildings and the uses to be permitted; location and constructi_on of signs; means of ingress and egress 
to public streets; the type of visual screening such as walls, plantings and fences; and the relationship 
of th~ intended µse to all existing propertie~ an_d land uses in all directions to a minimum distance of 
two hundred feet (200'). 

List of Special Conditions that Applicant agrees apply to prop€rty. , ., 

L!st of all property owners, with mailing addresses located within two hundred feet_.(200 ') of any point 
~ of the subject property. · · 

Payment of Application fee $650.00 (non-refundable) 

Applicant agrees to attend public hearings before the P&Z Commission as well as the City Council 
concerning this application; or waives his/her right to appear, understanding that if questions are raised 
that cannot be answered, the matter may be continued, or denied. 

Applicant has checked the subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning 
actions to ensure that there are no restrictions on the subject property and applicant understands that the 
City zoning action does not relieve any obligation of these restrictions. 

Applicant agrees to provide additional documentation as needed by the· City. 

Applicantt.inderstands that City review of this Application is dependent upon the accuracy of the 
information provided and that any inaccurate or inadequate information provided may delay the review 
of the Application. Applicant, by his/her signature below, cert.ifies that to the best of his/her knowledge 
said information is complete and correct. 

Applicant h~reby aµthorizes the City regresent~tives to visit and inspect the subject property. 
~. \,, · ;; . 0-,. .. ~ - >-. • ... · . -r"' 

~o~f 
APICANTSIGNATURE 

WHEN APPLICABLE: 

Date ---'-----~-----'----
AGENT SIGN A TORE 

2 



35

LIST OF CONDITIONS THAT MAY BE INCLUDED IN A N Jl 
BED AND BREAKFASTN ACATION RENTAL CUP +\ 

Owner: 

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: ----------------------

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: ------------------------

PLANNING AREA: -------------------------

PRESENT ZONING: -------------------------

EXISTING USE: ---------------------------

USE TO BE GRANTED: ___ Bed & Breakfast OR Vacation Rental 

NEW CONSTRUCTION: (Describe existing construction) if new construction is contemplated: 
Describe new construction. The architecture and fa9ade of all new construction will be traditional 
"Hill Country" design and harmonious with those of adjacent uses. No construction shall commence 
prior to compliance with all applicable ordinances, laws, rules and regulations. 

COMPATIBILITY TO NEARBY AREAS: The facilities on the property will at all times be 
harmonious and compatible with surrounding uses 42.2 A 1. 

OFF-STREET PARKING: All parking will be off-street. __ Off-street parking spaces will be 
provided for off-street guest parking, which will be adequate for a maximum occupancy of __ 
guests. Parking will be in these spaces only. 42.2 A 5; 42.3 F. 

SIGNAGE: All signage will be of traditional "Hill Country" design and will comply with the City 
Sign Ordinance. 42.2 A 1; 42.2 A 6. 

NOISE AND LIGHTING: Exterior lighting to be only landscape lighting. All noise audible from 
outside, and all light visible from outside the property shall be maintained at low levels appropriate 
to a single family neighborhood. No large parties are permitted. 

NUMBER OF BEDROOMS: 42.3 B. -----

MAXIMUM OCCUPANCY: guests. 42.3 B. -----

OCCUPANT REGULATIONS AND GUIDELINES: Guest Guidelines are attached hereto and 
made a part of this Conditional Use Permit. The bed and breakfast lodging facility shall be operated 
in accordance with the guidelines. These guidelines shall be furnished to all guests. 42.3 D. 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM: The wastewater treatment system (to be designed and constructed) 
will at all times be adequate for the maximum occupancy.42.3 H. 

WATERFRONT USAGE: (Applicable if guests have water access) Guests may only use the 
________ River/Creek in the area directly adjacent to the bed and breakfast lodging 
facility. Guests may not use the River/Creek in front of other properties or enter upon any property 

3 



36

which is not part of the bed and breakfast facility for the purpose of entering or exiting the water or 
for any other reason. 42.3 E. 

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT: Owner will provide guests and close-by neighbors with owner's 
telephone number to assure Owner's immediate knowledge of any concerns that may arise. (If not 
owner occupied) Owner agrees to retain under contract a responsible local management company at 
all times the property is used as a non-owner occupied bed and breakfast lodging. The management 
company shall advise guests of the applicable conditions contained herein, receive and pass on to 
owner any complaints received and at owner's direction act upon such complaints. (If Owner 
occupied) The property shall be the owner's principal place of residence and the owner shall actively 
supervise and manage the property at all times that it is used as a bed and breakfast facility. 42.3 D. 

MISCELLANEOUS: Owner agrees to maintain the property in a manner conducive to the health 
and safety of the guests and the neighborhood. All trash and garbage will be placed in provided 
receptacles which shall not be visible from the street except on pick-up day. No trash bags shall be 
left out in the open. The exterior of the facility and the landscaping, including lawns, will be 
maintained in good condition at all times. 42.2 A 1. 

REVOCATION: The cup may be revoked by the City Council upon recommendation of the 
planning and Zoning Commission in the event of the violation of any of the conditions contained 
therein. 

OWNER COMPLIANCE: Owners agree to comply with all City of Wimberley Ordinances, and 
all state, county and City laws, rules and regulations. 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 

DATE OWNER 

DATE OWNER 

4 



 
Page 8 — THE WIMBERLEY VIEW, WIMBERLEY, TX., THURSDAY, JULY 16, 2020  

IMMEDIATE HIRE

For male and female 
caregivers in 

surrounding loca- 
tions. Please contact 

hiring manager. 

830.625.0444.

MOVING SALE

Furniture, clothes, 
tools, etc.

Saturday July 18th 
8-4

79 Saddlerock Ridge
Woodcreek North

Wimberley

NICE WASHERS 

/dryers/stoves
$250/up. Refrigera- 
tors $200/up.  Guar- 

anteed Appliances, 

Sales / Service. 

512-392-0373.

WOODCREEK LOT 

for Sale $28,000 + 
closing cost

Sec 20 Lot 329
GEO #90611208
Geographic ID  

R52090
Address:

2 Maplewood Circle
Wimberly, Texas 

78676
(203) 948-4444

EYE SORES 

TREE AND 

HAULING 

SERVICE.

ALL TYPES OF 

CLEANUP

We will remove all 
your eye sores! Land- 
scaping fire preven- 
tion & flood preven- 
tion. Lot clearing, 

cleanup & removal. 
Tree trimming & cut- 

ting. Hauling of 
brush, 

trash & junk. Home 
leveling & Bobcat 

work. Land clearing & 
dozer services.  We 

move and level 
portable buildings.
Call for an estimate 
today. 512-312-1227 

or 512-689-3415

CALL JOHN 

WILTON 

for all your home 
renovations, repairs 

and handyman 
needs.

512-618-1089
Down to Earth 

Services

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

Notice is given that original Letters Testa- 
mentary for the Estate of Nancy J. Coloton,  
Deceased were issued on July 1, 2020 in 
Cause No. 20-0167-P pending in the 
County Court at Law of Hays County, 
Texas, to Lydia Wright Bradford, 
Independent Executor. 

All persons having claims against this 
Estate which is currently being adminis- 
tered are required to present them to the 
undersigned within the time and in the 
manner prescribed by law.

Estate of Nancy J. Coloton, Deceased
c/o BILL CLINE,JR.
Bill Cline Law Office, P.C.
P.O. Box 2502, 120 Joe Wimberley Blvd., 
Suite 103 Wimberley, Texas 78676

BILL CLINE, JR.
Attorney for Independent Executor
State Bar No.: 04397000

PUBLIC NOTICE

By order of the Hays County Commission- 

ers Court, notice is hereby given that on 

Tuesday, July 21, 2020 at 9 a.m. in the 

Hays County Courthouse, 111 E. San Anto- 

nio Street, the Hays County Commission- 

ers Court will hold a public hearing to con- 
sider:

REDUCING THE CURRENT 60 MPH 

SPEED LIMIT TO 45 MPH ON THE 

WEST END OF WINTERS MILL PARK- 

WAY FOR THE NEW WISD BLUE HOLE 

PRIMARY SCHOOL.

LEGAL NOTICE

Application has been made 

with the Texas Alcoholic Bever- 

age Commission for a 

Wine/Beer Retailers Permit for 

on and off premise by Karen 

O’Neill dba Taste of Paradise, 

to be located at 100 Oak Dr. 

Concession, Wimberley, Hays 

County Texas. Taste of Par- 

adise is a sole proprietorship 

owned solely by Karen O’Neill.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

(Request for Zoning)

Notice is hereby given that the Planning & 

Zoning Commission of the City of Wimber- 

ley will hold a public hearing at the Wimber- 

ley City Hall on Thursday, August 13, 2020 

at 6:00 p.m. to consider the following: ZA- 

20-002 – a request to change the zoning 

from Commercial - Low Impact (C-1) to 

Commercial - High Impact (C-3) for a 

property located at 100 Oak Dr..  Upon 

recommendation of the Planning & Zoning 

Commission, the City Council will also hold 

a public hearing on Thursday, August 20, 

2020, at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall.   Comments 

on this request from any member of the 

public may be presented in person at City 

Hall, by mail (221 Stillwater, Wimberley, 

Texas), or by email (scox@cityofwimberley

.com) prior to the hearing. The public will 

be granted an opportunity to speak at the 

hearings. Additional information concern- 

ing the proposed action is available for 

review at the Wimberley City Hall, 221 

Stillwater, Wimberley, Texas.

PUBLIC NOTICE

By order of the Hays County Commission- 

ers Court, notice is hereby given that on 

July 28th, 2020 at 9 a.m. in the Hays 

County Courthouse, 111 E. San Antonio 

Street, the Hays County Commissioners 

Court will hold a public hearing to consider:

Burnett Ranch, Section One, Lot 35, Replat

NOTICE OF APPLICATION TO 

SUBDIVIDE

An application has been filed with HAYS 

COUNTY to subdivide 9.38 acres of prop- 
erty located along Circle Drive, Wimberley, 

Texas 78676. Information regarding the 

application may be obtained from Hays 

County Development Services 

(512) 393-2150. Tracking number: PLN- 

1433-PC

Misc.

Services

Land for

Sale

Public 

Notice

Public 

Notice

Public 

Notice

Public 

Notice

PUBLIC NOTICE

Dripping Springs Independent School 
District is requesting proposals for Charter 
Bus Services under RFP # 20-21-001 
Charter Bus Services - Multiple Award. 
Proposals will be received in the Business 
Office of the Dripping Springs Independent 
School District, 510 West Mercer Street 
P.O. Box 479, Dripping Springs, Texas 
78620.  Proposals shall be addressed to 
Michelle Lyons, Purchasing Coordinator. 
Any questions pertaining to the proposal 
specifications should be directed to 
Michelle Lyons, Purchasing Coordinator – 
CTSBO, michelle.lyons@dsisdtx.us. All 
proposals must be received by 2:00 P.M. 
(CST) on August 6, 2020.
Dripping Springs Independent School 
District reserves the right to accept or 
reject any or all bids, to waive any 
formalities and irregularities in the bids 
received, and to accept the offer(s) most 
advantageous to the District.

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

Notice is hereby given that original Letters 
of Administration for the Estate of Jeffrey 
Paul Oakford, Sr., Deceased, were issued 
on July 9, 2020 in Cause No. 20-0181-P 
pending in the County Court at Law of Hays 
County, Texas, to Dorothy A. Oakford, as 
Independent Administrator of said Estate.  
All persons having claims against this 
Estate are required to present them to said 
Administrator, Dorothy A. Oakford, 200 
Oak Heights, Wimberley Texas 78676 
within the time and in the manner 
prescribed by Law.

Dated the 9th day of July 2020
  
Patrick G. Rehmet, Attorney
for Dorothy A. Oakford
State Bar No: 16738800
P.O. Box 1916
Wimberley, Texas 78676
Tele: 512-395-7320
Fax: 512-847-1274
E-mail: “prehmet@austin.rr.com”

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

(Conditional Use Permit)

Notice is hereby given that the Planning & 
Zoning Commission of the City of Wimber- 
ley will hold a public hearing at the Wimber- 
ley City Hall on Thursday, August 13, 2020 
at 6:00 p.m. to consider the following: CUP- 
20-004 – an application for a Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) to allow the operation of 
a bar/tavern at 100 Oak Dr..  Upon recom- 
mendation of the Planning & Zoning 
Commission, the City Council will also hold 
a public hearing on Thursday, August 20, 
2020, at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall.   Comments 
on this request from any member of the 
public may be presented in person at City 
Hall, by mail (221 Southriver, Wimberley, 
TX), or by email (scox@cityofwimberley
.com) prior to the hearing. The public will 
be granted an opportunity to speak at the 
hearings. Additional information concern- 
ing the proposed action is available for re- 
view at the Wimberley City Hall, 221 
Stillwater, Wimberley, Texas.

37

• 1 VISA 1 
l■:--41 lal 

The Wimberley Vi 

P.O. Box 49 Wimberley, Texas 78676 512-8~ 

Did you know? 
You can now view the 

Legals and Public 
Notices Online at 

wimberleyview@gmail.com 

General Help 
Wanted 

General Help 
Wanted 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
NEWSPAPER CARRIERS NEEDED! 

General 
Help Wanted 

Garage 
Sales 

Misc. 
Merchandise 

j Both r 
11ncluding I 

rravide us 

( 

It's easy to blame the driver when a bi! 
rig is involved in a wreck, but the truth ii 
usually much more complex. When truckin! 
company management cuts comers ir 
training, equipment and maintenance 
the rest of us pay the price. We havi 
represented families for years who havi 
been harmed by these parties. If you o 
someone you love has been killed or injurel 
in a truck wreck, call us today. Evidena 
can disappear so CALL NOW. 

*** Be Your 
Choose You 

looking tor CDl driver~ 
over the countrv, ~ 

Experience preferred. M1 
willing to keep logs. No DI 

uality 

onate A I 
or Car ToG 
B□1~An! 

"2-Night Free Vac 

100-100-, 
www.boatange 

sponsored by boat angel outreach centers STOP CRII 



swoyerseptics.com


ofwimberley.com


www.loghomedream.com
City Admin
Highlight



July 27, 2020 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Re: File No. CUP-20-004 
100 Oak Drive 

 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
You are receiving this letter because you own property within 200 feet of the above-referenced location.   
 
The applicant, Karen O’Neil, has requested a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to operate a bar/tavern at 100 
Oak Drive, further described as 0.3489 acres of land out of the ABS 461 AMASA TURNER SURVEY.  The City 
of Wimberley Planning and Zoning Commission will consider this request at a public hearing on Thursday, 
August 13, 2020, at 6:00 p.m.  Upon recommendation from the Commission, the City Council will hold a 
public hearing to consider the same request on Thursday, August 20, 2020, at 6:00 p.m.  Either of these 
Public Hearings may be held in accordance with Order of the Office of the Governor issued March 16, 
2020, whereby the public hearing may be conducted in a telephonic meeting in order to advance the 
public health goal of limiting face-to-face meetings (also called “social distancing”) to slow the spread of 
the Coronavirus (COVID-19). 
 
Because the granting of this request may affect your property, you are encouraged to participate in the 
zoning process.  The public will be given an opportunity to speak during the hearing.  If you wish to 
comment but are unable to participate, written comments may be submitted prior to the meeting.   
 
Additional information regarding the proposed request is available on request.  Should you have 

questions, please feel free to email or contact me at 512-847-0025. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Shawn Cox 
City Administrator 
scox@cityofwimberley.com 

38



RR 12

O
AK D

R

H
ENSO

N
 RD

W
IM

BERLEY S
Q

BLUE H
ERON R

UN

C1

C1

C3

L2

C3

C3

R2

C3

C2

R2

C1

C1

C1

C1

C1

C3

L1

C3

C1

C3

C3

C1
C1

C1

C1

MH

R3

C2

C1

R2

C1

R2

R2

C1

C1

C1

C1

PR2

C1

C1

C1

C3

C1

R2

PR1

C2

R3

R2

C1

C1

C1

C2

C1

C2

C1

R1 R3

39



40

City of Wimberley 
221 Stillwater, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

(512) 847-0025 Fax (512) 847-0422 www.cityofwimberley.com 
-- -===-- ~===·-==--- - --~ ==- -. 

NOTICE BY SIGN POSTING 

DATE: July 6, 2020 

ZONING NO: CUP-20-004 APPLICANT: Karen O'Neill 

TO: CODE ENFORCEMENT/PUBLIC WORKS 

Please place a Proposed Zoning Sign on the following property: 

Project Site Address: 100 Oak Dr. 

John Provost 
Public Works/Code Enforcement 

: The above referenced sign was placed on the subject property on 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT SUBMITTED BY KAREN O’NEILL TO 
PERMIT A BAR/TAVERN ON A PORTION OF APPROXIMATELY 0.3489 
ACRE TRACT LOCATED AT 100 OAK DR., WIMBERLEY, HAYS 
COUNTY, TEXAS, ZONED COMMERCIAL – HIGH IMPACT (C-3), AND 
IMPOSING CERTAIN CONDITIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS 
OF FACT; AMENDMENT OF THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP; 
REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; EFFECTIVE DATE; PROPER NOTICE 
AND MEETING; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN CONDITIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been filed by Karen O’Neill 

("Applicant") requesting authorization to permit a Bar/Tavern on a portion of real property 
described as 0.3489 acres of land out of the ABS 461 Amasa Turner Survey, zoned Commercial – 
High Impact (C-3); and 
 

WHEREAS, a bar/tavern is an authorized use in areas zoned Commercial – High Impact 
(C-3) upon approval of a CUP; 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant has submitted a Conditional Use Permit Application, site plan, 
and other necessary information, and has complied with the requirements of the Wimberley 
Zoning Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, after conducting a public hearing on the matter, the Planning and Zoning 

Commission recommended approval of the CUP application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the CUP wherein public 
comment was received and considered on the application; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the additional use of the subject property for the 

sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption, is an appropriate use for the property and 
is a compatible use with the surrounding properties and neighborhoods. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS: 
 
 

ARTICLE I. FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and factual 
findings of the City of Wimberley and are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this 
Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

 
 

ARTICLE II. APPROVAL - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

The CITY COUNCIL HEREBY GRANTS the Application for a Conditional Use Permit 
submitted by Karen O’Neill (“Applicant”) for use as a bar/tavern on real property, described as 

41



described as 0.3489 acres of land out of the ABS 461 Amasa Turner Survey,  as more particularly 
described by survey in Exhibit “A”,  attached and incorporated by reference, zoned Commercial – 
High Impact (C-3), Wimberley, Hays County, Texas, subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 
 

 
1. The use of the property for a Bar/Tavern shall be limited to the Wood Building, as 

designated on Exhibit "A", attached, and incorporated by reference. 
 

2. Applicant shall not commence operation until it has secured all permits and approvals as 
required by the Wimberley zoning regulations, ordinances or any permits required by 
regional, State and Federal agencies. 
 

3. This Ordinance only authorizes the additional use of a Bar/Tavern to the wood building, as 
depicted on Exhibit "A", as well as all applicable regulations in effect at the time of the 
submission of the building permit application. This Conditional Use Permit does not 
authorize any other use of the property, except as permitted under the Zoning Code. 
 
 

ARTICLE III.   ZONING DISTRICT MAP 
 

The official Zoning District Map shall be revised to reflect the Conditional Use Permit established 
by this Ordinance. 
 

ARTICLE IV.  REPEALER 
 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in force when the provisions of this Ordinance become 
effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and provisions contained in this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed, but only to the extent of any such conflict. 

 
ARTICLE V. SEVERABILITY 

 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance be severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional or otherwise 
unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, and the remainder of this Ordinance shall be 
enforced as written. 
 

ARTICLE VI. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and publication as may be 
required by governing law. 
 
 
   ARTICLE VII. PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING 
 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed 
was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 

42



meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code, and the Standard Zoning Enabling Act, Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code.  
Notice was also provided as required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City of Wimberley City Council on the 20th day of 

August 2020 by a vote of   (Ayes) and   (Nays) and   (Abstain). 
 
      CITY OF WIMBERLEY 
 
 
      By:       
       Gina V. Fulkerson, Mayor   
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________                                                    
Laura Calcote, City Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
City Attorney 
 
 

43



SCALE I' 20' 

OAK STREET 
(+/- 37' R.0.W.)

(S 37"53' E 104.60') 
CONG. 

--S 37'54'06" E ---104.53'- E -�

-E 
O'.l 

-E 

-E 
-

rl:11 

O'.l 

0.355 ACRES 
"-
0 

(0.35 ACRES) w "-
0 

ROBERT F. CARTER 

\ 
"" 

� 
i<) 

::, c..i u
z 

� "-: 
m0 en 

(/) v 

vi "'
st ,..., 

0 
"' 

C> 

�\ z w 
Ct'. w 

� 
. ;,,o ,..., 

CD 
-o

b i<) 
Lf) .... 

z •  
�� 

� 

z 

�000 
ECK 

,..., 

--i:. 

(1164/462) 

BACK OF CURB 

CONG. 

50.6' 

STONE 

50.6' 

METAL 

� 
/ 

BUILDING 

STORAGE 
SHED 

<D 

7rl\ 

\:V 

II 

\Y 

1
\_

C:::> 
PROPANE 

TANK 

PROPER'fY LIN 

(0.17 ACRES) 

\ 

JOHN HOLLINGSWORTH 
(1994/236) 

:� 
(0 (./1 

I 

l?I 

I 

ui � 
m. J. 
� <D 

(0 
= ::E 

1.3' OVER PROPER'fY LINE 
O'/IBl:iAN..!i._ 

BUILDING 

OVERHANG □ 

TO: 

PURCHASER: 
LENDER: 
TITLE CO: 

GF NO: 
ADDRESS: 

N 39·40•24" W

(N 39'37' W 

"' 
ci 

LEGEND 

e IRON ROD FOUND 

riNj WAl"...R METER 
-//-- WOOD FENCE 

Q POWER POLE 

- E - OVERHEAD El£C. LINE 

(BRG.-OIST.) RECORD CALL 

(0.41 ACRES) 
MARCILlA L. ANDERSON 

(1064/751) 

PHILLIP M. VAN OSTRAND ANO MARY L. VAN OSTRANO 
BANK ONE 
HAYS COUNTY ABSTRACT COUP ANY 
STEWART TITLE GUARANTY COMPANY 

20408049 
1 00 OAK DRIVE 

I, SHAWN T. ASH, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT OF THE 
PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, WAS PREPARED FROM A SURVEY 
PERFORMED UNDER MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION DURING SEPTEMBER 
20D4, AND IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLIOGE 
AND BELIEF, ANO EXCEPT AS SHOWN OR NOTED HEREON, THERE ARE 
NO VISIBLE DISCREPANCIES, ENCROACHMENTS, OVERLAPPING OF 
IMPROVEMENTS, VISIBLE UTILITY LINES OR ROADWAYS, AND THAT 

SAID PROPERTY HAS ACCESS TO AND FROt; A PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. 

oJ/Z8(64 
DATE 

105.18' 
105.08') 

NOTES: 

'-' w � 1� 5 
� ! ;:
� 16 � 

0 

i 
"' 
ci 

I) THIS TRACT IS SUBJECT TO A RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT 
GRANTED TO WIMBERLEY WATER SUPPLY CORP. lN 

VOLUME 2,U, PAGE 385, DEED RECORDS or HAYS 
COUNTY, TEXAS. 

2) ACCORDING TO THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE RATE 
l,IAP COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48209CO 1 60 E, DATED 

LIN 

FEB. 18, 1998, THIS TRACT IS LOCATED IN ZONE "X", 
WHICH IS AN AREA OUTSIDE THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN. 

EXHIBIT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF: 
IN AMASA TURHER SURVEY, A-461, 

� ASH 
�Assof1ATES 

Exhibit D- 0 

surveying and mopping 

516 W. HOPKINS ST. SUIT( A 

SAN ►AARCOS. TEXAS 78666 

(512) 392-1719 

fAX (512) 392-1928 

Exhibit "A"

44

' 
---........._ c 

t:i 
w 
o:::--:-
I-;: 

.N (/)0 a; 
z n: ,,, 

Oo 
(/) .... z-...., 
w 
I 

8 

<t: 
ID 

rx 
::, 
<) 

" ~ 

0 
0 

q 
"' N 

- E 

·o 
0 
"' 

w T 
'~·v+ in~ 
Or--"'n If) I z 

I 

Q'. 
::, 

" 

~ 

u 

g_! 
::, 

" ... 
0 

" !;I 

\Y 

\ 

BUILDING 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-22 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS AMENDING CHAPTER 9 
(PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS) ARTICLE 9.03 (ZONING), 
DIVISION 3, (DISTRICT REGULATIONS) SECTION 9.03.085 (COMMERCIAL-HIGH 
IMPACT) OF THE CITY OF WIMBERLEY CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADD FLEA 
MARKER/MARKET DAY; AND PROVIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING:  FINDINGS OF 
FACT, A SAVINGS CLAUSE, A REPEALING CLAUSE, A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, 
AND EFFECTIVE DATE, AND PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wimberley (“City Council”) seeks to provide 
for the orderly arrangement and regulation of compatible uses within its corporate limits; and 

 
WHEREAS, in the course of reviewing the proposed amendments detailed in this 

Ordinance, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council have given careful 
consideration to the unique qualities of the City, including the demographics of its inhabitants, the 
City’s history, geography, natural resources, existing structures, property values, workforce, 
education levels, commercial base, surrounding communities, public facilities, and infrastructure, 
and 

WHEREAS, the regulations established by this Ordinance are in furtherance of the public 
interest, for the good government, peace, order, trade, and commerce of the City and necessary and 
proper for carrying out the power granted by law to the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the following enactments are a valid exercise of the City’s broad police 

powers and based on the City’s statutory regulatory authority, including, but not limited to, Texas 
Local Government Code Chapters 51, 52, and 212; and 

 
WHERAS, parties in interest and citizens have had an opportunity to be heard at public 

hearings conducted by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council, notice of which 
was published in the City’s official newspaper before the 15th day before the first public hearing, 
and agendas for each hearing were posted at City Hall more than seventy-two (72) hours prior to 
the respective hearings;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION I.  FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
 All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and 

factual findings of the City Council and are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this 
Article as if copied in their entirety. 

 
SECTION II.  AMENDMENT 

 
A. The City of Wimberley Code of Ordinances, Chapter 9 (Planning & Development Regulations), 

Article 9.03 (Zoning), Division 3 (District Regulations), Section 9.03.085 (Commercial-High 
Impact is hereby amended as follows: 
 

“(B) Permitted Uses  
 

(22) Retail sales and services: flea market/market day 
 
 
 
 
 

45

City Admin
Highlight

City Admin
Highlight



SECTION III.  SAVINGS 
 
 The repeal of any ordinance or part of ordinances effectuated by the enactment of this 
Article shall not be construed as abandoning any action now pending under or by virtue of such 
ordinance or as discontinuing, abating, modifying or altering any penalty accruing or to accrue, or 
as affecting any rights of the City under any section or provisions of any ordinances at the time of 
passage of this Article. 
 

SECTION IV.  SEVERABILITY 
 
Should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, or section of this Article be adjusted 
or held to be unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of this Article 
in whole or any part or provision thereof, other than the part so declared to be invalid, illegal or 
unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION V.  REPEALER 
 
 The provisions of this Article shall be cumulative of all other ordinances or parts of 
ordinances governing or regulating the same subject matter as that covered herein; provided, 
however, that all prior ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict with any of the 
provisions of this Article are hereby expressly repealed to the extent that such inconsistency is 
apparent.  This Article shall not be construed to require or allow any act that is prohibited by any 
other ordinance. 
 

SECTION VI.  EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 This Article shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and publication as may 
be required by law. 
 

SECTION VII.  PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Article was passed was 
open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting 
was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  
Notice was also provided as required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED First Reading this 3rd day of September, 2020, by a vote of   (Ayes) 
to  (Nays)  (Abstain) vote of the City Council of the City of Wimberley, Texas. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED Second Reading this 17th day of September, 2020, by a vote of  
(Ayes) to (Nays) (Abstain) vote of the City Council of the City of Wimberley, Texas. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
           Gina V. Fulkerson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________         
Laura J. Calcote, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
City Attorney 

46



Amendment Number 1 
Grant Administration Services 
 
 
Langford Community Management Services (LCMS) would like to request the proposed 
amendment to the agreement between the City of Wimberley and LCMS, regarding the 
grant administration contract for Infrastructure and Housing projects (Attachment A) 
executed on May the 17th, 2018.  
 
As pre-procurement required the City to contractually enter into an agreement prior to the 
establishment of the project; the contract agreement was based on a percentage (%) figure.  
Federal Regulations require that with funding, the Grant Administration and Environmental 
Services Contract be amended to include a dollar figure and the GLO Contract number.    

LCMS proposes an amendment to this contract to add the federally required information to 
the contract document: 

• Non-Housing (Infrastructure) GLO Contract number: 19-229-000-B672 

o Contract Amount for Non-Housing Project Grant Administration Services:  
$19,009.57 

o Contract Amount for Non-Housing (Infrastructure) Project Environmental 
Services: $ 9,000.00 

 Total: $28,009.57 

• Housing GLO Contract Number: 19-107-000-B443 

o Contract Amount for Housing Project – Grant Administration Services: 
$27,074 

o Contract Amount for Housing Project – Project Delivery Services: 
$135,371.18  

 
 

 

Signed & Approved on:     

_____________________    ___________________________ 

Gina Fulkerson, Mayor      Judy Langford, President - LCMS 

 

Date: ________________    Date: ______________________ 

47



GRANT ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR 
NON-HOUSING OR RENTAL/NON-RENTAL HOUSING PROJECTS 

UNDER THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 

CONTRACT NO. TO BE DETERMINED WITH FUNDING:_____________ 

The City of Wimberley (the “Subrecipient”) and Langford Community Management 
Services, Inc., Tax Identification Number 74-2804904(“Provider”), each a “Party” and 
collectively, “the Parties,” enter into the following contract for grant administration 
services (the “Contract”) as  awarded  on  May 17 ,  2018 pursuant to Local Govt. Code 
252 and 2 C.F.R. Part 200.  

WHEREAS, the Subrecipient has received U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery (“CDBG-DR”) funds, administered 
by the Texas General Land Office (“GLO”) for damage sustained from Disasters 4223 and 4245; 
and 

WHEREAS, the CDBG-DR program is funded under the Transportation, Housing and Urban 
Development, and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 2016, Pub. L. No. 114-113. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to the following terms and conditions: 

I. DEFINITIONS / INTERPRETIVE PROVISIONS / PROJECT DESCRIPTION

1.01    DEFINITIONS 
 “Activity"means a defined class of works or services authorized to be accomplished using 
CDBG-DR grant funds. Activities are specified in Subrecipient Budgets as ‘Category,’ and 
the terms are interchangeable under this Contract. 
“Administrative and Audit Regulations” means the regulations included in Title 2, 
CFR, Part 200. Chapter 321 of the Texas Government Code; Subchapter F of Chapter 
2155 of the Texas Government Code; and the requirements of Article VII herein. With 
regard to any federal funding, agencies with the necessary legal authority include: 
the relevant federal agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, 
the Office of Inspector General, and any of their authorized representatives.  In addition, 
state agencies and/or designee’s with the authority to audit and inspect include, the 
Subrecipient, the GLO, the GLO’s contracted examiners, the State Auditor’s Office, 
the Texas Attorney General’s Office and the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts. 
“Activity” means a defined class of works or services authorized to be accomplished 
using CDBG-DR grant funds. Activities are specified in Subrecipient Budgets as 
‘Category,’ and the terms are interchangeable under this Contract. 
“Attachment” means documents, terms, conditions, or additional information physically 
added to this Contract following the execution page, or incorporated by reference, as 
if physically. 

48



“Amendment” means a written agreement, signed by the parties hereto, which documents 
alterations to the Contract. 
“Benchmark” or “Billing Milestone” means a clearly defined set of incremental services 
that must be performed; or an interim level of accomplishment that must be met by Provider 
in order to receive periodic incremental and final reimbursement for services under this 
Contract.  
“CDBG—DR” means the Community Development Block Grant—Disaster Recovery 
Program administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, in 
cooperation with the GLO. 
“Certificate of Construction Completion” means a document submitted by an engineer or, 
if none, a construction contractor, to a Grantee which, when executed by the Grantee, 
indicates acceptance of the non-housing project, as built. 
“Contract” means this entire document, along with any Attachments, both physical and 
incorporated by reference; and any Amendments. 
“Contract Period” means the period of time between the effective date of a contract and its 
expiration or termination date. 
“Deliverable” means a unit or increment of work to include, any item, report, data, 
document, photograph, or other submission required to be delivered under the terms of this 
Contract, in whatever form =. 
“Federal Assurances” means Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97) (non-construction projects); 
or Standard Form 424D (Rev. 7-97) (construction projects), in Attachment A, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.  
“Federal Certifications” means U.S. Department of Commerce Form CD-512 (12-04), 
“Certifications Regarding Lobbying – Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” also in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.  
“Final Inspection Report” means the document submitted by the housing contractor to a 
Subrecipient under a CDBG-DR Housing grant contract, indicating the completed 
construction of one Housing Unit. 
“Fiscal Year” means the period beginning September 1 and ending August 31 each year, 
which is the annual accounting period for the State of Texas. 
“GAAP” means “Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.”  
“GASB” means the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
“General Affirmations” means the statements in Attachment B, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes, which Provider affirms by executing this Contract.  
“GLO” means the Texas General Land Office, its officers, employees, and designees. 
“GLO-Vendor Contract” means the contract or contracts between the GLO and Provider 
procured through the Solicitation; such GLO-Vendor Contract is hereby incorporated 
herein by reference, for all purposes. 
“Grant Administration Fee” means the amount to be paid to Provider for all services 
performed for a Subrecipient. 

49



“Housing” refers to a project involving home repair, home reconstruction, and new home 
construction; including housing for single-family and multi-family rental units under a 
CDBG-DR program grant. 
“Housing Unit” means one house, or one multi-family rental unit. 
“HSP” means HUB Subcontracting Plan, as outlined by Chapter 2161 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
“HUB” means Historically Underutilized Business, as defined by Chapter 2161 of the 
Texas Government Code. 
“HUD” means the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
“Mentor Protégé” means the Comptroller of Public Accounts’ leadership program found 
at: http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/mentorprotege/ 
“Non-housing” refers to a project involving the restoration and/or repair of infrastructure 
facilities and the economic revitalization activities approved under a CDBG-DR program 
grant. 
“Performance Statement” means Provider’s detailed scope of work hereby incorporated for 
all purposes as Attachment C. 
“Project” means the grant administration services described in SECTION 1.03 of this 
Contract and in any applicable Attachments. 
“Project Completion Report” means a report containing an “as built” accounting of all 
projects completed under a CDBG-DR non-housing or housing grant, and containing all 
information required to completely close out a grant file.  
“Project Implementation Manual” means a set of guidelines for the CDBG-DR Program, 
incorporated herein by reference for all purposes in its entirety. 
“Project Period” means the stated time for completion of a Project assigned by Work Order, 
if any. 
“Prompt Pay Act” means Chapter 2251, Subtitle F of Title 10 of the Texas Government 
Code. 
“Provider” means Langford Community Management Services, Inc., selected to provide 
the services under this Contract, if any. 
“Public Information Act” means Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code. 
“Quarterly Report” means a document submitted by Provider to a Subrecipient for approval 
and submission to the GLO as a condition of reimbursement, as discussed in SECTION 1.05 
and ARTICLE III, below.  
 “RFQ”/“RFP means the Subrecipient’s Request for Qualifications/Solicitation, as defined 
below. 
“Setup” means documentation, submitted by a Subrecipient, necessary for the GLO to 
determine that housing sites meet minimum eligibility criteria, resulting in approval for the 
Subrecipient to move forward with the projects.   

50

http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/mentorprotege/
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/mentorprotege/


“Solicitation” means Subrecipient’s Request for Qualifications/Proposals, including any 
Addenda. 
“Solicitation Response” means Provider’s full and complete response to the Solicitation, 
including any Addenda. 
“State of Texas TexTravel” means Texas Administrative Code, Title 34, Part 1, Chapter 5, 
Subchapter C, Section 5.22, relative to travel reimbursements under this Contract, if any. 
“Subcontractor” means an individual or business that signs a contract to perform part or all 
of the obligations of Provider under this Contract. 
“Subrecipient” means the City of Wimberley, a local governmental body or political 
subdivision that receives funds under HUD’s CDBG—DR Program for housing 
projects. Any Work Order issued for services to a recipient of a housing grant shall refer 
to “Subrecipient” as the party served.  
“Subrecipient Agreement” means the contractual agreement for a CDBG-DR housing or 
non-housing grant between the GLO and the Subrecipient for which Provider performs 
services assigned by the Subrecipient, if any. 
“Technical Guidance Letter or ‘TGL’” means an instruction, clarification, or interpretation 
of the requirements of the CDBG-DR Program, issued by the GLO to specified recipients, 
applicable to specific subject matter, to which the addressed Program participants shall be 
subject.  
“Weekly Report” means a document submitted weekly by a Subrecipient showing the 
status of all housing projects, both completed and remaining, and any other information as 
may be required by the GLO.  

1.02  INTERPRETIVE PROVISIONS 
(a) The meanings of defined terms are equally applicable to the singular and plural

forms of the defined terms;
(b) The words “hereof,” “herein,” “hereunder,” and similar words refer to this Contract

as a whole and not to any particular provision, section, attachment, work order, or
schedule of this Contract unless otherwise specified;

(c) The term “including” is not limiting and means “including without limitation” and,
unless otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, (i) references to contracts
(including this Contract) and other contractual instruments shall be deemed to
include all subsequent amendments and other modifications thereto, but only to the
extent that such amendments and other modifications are not prohibited by the
terms of this Contract, and (ii) references to any statute or regulation are to be
construed as including all statutory and regulatory provisions consolidating,
amending, replacing, supplementing, or interpreting the statute or regulation;

(d) The captions and headings of this Contract are for convenience of reference only
and shall not affect the interpretation of this Contract;

(e) All attachments within this Contract, including those incorporated by reference, and
any amendments are considered part of the terms of this Contract;

51



(f) This Contract may use several different limitations, regulations, or policies to
regulate the same or similar matters.  All such limitations, regulations, and policies
are cumulative and each shall be performed in accordance with its terms;

(g) Unless otherwise expressly provided, reference to any action of the Subrecipient or
by the Subrecipient by way of consent, approval, or waiver shall be deemed
modified by the phrase “in its/their sole discretion.”  Notwithstanding the preceding
sentence, any approval, consent, or waiver required by, or requested of, the
Subrecipient shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed;

(h) Time is of the essence in this Contract.
(i) In the event of conflicts or inconsistencies between this contract and its

attachments, such conflicts or inconsistencies shall be resolved by reference to the
documents in the following order of priority: Signed Contract; Attachments to the
Contract: Attachment A, Attachment B, Attachment C, Attachment D and
Attachment E; Solicitation Documents; and Provider’s Response to Solicitation.

1.03 PROJECT 
Provider shall perform, or cause to be performed at the direction of the Subrecipient, in 
assistance to Subrecipient, comprehensive administration services necessary to facilitate 
activities for the disaster relief, recovery, restoration, and economic revitalization in areas 
affected by DR 4223 under the CDBG—DR Program.  Provider will assist the Subrecipient 
in fulfilling State and Federal CDBG-DR statutory responsibilities related to recovery from 
Hurricanes Ike and Dolly including, but not limited to, performing grant administration 
services for non-housing and/or housing projects.  Grant administrative services must be 
performed in compliance with (i) HUD requirements, (ii) the Non-Exclusive List of Laws, 
Rules, and Regulations in Attachment D; (iii) this Contract and all Attachments, including 
Provider’s Performance Statement, Attachment C; (iv) any Amendments to this Contract; 
(v) any Technical Guidance Letter, program requirements, or program guidance that may
be issued by the GLO; (vi) GLO RFQ suggested forms; and (viii) Provider’s full and
complete response to the RFQ (“the Project”).

Provider shall be responsible at all times for maintaining close oversight of approved 
projects and record-keeping including, but not limited to, obtaining and maintaining, 
through Provider’s own efforts, the Subrecipient’s current Performance Statement / 
Implementation Schedule, and Budget, including Revisions approved and Technical 
Guidance Letters issued by the GLO; and any other information that may be required for 
the satisfactory performance by Provider of the services herein described or assigned under 
a Work Order, as discussed below.  

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

52



1.04 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
Provider shall assist the Subrecipient to timely submit all reports and documentation that 
are required under this Contract and any Subrecipient Agreement. 

WEEKLY REPORTS – APPLICABLE TO HOUSING PROJECTS ONLY: 

Provider submit to the Subrecipient a Weekly Report containing all information as required 
by the GLO under the Subrecipient Agreement including, but not limited to, the number of 
Housing Units completed and the number of Housing Units remaining to be completed.   

QUARTERLY REPORTS – APPLICABLE TO NON-HOUSING AND HOUSING
PROJECTS: 

QUARTERLY REPORTS ARE REQUIRED AS A CONDITION OF REIMBURSEMENT TO ALL
SUBRECIPIENTS.  It is incumbent upon Provider to facilitate the submission of each 
Quarterly Report in a timely manner.  Each Quarterly Report shall include progress made 
since the prior reporting period, current Benchmarks achieved, projected quantities, 
problems encountered and detailed plans to correct them, goals to be accomplished in the 
subsequent reporting period, and any other information as may be required by the GLO.   

The GLO may review the Quarterly Report(s) and may request revisions to be made. 
Provider shall make itself aware of such revision requests and shall assist the Subrecipient 
in making appropriate revisions.  Upon acceptance of the Quarterly Report and submission 
of a properly prepared invoice, appropriate payment may be made to Subrecipient and to 
Provider.   

In the sole discretion of the GLO, reports may be requested more often than quarterly, and 
Provider shall facilitate the timely submission to the GLO of such additional information 
by the Grant Recipient. 

Reimbursement may be withheld if a Quarterly Report is delinquent or deficient, in 
the sole discretion of the GLO. 

PROJECT COMPLETION REPORTS: 

NON-HOUSING SERVICES:  Provider shall prepare and submit to the Subrecipient a draft 
Project Completion Report (PCR) by the close of business no later than thirty (30) days 
from Provider’s receipt of the fully executed final Certificate of Construction Completion 
(“COCC”).  Provider shall then cooperate with the Subrecipient to submit the final, signed, 
PCR to the GLO by the close of business no later than sixty (60) days from Provider’s 
receipt of the fully executed final COCC.  The PCR must be submitted in accordance with 
the specifications in the Project Implementation Manual, and must include a full 
description of all Subrecipient projects, both as originally assigned and as ultimately 
completed, accounting for all Amendments, Revisions, and Technical Guidance Letters, if 
any. 

53



HOUSING SERVICES:  Provider shall prepare and submit to the Subrecipient a draft PCR by 
the close of business no later than thirty (30) days from Provider’s receipt of the last Final 
Inspection Report, which indicates that all Housing Units approved in Subrecipient’s grant 
have been completed.  Provider shall then cooperate with the Subrecipient to submit a final, 
signed, PCR to the GLO by the close of business no later than sixty (60) days from 
Provider’s receipt of the last Final Inspection Report.   The PCR must be submitted in 
accordance with the specifications in the Project Implementation Manual, and must include 
a full description of all Subrecipient projects, both as originally assigned and as ultimately 
completed, accounting for all Amendments, Revisions, and Technical Guidance Letters, if 
any. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

54



II. TERM

2.01 DURATION 
This Contract shall be effective as of the date signed by the last party, and shall terminate 
on termination date of the Subrecipient’s contract with GLO with funding.  The 
Subrecipient, at its own discretion, may extend any contract awarded pursuant to the 
Solicitation for up to one (1) year with additional five (5) year terms or until the time the 
grant funding expires, whichever comes first.  Any extension will be subject to terms and 
conditions mutually agreeable to both parties.  

2.02 EARLY TERMINATION 
The Subrecipient may terminate this Contract by giving written notice specifying a 
termination date at least thirty (30) days subsequent to the date of the notice.  Upon receipt 
of any such notice, Provider shall cease work, undertake to terminate any relevant 
subcontracts, and incur no further expense related to this Contract.  Such early termination 
shall be subject to the equitable settlement of the respective interests of the parties, accrued 
up to the date of termination. 

2.03 ABANDONMENT OR DEFAULT 
If the Provider defaults on the Contract, the Subrecipient reserves the right to cancel the 
Contract without notice and either re-solicit or re-award the Contract to the next best 
responsive and responsible vendor qualified under the Solicitation. The defaulting provider 
will not be considered in the re-solicitation and may not be considered in future 
solicitations for the same type of work, unless the specification or scope of work 
significantly changed. The period of suspension will be determined by the Subrecipient 
based on the seriousness of the default. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

55



III. CONSIDERATION

3.01 CONTRACT LIMIT, FEES, AND EXPENSES 
For Housing Administration fees are capped at 2% of the total CDBG-DR award 
amount.  Any expenses incurred in carrying out the program that are not directly 
connected to a specific project.  For Housing Administration Fees for Project delivery 
(PD) fees are capped at 10%. Which includes anything directly connected to the 
delivery of a specific project. 

For Non-Housing Administration fees are capped at the following percentages of 
award: 

All fees are reimbursable in increments as shown in the Benchmarks in Attachment C for 
the type of work to be performed.  The Grant Administration Fee shall not exceed the 
maximum amount available for such services as prescribed by the Subrecipient Agreement, 
the GLO, HUD or any governing law, for the term of this Contract.  The Subrecipient 
agrees to pay Provider in accordance with The Prompt Pay Act Tex. Govt. Code Ch. 2251.   

The form of invoice will be prescribed by the Subrecipient and made available to 
Provider in a separate submission from the Subrecipient. 

Grant funds must not be commingled between or among HUD funding rounds; nor 
between or among Non-Housing and Housing assignments.  

Reimbursement for services may be requested based on the Benchmarks, according to the 
type of services authorized, contingent upon Provider’s facilitation of the timely 
submission of each Quarterly Report required, as discussed in SECTION 1.04, above.   

At a minimum, invoices must clearly reflect: 

(a) Provider’s Contract Number;
(b) the name and GLO Contract Number (12 digits) of the Subrecipient

Agreement to which services have been provided;
(c) the current amount being billed;
(d) the cumulative amount billed previously;
(e) the balance remaining to be billed; and

56

Total CDBG-DR Award Project Delivery 

Fees 

$249,999.99 or less 11% 

$250,000.00 to $749,999.99 9% 

$750,000.00 to $999,999.99 8% 

Over $1,000,000.00 6% 



(f) an itemized statement of services performed, including documentation
as required under the Contract, such as invoices, receipts, statements,
stubs, tickets, time sheets, and any other which, in the judgment of the
Subrecipient, provides full substantiation of reimbursable costs
incurred.

Subject to the maximum Contract amount authorized herein, upon specific, prior, written 
approval by the Subrecipient, lodging, travel, and other incidental direct expenses may be 
reimbursed under this Contract for professional or technical personnel who are (a) away 
from the cities in which they are permanently assigned; (b) conducting business 
specifically authorized by the Subrecipient; and (c) performing services not originally 
contemplated in the Scope of Services.   
The limit for such reimbursements shall be the rates established by the Comptroller of the 
State of Texas, as outlined in the State of Texas travel guidelines, TexTravel. If a rate within 
the limits set forth in TexTravel is not available, Provider shall use its best efforts to obtain 
the lowest available room rate.  Provider shall obtain prior approval from the Subrecipient. 

NOTICE TO PROVIDER: 
Failure to include all of the information required in SECTION 3.01 with each invoice may result 

in a significant delay in processing payment for the invoice. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

57



MILESTONES 

:Not-To-Exceed Dra,v Percenta�es 

Milestones Construction EngineH·ing 
Grant Special 

Environmental Acquisition 
Administration En'l'ironmental 

Project Kick-Off 
Meeting and Start-up 15% 

Package 

Engineering Notice 
30% 

to Proceed 

Environmental 
30% 

Notice to Proceed 

100%Design 
60% 

Annroved 

Special 
Environmental 100% 

Report Annroved 
Authority to Use 

50% 100% 
Grant Funds 

Acquisition Start 100% 

Bid Advertise 70% 60% 

Construction Notice 
85% 85% 85% 

to Proceed 

As-Built/ 
100% 100% 95% 

COCC/FWCR 
Closeout Packet 

100% 
Annroved 

58

J 
• r 

. 

. 

• 

..a: 

. 

~r 



IV. PROVIDER’S WARRANTY, AFFIRMATIONS, AND ASSURANCES

4.01 PERFORMANCE WARRANTY 
Provider represents that all services performed under this Contract will be performed in a 
manner consistent with a degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the 
same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances.  Provider represents that 
all work product, including Deliverables if any, under this Contract shall be completed in a 
manner consistent with standards in the applicable trade, profession, or industry; shall 
conform to or exceed the specifications set forth in the incorporated Attachments (if any); 
and shall be fit for ordinary use, of good quality, and with no material defects.  If Provider 
fails to submit Deliverables timely or to perform satisfactorily under conditions required 
by this Contract, the Subrecipient may require Provider, at its sole expense, to the extent 
such defect or damage is caused by the negligence of Provider, to (a) repair or replace all 
defective or damaged Deliverables; (b) refund any payment received for all defective or 
damaged Deliverables and, in conjunction therewith, require Provider to accept the return 
of such Deliverables; and/or (c) take necessary action so that future performance and 
Deliverables conform to the Contract requirements. 

4.02 GENERAL AFFIRMATIONS 
To the extent that they are applicable, Provider further certifies that the General 
Affirmations in Attachment B have been reviewed, and that Provider is in compliance with 
each of the requirements reflected therein. 

4.03 FEDERAL ASSURANCES

To the extent that they are applicable, Provider further certifies that the Federal Assurances 
in Attachment A have been reviewed and that Provider is in compliance with each of the 
requirements reflected therein.  The Federal Assurance form must be executed by Provider’s 
authorized signatory. 

4.04 FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS 
To the extent that they are applicable, Provider further certifies that the Federal 
Certifications also in Attachment A have been reviewed, and that Provider is in 
compliance with each of the requirements reflected therein.  The Federal Certifications form 
must be executed by Provider’s authorized signatory. 

In addition, Provider certifies that it is in compliance with any other applicable federal 
laws, rules, or regulations, as they may pertain to this Contract including, but not limited 
to, those listed in Attachment C. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

59



V. FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDING, RECAPTURE OF FUNDS, AND OVERPAYMENT

5.01 FEDERAL FUNDING 
(a) Funding for this Contract is appropriated under the Transportation, Housing and

Urban Development, and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 2016, Pub. L. No.
114-113 enacted on December 18, 2015, to facilitate disaster recovery, restoration,
economic revitalization, and to affirmatively further fair housing in accordance
with Executive Order 12892, in areas affected by Hurricanes Dolly and Ike, which
are Presidentially-declared major disaster areas under Title IV of the Robert T.
Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5121 et seq.).
The fulfillment of this Contract is based on those funds being made available to the
GLO as the lead administrative state agency.  All expenditures under this Contract
must be made in accordance with this Contract, the rules and regulations
promulgated under the CDBG-DR Program, and any other applicable laws.
Further, Provider acknowledges that all funds are subject to recapture and
repayment for non-compliance.

(b) All participants in the CDBG-DR grant program must have a data universal
numbering system (DUNS) number, as well as a Commercial And
Government Entity (CAGE) Code.

(c) The DUNS number and CAGE Code must be reported to the GLO for use in
various grant reporting documents, and may be obtained by visiting the
Central Contractor Registration web site at:

https://www.bpn.gov/ccr/ 
Assistance with this web site may be obtained by calling 866-606-8220. 

5.02 STATE FUNDING 
(a) This Contract shall not be construed as creating any debt on behalf of the State of

Texas and/or the GLO in violation of Article III, Section 49, of the Texas Constitution.
In compliance with Article VIII, Section 6 of the Texas Constitution, it is understood
that all obligations of the GLO hereunder are subject to the availability of state funds.
If such funds are not appropriated or become unavailable, the Subrecipient, in its sole
discretion, may terminate this Contract.  In that event, the parties shall be discharged
from further obligations, subject to the equitable settlement of their respective
interests, accrued up to the date of termination.

(b) Furthermore, any claim by Provider for damages under this Contract may not exceed
the amount of funds appropriated for payment, but not yet paid to Provider, under
the annual budget in effect at the time of the breach.  Nothing in this provision shall
be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity.

5.03 RECAPTURE OF FUNDS 
Provider shall conduct, in a satisfactory manner as determined by the Subrecipient, the 
Project as set forth in the Contract.  The discretionary right of the Subrecipient to terminate 
for convenience under SECTION 2.02 notwithstanding, it is expressly understood and 

60

https://www.bpn.gov/ccr/


agreed by Provider that the Subrecipient shall have the right to terminate the Contract and 
to recapture, and be reimbursed for any payments made by the Subrecipient (i) that exceed 
the maximum allowable HUD rate; (ii) that are not allowed under applicable laws, rules, and 
regulations; or (iii) that are otherwise inconsistent with this Contract, including any 
unapproved expenditures. 

5.04 OVERPAYMENT 
Provider understands and agrees that it shall be liable to the Subrecipient or the GLO for 
any costs disallowed pursuant to financial and/or compliance audit(s) of funds received 
under this Contract.  Provider further understands and agrees that reimbursement of such 
disallowed costs shall be paid by Provider from funds which were not provided or 
otherwise made available to Provider under this Contract. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

61



VI. OWNERSHIP

6.01 OWNERSHIP AND THIRD PARTY RELIANCE 
(a) The Subrecipient shall own, and Provider hereby assigns to the GLO, all right, title,

and interest in all services to be performed; all goods to be delivered; and/or all
other related work product prepared, or in the course of preparation, by Provider (or
its subcontractors) pursuant to this Contract, together with all related worldwide
intellectual property rights of any kind or character (collectively, the “Work
Product”).  Under no circumstance will any license fee, royalty, or other
consideration not specified in this Contract be due to Provider for the assignment
of the Work Product to the GLO or for the GLO’s use and quiet enjoyment of the
Work Product in perpetuity.  Provider shall promptly submit all Work Product to
the GLO upon request or upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this
Contract for any reason, including all copies in any form or medium.

(b) Provider and the Subrecipient shall not use, willingly allow, or cause such Work
Product to be used for any purpose other than performance of Provider’s obligations
under this Contract without the prior written consent of either party and the GLO.
Work Product is for the exclusive use and benefit of, and may be relied upon only
by the parties.  Prior to distributing any Work Product to any third party, other than
the GLO, the parties shall advise such third parties that if it relies upon or uses such
Work Product, it does so entirely at its own risk without liability to the GLO,
Provider, or the Subrecipient.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

62



VII. RECORDS, AUDIT, RETENTION, CONFIDENTIALITY, PUBLIC RECORDS

7.01 BOOKS AND RECORDS 
Provider shall keep and maintain under GAAP or GASB, as applicable, full, true, and 
complete records necessary to fully disclose to the Subrecipient, the GLO, the State of Texas 
Auditor’s Office, the United States Government, and/or their authorized representatives 
sufficient information to determine compliance with the terms and conditions of this Contract 
and all state and federal rules, regulations, and statutes. 

7.02 INSPECTION AND AUDIT 
(a) Provider agrees that all relevant records related to this Contract and any Work Product

produced in relation to this Contract, including the records and Work Product of its
Subcontractors, shall be subject to the Administrative and Audit Regulations.
Accordingly, such records and Work Product shall be subject, at any time, to
inspection, examination, audit, and copying at any location where such records and
Work Product may be found, with or without notice from the Subrecipient, the GLO,
HUD, or other government entity with necessary legal authority.  Provider agrees to
cooperate fully with any federal or state entity in the conduct of inspection,
examination, audit, and copying, including providing all information requested.
Provider will ensure that this clause concerning federal and state entities’ authority to
inspect, examine, audit, and copy records and Work Product, and the requirement to
fully cooperate with the federal and state entities, is included in any subcontract it
awards.

(b) Provider understands that acceptance of state funds under this Contract acts as
acceptance of the authority of the State Auditor’s Office to conduct an audit or
investigation in connection with those funds.  Provider further agrees to cooperate fully
with the State Auditor’s Office in the conduct of the audit or investigation, including
providing all records requested.  Provider will ensure that this clause concerning the
State Auditor’s Office’s authority to audit state funds and the requirement to fully
cooperate with the State Auditor’s Office is included in any subcontracts it awards.
Additionally, the State Auditor’s Office shall at any time have access to and the rights
to examine, audit, excerpt, and transcribe any pertinent books, documents, working
papers, and records of Provider relating to the Contract for any purpose. HUD, the
Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office of Inspector General, or
any authorized representative of the U.S. Government shall also have this right of
inspection. PROVIDER SHALL ENSURE THAT ALL SUBCONTRACTS AWARDED REFLECT
THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS SECTION 7.02, AND THE REQUIREMENT TO COOPERATE.

(c) Provider will be deemed to have read and have knowledge of all applicable federal,
state, and local laws, regulations, and rules including, but not limited to those identified
in Attachment D, governing audit requirements pertaining to the Project.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

63



7.03 PERIOD OF RETENTION 
All records relevant to this Contract shall be retained for a period subsequent to the final 
closeout of the State of Texas CDBG-DR grant program, in accordance with federal 
regulations.  The Subrecipient will notify all Program participants of the date upon 
which local records may be destroyed. 

7.04 CONFIDENTIALITY 
To the extent permitted by law, Provider and the Subrecipient agree to keep all information 
confidential, in whatever form produced, prepared, observed, or received by Provider or 
the Subrecipient to the extent that such information is: (a) confidential by law; (b) marked 
or designated “confidential” (or words to that effect) by Provider or the Subrecipient; or 
(c) information that Provider or the Subrecipient is otherwise required to keep confidential
by this Contract.  Furthermore, Provider will not advertise that it is doing business with the
Subrecipient, use this Contract as a marketing or sales tool, or make any press releases
concerning work under this Contract without the prior written consent of the Subrecipient.

7.05 PUBLIC RECORDS 
Information related to the performance of this Contract may be subject to the Public 
Information Act (“PIA”) and will be withheld from public disclosure or released only in 
accordance therewith.  Provider shall make any information required under the PIA available 
to the Subrecipient in portable document file (“.pdf”) format or any other format agreed 
between the Parties.  Failure of Provider to mark as “confidential” or a “trade secret” any 
information that it believes to be excepted from disclosure waives any and all claims Provider 
may make against the Subrecipient for releasing such information without prior notice to 
Provider.  Provider shall notify the Subrecipient within twenty-four (24) hours of receipt 
of any third party written requests for information, and forward a copy of said written 
requests to the Subrecipient.   If the request was not written, Provider shall forward the 
third party's contact information to the Subrecipient.  

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

64



VIII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

8.01 INSURANCE 
Provider shall acquire for the duration of this Contract insurance with financially sound and 
reputable insurers licensed by the Texas Department of Insurance, in the type and amount 
and in the form required by Attachment E of this Contract, REQUIRED INSURANCE AND
FORM.  Furthermore, Provider shall submit a certificate of liability insurance as required 
under this Contract, including (if requested) a schedule of coverage (or “underwriter’s 
schedules”) establishing to the satisfaction of the Subrecipient the nature and extent of 
coverage granted by each policy.  

Provider shall submit certificates of insurance and endorsements electronically, in the 
manner requested by the Subrecipient. In the event that any policy is determined to be 
deficient to comply with the terms of this Contract, Provider shall secure such additional 
policies or coverage as the Subrecipient may reasonably request or that are required by law 
or regulation.  

Provider will be responsible for submitting renewed certificates of insurance and 
endorsements, as evidence of insurance coverage throughout the term of this Contract. 
Provider may not be actively working on behalf of the Subrecipient if the insurance coverage 
does not adhere to insurance requirements.  Failure to submit required insurance documents 
may result in the cancellation of this Contract. 

8.02 TAXES/WORKERS’ COMPENSATION/UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

PROVIDER AGREES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT DURING THE EXISTENCE 
OF THIS CONTRACT, PROVIDER SHALL BE ENTIRELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 
LIABILITY AND PAYMENT OF PROVIDER’S AND PROVIDER'S EMPLOYEES’ 
TAXES OF WHATEVER KIND, ARISING OUT OF THE PERFORMANCES IN THIS 
CONTRACT.  PROVIDER AGREES TO COMPLY WITH ALL STATE AND 
FEDERAL LAWS APPLICABLE TO ANY SUCH PERSONS, INCLUDING LAWS 
REGARDING WAGES, TAXES, INSURANCE, AND WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
THE SUBRECIPIENT SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE PROVIDER, ITS 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR OTHERS FOR THE PAYMENT OF TAXES OR THE 
PROVISION OF UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AND/ OR WORKERS’ 
COMPENSATION OR ANY BENEFIT AVAILABLE TO A STATE EMPLOYEE OR 
EMPLOYEE OF ANOTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY CUSTOMER. 2) 
PROVIDER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE 
SUBRECIPIENT, THE GLO, THE STATE OF TEXAS AND/OR THEIR EMPLOYEES, 
AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS, AND/OR ASSIGNEES FROM 
ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, ACTIONS, CLAIMS, DEMANDS, OR SUITS, AND ALL 
RELATED COSTS, ATTORNEYS’ FEES, AND EXPENSES, RELATING TO TAX 
LIABILITY, UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AND/OR WORKERS’ 
COMPENSATION IN ITS PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS CONTRACT.  PROVIDER 
SHALL BE LIABLE TO PAY ALL COSTS OF DEFENSE INCLUDING ATTORNEYS’ 
FEES.  THE DEFENSE SHALL BE COORDINATED BY PROVIDER WITH THE 
SUBRECIPIENT NAMED AS A DEFENDANT IN ANY LAWSUIT AND PROVIDER 

65



MAY NOT AGREE TO ANY SETTLEMENT WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE 
CONCURRENCE FROM THE SUBRECIPIENT.  PROVIDER AND THE 
SUBRECIPIENT AGREE TO FURNISH TIMELY WRITTEN NOTICE TO EACH 
OTHER OF ANY SUCH CLAIM. 

8.03 LEGAL OBLIGATIONS 
Provider shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Contract any state, county, city, 
or federal license, authorization, insurance, waiver, permit, qualification or certification 
required by statute, ordinance, law, or regulation to be held by Provider to provide the 
goods or services required by this Contract.  Provider will be responsible for payment of 
all taxes, assessments, fees, premiums, permits, and licenses required by law.  Provider 
agrees to be responsible for payment of any such government obligations not paid by its 
subcontractors during performance of this Contract. 

8.04 INDEMNITY

EXCEPT FOR DAMAGES DIRECTLY OR PROXIMATELY CAUSED BY THE GROSS
NEGLIGENCE OF THE SUBRECIPIENT OR THE GLO, PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND
HOLD HARMLESS THE SUBRECIPIENT, THE STATE OF TEXAS, THE GLO, AND THE
OFFICERS, REPRESENTATIVES, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES OF THE SUBRECIPIENT, THE
STATE OF TEXAS, AND THE GLO FROM ANY LOSSES, CLAIMS, SUITS, ACTIONS, DAMAGES,
OR LIABILITY (INCLUDING ALL COSTS AND EXPENSES OF DEFENDING AGAINST ALL OF THE
AFOREMENTIONED) ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH: 

 THIS CONTRACT;
 ANY NEGLIGENCE, ACT, OMISSION, OR MISCONDUCT IN THE

PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICES REFERENCED HEREIN; OR

 ANY CLAIMS OR AMOUNTS ARISING OR RECOVERABLE UNDER FEDERAL OR
STATE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION LAWS, THE TEXAS TORT CLAIMS ACT,
OR ANY OTHER SUCH LAWS.

PROVIDER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAFETY AND WELL BEING OF ITS
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS, AND INVITEES.  THESE REQUIREMENTS SHALL SURVIVE THE
TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT UNTIL ALL CLAIMS HAVE BEEN SETTLED OR RESOLVED AND
SUITABLE EVIDENCE TO THAT EFFECT HAS BEEN FURNISHED TO THE SUBRECIPIENT.  THE
PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION 8.03 SHALL SURVIVE TERMINATION OF THIS CONTRACT.  

8.05 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS 
Provider shall not assign, transfer, or delegate any rights, obligations, or duties under this 
Contract without the prior written consent of the Subrecipient.  Notwithstanding this 
provision, it is mutually understood and agreed that Provider may subcontract with others for 
some or all of the services to be performed.  In any approved subcontracts, Provider shall 
legally bind such subcontractor to perform and make such subcontractor subject to all the 
duties, requirements, and obligations of Provider as specified in this Contract.  Nothing in this 
Contract shall be construed to relieve Provider of the responsibility for ensuring that the goods 

66



delivered and/or the services rendered by Provider and/or any of its subcontractors comply 
with all the terms and provisions of this Contract.  Provider will provide written notification 
to the Subrecipient of any such subcontractor performing fifteen percent (15%) or more of 
the work under this Contract, including the name and taxpayer identification number of 
subcontractor, the task(s) being performed, and the number of subcontractor employees 
expected to work on the task. 

8.06 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 
Provider is associated with the Subrecipient only for the purposes and to the extent specified 
in this Contract, and, with respect to Provider’s performance pursuant to this Contract, 
Provider is and shall be an independent contractor and, subject only to the terms of this 
Contract, shall have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct 
performance of the details incident to its duties under this Contract.  Nothing contained in 
this Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create 
relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create for the 
Subrecipient or the GLO any liability whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, 
and obligations of Provider or any other party.  Provider shall be solely responsible for, and 
the Subrecipient shall have no obligation with respect to: 

(a) withholding of income taxes, FICA, or any other taxes or fees;
(b) industrial or workers’ compensation insurance coverage;
(c) participation in any group insurance plans available to employees of the State of

Texas;
(d) participation or contributions by the State to the State Employees Retirement System;
(e) accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave; or
(f) unemployment compensation coverage provided by the State.

8.07 COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LAWS 
In the performance of this Contract, Provider shall comply with all applicable federal, state, 
and local laws, ordinances, and regulations.  Provider shall make itself familiar with and at 
all times shall observe and comply with all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and 
regulations that in any manner affect performance under this Contract including, but not 
limited to, those attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes as Attachment 
D. Provider will be deemed to have knowledge of all applicable laws and regulations and
be deemed to understand them.

8.08 NOTICES 
Any notices required under this Contract shall be deemed delivered when deposited either in 
the United States mail, postage paid, certified, return receipt requested; or with a common 
carrier, overnight, signature required, to the appropriate address below: 
Subrecipient 
City of Wimberley
221 Stillwater
P.O. Box 2027
Wimberley TX 78676
Attention: Susan Jagger, Mayor

67



Provider 
LANGFORD COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC 
2901 CR 175 
Leander, Texas 78641 
Attention: Judy Langford. President 

Notice given in any other manner shall be deemed effective only if and when received by the 
party to be notified.  Either party may change its address for notice by written notice to the 
other party as herein provided. 

8.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be governed by, and 
construed according to, the laws of the State of Texas, exclusive of conflicts of law 
provisions.  Venue of any suit between Subrecipient and Provider under this Contract shall 
be in a court of competent jurisdiction in Hays County, Texas.  Provider irrevocably 
waives any objection, including any objection to personal jurisdiction or the laying 
of venue or based on the grounds of forum non conveniens, which it may now or 
hereafter have to the bringing of any action or proceeding in such jurisdiction in 
respect of this Contract or any document related hereto.   

8.11 SEVERABILITY 
If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of law or 
equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the non-
enforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or 
provisions of this Contract unenforceable. 

8.12 FORCE MAJEURE 
Except with respect to the obligation of payments under this Contract, if either of the parties, 
after a good faith effort, is prevented from complying with any express or implied covenant 
of this Contract by reason of war; terrorism; rebellion; riots; strikes; acts of God; any valid 
order, rule, or regulation of governmental authority; or similar events that are beyond the 
control of the affected party (collectively referred to as a “Force Majeure”), then, while so 
prevented, the affected party’s obligation to comply with such covenant shall be suspended, 
and the affected party shall not be liable for damages for failure to comply with such 
covenant.  In any such event, the party claiming Force Majeure shall promptly notify the 
other party of the Force Majeure event in writing and, if possible, such notice shall set forth 
the extent and duration thereof.  The party claiming Force Majeure shall exercise due 
diligence to prevent, eliminate, or overcome such Force Majeure event where it is possible 
to do so and shall resume performance at the earliest possible date.  However, if non-
performance continues for more than thirty (30) days, the GLO may terminate this Contract 
immediately upon written notification to Provider.  

68



8.13 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
If the CDBG program imposes a reduction in administrative grant funds due to non-
compliance and/or disallowed costs as stipulated by the agency, the contracting parties will 
negotiate an agreement of payment.  If the non-compliance and/or disallowed costs is (are) 
not the fault or in control of the consulting firm, the City will be responsible for the 
difference in grant funds.  If the negotiation phase between the contracting entities does 
not reach an agreement, executives of the contracting entities, with decision-making 
authority, will enter into mediation to facilitate a settlement by employing a skilled neutral, 
not to impose a solution, but to assist the parties in reaching agreement.  A final binding 
Arbitration Phase will occur in case the non-binding phase produces no settlement. 

8.14 ENTIRE CONTRACT AND MODIFICATION 
This Contract, its integrated Attachment(s), and any Technical Guidance issued in 
conjunction with this Contract, if any, constitute the entire agreement of the parties and are 
intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, 
negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection 
with the subject matter hereof.  Any additional or conflicting terms in such Attachment(s), 
Technical Guidance Letter shall be harmonized with this Contract to the extent possible. 
Unless such integrated Attachment, Technical Guidance Letter, or Revision specifically 
displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this Contract, general conflicts in 
language shall be construed consistently with the terms of this Contract. 

8.15 COUNTERPARTS 
This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an 
original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same Contract.  
If the Contract is not executed by the GLO within thirty (30) days of execution by the other 
party, this Contract shall be null and void.  In the sole discretion of the GLO, Work Orders 
issued, if any, may be executed by the parties in counterparts exchanged by electronic mail. 

8.16 THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY 
The Parties agree that the GLO, as the administrator of the CDBG-DR program, is a third-
party beneficiary to this Contract and that the GLO shall have the right to enforce any 
provision of this Contract.  Provided, however, that GLO shall only enforce a provision 
Contract after notifying the Parties, in writing, of a potential breach or default of the 
Contract and allowing the Provider sixty (60) days to cure the breach or default. Venue of 
any suit under this Section 8.17 shall be in a court of competent jurisdiction in Hays 
County, Texas.  Provider irrevocably waives any objection, including any objection to 
personal jurisdiction or the laying of venue or based on the grounds of forum non 
conveniens, which it may now or hereafter have to the bringing of any action or proceeding 
in such jurisdiction in respect of this Contract or any document related hereto. NOTHING
IN THIS SECTION SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS A WAIVER OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY BY THE 
GLO. 

8.17 PROPER AUTHORITY

69



by Provider before this Contract is effective or after it ceases to be effective are perfonned 
at the sole risk of Provider. 

IN WITNESSETH WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by causing the same to 

be signed on the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF WIMBERLEY 

BY: 2>,,1.o-clh h �5,.<N--
(Loca1 Official) 

Su.St.-o Ac,.�g.-f ..s
(PrintedN 

Mayor 
(fitle) . . 

BY: 

Judy Langford 
(Printed Name) 

President 
(Title) 

70



0MB Approval No. 0348-0042 

ASSURANCES - CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing 

instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 

information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for 
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0042), Washington, DC 20503. 

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. 

SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY. 

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the 

Awarding Agency. Further, certain Federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional 
assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant: 

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance,

and the institutional, managerial and financial capability

(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share 

of project costs) to ensure proper planning,

management and completion of the project described in

this application.

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General 

of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, 

through any authorized representative, access to and 

the right to examine all records, books, papers, or 

documents related to the assistance; and will establish

a proper accounting system in accordance with

generally accepted accounting standards or agency 

directives. 

3. Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the

terms of the real property title, or other interest in the

site and facilities without permission and instructions

from the awarding agency. Will record the Federal

interest in the title of real property in accordance with 

awarding agency directives and will include a covenant 

in the title of real property aquired in whole or in part

with Federal assistance funds to assure non

discrimination during the useful life of the project. 

4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance
awarding agency with regard to the drafting. review and
approval of construction plans and specifications.

5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate 

engineering supervision at the construction site to 
ensure that the complete work conforms with the 
approved plans and specifications and will furnish
progress reports and such other information as may be

required by the assistance awarding agency or State.

6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable
time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding

agency. 

7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from 

using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or 

presents the appearance of personal or organizational

conflict of interest, or personal gain.

8. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act

of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed

standards for merit systems for programs funded 

under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in 

Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of

Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R 900, Subpart F).

9. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning 

Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which 

prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or

rehabilitation of residence structures.

10. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to non

discrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a}

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352)

which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race,

color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education

Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-

1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination

on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 

§794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 

handicaps; (d} the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as 

amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse 

Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as 

amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of
drug abuse: (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation
Act of 1970 (P.l. 91-616), as amended, relating to
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or
alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health
Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee-
3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol
and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as

amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, 

rental or financing of housing; (i) any other 

nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) 

under which application for Federal assistance is being 

made; and, U) the requirements of any other 

nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the

application.

Previous Edition Usable Authorized for Local Reproduction 

Standard Form 424D (Rev. 7-97) 

Prescribed by 0MB Circular A-102 

Attachment A
Page 1 of 5

71



President

Langford Community Management Services, Inc.

Judy Langford

Attachment A
Page 2 of 5

May 17, 2018

72

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

Will comply, or has already complied, with the 
requirements of Titles II and Ill of the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable 
treatment of persons displaced or whose property is 
acquired as a result of Federal and federally-assisted 
programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real 
property acquired for project purposes regardless of 
Federal participation in purchases. 

Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 
§§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political 
activities of employees whose principal employment 
activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. 

Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act 
(40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C §874), and the Contract 
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-
333) regarding labor standards for federally-assisted 
construction subagreements. 

Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of 
Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 
(P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood 
hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase 
flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction 
and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

Will comply with environmental standards which may be 
prescribed pursuant to the following : (a) institution of 
environmental quality control measures under the 

16. 

17. 

18. 

National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-
190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification 
of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) 
protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) 
evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance 
with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency 
with the approved State management program 
developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 
1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq .); (f) conformity of 
Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation 
Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 
1955, as amended (42 U.S C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) 
protection of underground sources of drinking water 
under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as 
amended (P .L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of 
endangered species under the Endangered Species Act 
of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205). 

Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 
1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting 
components or potential components of the national 
wild and scen ic rivers system . 

Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance 
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 
Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 
(identification and protection of historic properties), and 
the Archaeologica l and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.). 

Will cause to be performed the required financial and 
compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit 
Act Amendments of 1996 and 0MB Circular No. A-133, 
"Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations." 

19. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other 
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies 
governing this program. 

TITLE 

DATE SUBMITTED 

SF-424D (Rev. 7•97) Back 

jcoover
Typewritten Text
THIS FORM MUST BE EXECUTED



Langford Community Management Services, Inc. GLO 2015 Disaster CDBG

Judy Langford, President

Attachment A
Page 3 of 5

May 17, 2018

73

FORM CD-512 
(REV 12-04) 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

Applicants should review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form. Signature 
on this form provides for compliance with ce,rtification requirements under 15 CFR Part 28, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." 

LOBBYING 
As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and 
implemented at 15 CFR Part 28, for persons entering into a grant, 
cooperative agreement or contract over $100,000 or a loan or loan 
guarantee over $150,000 as defined at 15 CFR Part 28, Sections 
28.105 and 28.110, the applicant certifies that to the best of his or her 
knowledge and belief, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, 
by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any 
Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of 
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been 
paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and 
submit Standard Fonn-LLL, "Disclosure Fonn to Report Lobbying," 
in accordance with its instructions. 

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this 
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at 
all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients 
shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which 
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. 
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. 
Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 
than $100,000 for each such failure occurring on or before 
October 23, 1996, and of not less than $11,000 and not more 
than $1110,000 for each such failure occurring after October 23, 
1996. 

Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance 

The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge 
and belief, that: 

In any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this commitment providing for the United 
States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form 
to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 

Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required state
ment shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure occurring 
on or before October 23, 1996, and of not less than $11,000 
and not more than $110,000 for each such failure occurring 
after October 23, 1996. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the 
above applicable certification. 

NAME OF APPLICANT AWARD NUMBER AND/OR PROJECT NAME 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

DATE 

jcoover
Typewritten Text
THIS FORM MUST BE EXECUTED



N/A

Attachment A
Page 4 of 5

74

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 

(See reverse for public burden disclosure.) 
1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of Federal Action: 3. Report Type: D a. contract 

b. grant 
o a. bid/offer/application 

b. initial award 
D a. initial filing 

b. material change 
c. cooperative agreement c. post-award For Material Change Only: 
d. loan year quarter 
e. loan guarantee date of last report 
f. loan insurance 

Approved by 0MB 

0348-0046 

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity: 5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name 
0 Prime 0 Subawardee and Address of Prime: 

Tier I if known: 

Congressional District, if known: 4c Congressional District, if known: 
6. Federal DepartmenUAgency: 7. Federal Program Name/Description: 

CFDA Number, if applicable: 

8. Federal Action Number, if known: 9. Award Amount, if known: 

$ 

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if 
( if individual, last name, first name, M/): different from No. 1 Oa) 

(last name, first name, Ml): 

11 Information requested through this form is authorized by tit le 31 U.S.C. section 
• 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities 1s a matenal representation of fact 

Signature: 
upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made 

Print Name: or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This 
information will be available for public inspection. A!ly person who fails to file the 

Title: required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and 
not more than $100,000 for each such failure . 

Telephone No.: Date: 

Federal Use Only: I Authorized for Local Reproduction 

. ' n Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97) 

JCoover
Typewritten Text
THIS FORM SHOULD BE EXECUTED ONLY WHEN REPORTING LOBBYING ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN WITH GRANT FUNDS



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal 
action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make 
payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employeeof a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material 
change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information. 

1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action. 

2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action. 

3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter 
the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal 
action. 

4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification 
of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee 
of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants. 

5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee," then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal 

recipient. Include Congressional District, if known. 

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizationallevel below agency name, if known. For 

example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard. 

7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1 ). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 

(CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments. 

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number; 
Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number 
assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001." 

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan 

commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting 

entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action. 

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and 

Middle Initial (Ml).

11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number. 

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid 0MB Control 
Number. The valid 0MB control number for this information collection is 0MB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is 
estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data 
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of 
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, 
DC 20503. 

Attachment A
Page 5 of 5

75



GENERAL AFFIRMATIONS 

Provider agrees without exception to the following affirmations: 

1. Provider certifies that he/she/it has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at anytime
hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan gratuity, special discount, trip,
favor, or service to a public servant in connection with the Contract.

2. Provider certifies that neither Provider nor any firm, corporation, partnership, or institution
represented by Provider or anyone acting for such firm, corporation, partnership, or institution has
(1) violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas under Texas Business & Commerce Code,
Chapter 15, or federal antitrust laws; or (2) communicated the contents of the Contract or proposal
either directly or indirectly to any competitor or any other person engaged in the same line of
business during the procurement process for the Contract or proposal.

3. Provider certifies that if its business address shown on the Contract is a Texas address, that address
is the legal business address of Provider and Provider qualifies as a Texas Resident Bidder under
Texas Administrative Code, Title 34, Part 1, Chapter 20.

4. Section 2155.004 of the Texas Government Code prohibits the award of a contract that includes
proposed financial participation by a person who received compensation from the Subrecipient to
participate in preparing the specifications or request for proposals on which the Contract is based.
Under Section 2155.004, Government Code, the vendor [Provider] certifies that the individual or
business entity named in this bid or Contract is not ineligible to receive the specified Contract and
acknowledges that the Contract may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is
inaccurate.

5. Under Texas Family Code section 231.006, a child support obligor who is more than 30 days
delinquent in paying child support and a business entity in which the obligor is a sole proprietor,
partner, shareholder, or owner with an ownership interest of at least 25 percent is not eligible to
receive payments from state funds under a contract to provide property, materials, or services.
Under Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, the vendor or applicant [Provider] certifies that the
individual or business entity named in this Contract, bid, or application is not ineligible to receive
the specified grant, loan, or payment and acknowledges that this Contract may be terminated and
payment may be withheld if this certification is inaccurate.

6. Provider agrees that any payments due under the Contract will be applied towards any debt,
including but not limited to delinquent taxes and child support, Provider owes to the State of Texas.

7. The Subrecipient is federally mandated to adhere to the directions provided in the President’s
Executive Order (EO) 13224, blocking property and prohibiting transactions with persons who
commit, threaten to commit, or support terrorism and any subsequent changes made to it. The
Subrecipient will cross-reference Providers/vendors with the federal System for Award
Management (https://www.sam.gov/), which includes the United States Treasury’s Office of
Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) Specially Designated National (SDN) list.

8. Provider certifies: 1) that the responding entity and its principals are eligible to participate in this
transaction and have not been subjected to suspension, debarment, or similar ineligibility
determined by any federal, state, or local governmental entity; 2) that Provider is in compliance
with the State of Texas statutes and rules relating to procurement; and 3) that Provider is not listed
on the federal government's terrorism watch list as described in Executive Order 13224. Entities
ineligible for federal procurement are listed at https://www.sam.gov/.

76

https://www.sam.gov/
https://www.sam.gov/


9. Under Section 2155.006(b) of the Texas Government Code, the Subrecipient may not enter into a
contract that includes proposed financial participation by a person who, during the five year period
preceding the date of the bid or award, has been: (1) convicted of violating a federal law in
connection with a contract awarded by the federal government for relief, recovery, or reconstruction 
efforts as a result of Hurricane Rita, as defined by Section 39.459, Utilities Code, Hurricane
Katrina, or any other disaster occurring after September 24, 2005; or (2) assessed a penalty in a
federal civil or administrative enforcement action in connection with a contract awarded by the
federal government for relief, recovery, or reconstruction  efforts as a result of Hurricane Rita, as
defined by Section 39.459, Utilities Code, Hurricane Katrina, or any other disaster occurring after
September 24, 2005. Under Section 2155.006 of the Texas Government Code, Provider certifies
that the individual or business entity named in the Contract is not ineligible to receive the specified
Contract and acknowledges that the Contract may be terminated and payment withheld if this
certification is inaccurate.

10. The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving state funds directly
under the Contract or indirectly through a subcontract under the Contract. Acceptance of funds
directly under the Contract or indirectly through a subcontract under the Contract acts as acceptance
of the authority of the state auditor, under the direction of the legislative audit committee, to conduct 
an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. Under the direction of the legislative audit
committee, an entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation by the state auditor must provide
the state auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers relevant to the
investigation or audit. Provider shall ensure that this clause concerning the authority to audit funds
received indirectly by subcontractors through Provider and the requirement to cooperate is included
in any subcontract it awards.

11. Provider understands that the neither the Subrecipient nor the GLO tolerate any type of fraud.  The
Subrecipient’s policy is to promote consistent, legal, and ethical organizational behavior by
assigning responsibilities and providing guidelines to enforce controls.  Any violations of law,
agency policies, or standards of ethical conduct will be investigated, and appropriate actions will
be taken.  Providers are expected to report any possible fraudulent or dishonest acts, waste, or abuse
affecting any transaction with the GLO to the GLO's Internal Audit Director at 512.463.5338 or to
tracey.hall@glo.texas.gov.

NOTE: Information, documentation, and other material related to this Contract may be subject to 
public disclosure pursuant to the "Public Information Act," Chapter 552 of the Texas Government 
Code. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

77



TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE 
GRANT ADMINISTRATION 

SERVICES  
SCOPE OF WORK 

SCOPE OF SERVICES REQUESTED ................................................................................ 2 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS ....................................... 2 
GRANT ADMINISTRATION SERVICES – INFRASTRUCTURE .................................. 5 
GRANT ADMINISTRATION SERVICES – RENTAL HOUSING ................................... 7 
GRANT ADMINISTRATION SERVICES – NON-RENTAL HOUSING ....................... 13 

Attachment C – Scope of Work 

78

TE ' L DO FI E 
GR T D 11 I R TIO 

\ I 
OP OF\ ORK 



SCOPE OF SERVICES REQUESTED 
Providers will help the GLO fulfill State and Federal Community Development 
Block Grant Disaster Recovery (“CDBG-DR”) statutory responsibilities related to 
recovery in connection with any federally declared disaster. Providers will assist 
the GLO and/or grant recipients in completion of CDBG-DR qualified housing or 
non-housing projects. Respondents may be qualified to provide Grant 
Administration services for housing projects, non-housing projects, or both.  Grant 
administrative services must be performed in compliance with the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) and guidelines issued by the GLO. 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
Respondent must be able to perform the tasks listed herein to be considered eligible 
for an award under this Solicitation. Respondents should provide a detailed 
narrative of their experience as it relates to each of the items below. Respondents 
should clearly indicate if they intend to provide services in-house with existing staff 
or through subcontracting or partnership arrangements. Grant Administration 
Services will be provided in conformance with the guidance documents and use 
forms provided by the subrecipient utilizing GLO guidance. The providers shall 
furnish pre-funding and post-funding grant administrative services to complete the 
disaster recovery projects, including, but not limited to the following: 

Pre-Funding Services 
Grant Administrator will develop project scope and complete CDBG-DR 
application.  The provider will work with the subrecipient and Engineering, if 
applicable, to provide the concise information needed for submission of complete 
disaster recovery funding application and related documents.  The required 
information shall be submitted in a format to be described by the GLO.   

Post-Funding Services 
Grant Administrator will administer and complete infrastructure, utilities, housing 
and eligible projects approved for disaster recovery funding. The selected 
administrative firm must follow all requirements of the Texas CDBG Disaster 
Recovery program. 

79



Grant Administration Services – General 
(a) Administrative Duties:

i. Coordinate, as necessary, between subrecipient and any other
appropriate service providers (i.e. Engineer, Environmental, etc.),
contractor, subcontractor and GLO to effectuate the services
requested.

ii. May assist in public hearings.

iii. Will work with GLO’s system of record.

iv. Provide monthly project status updates.

v. Funding release will be based on deliverables identified in the
contract.

vi. Labor and procurement duties:

a. Provide all Labor Standards Officer (LSO) Services.

b. Ensure compliance with all relevant labor standards
regulations.

c. Ensure compliance with procurement regulations and
policies.

d. Maintain document files to support compliance.

vii. Financial duties:

a. Prepare and submit all required reports (Section 3,
Financial Interest, etc.).

b. Assist subrecipient with the procurement of audit services.

c. Assist subrecipient in establishing and maintaining a bank
account for disaster recovery funds.

d. Implementation and coordination of Affirmatively
Furthering Fair Housing (“AFFH”) requirements as
directed by HUD and the GLO.

e. Implementation and coordination of Section 504
requirements.

f. Program compliance.

80



g. Ensure that fraud prevention and abuse practices are in
place and being implemented.

h. Prepare and submit all closeout documents.

i. Submit all invoices no later than 60 days after the
expiration of the contract. All outstanding funds may be
swept after 60 days. The provider may request an extension
of this requirement in writing.

j. Assist in preparation of contract revisions and supporting
documents including but not limited to:

• Amendments/modifications,

• Change orders.

(b) Construction Management

i. The provider will assist the subrecipient in submitting/setting up
project applications in the GLO’s system of record.

ii. The provider may compile and collate complete contract/bid
packages that meet GLO program requirements. The packages will
contain supporting documentation that meets or exceeds the
requirements of the GLO’s program. If applications do not have
the necessary forms, the provider may assist the subrecipient by
coordinating to acquire the necessary documentation.

iii. The provider may monitor, report, and evaluate contractor's
performance; notify the subrecipient if the contractor(s) fails to
meet established scheduled milestones. Receive, review,
recommend, and process any change orders as appropriate to the
individual projects.

iv. The provider may assist the subrecipient with project Activity
Draws/Close Out.

v. The provider may assist the subrecipient by submitting all the
necessary documentation for draws and to close a project activity
in the GLO’s system of record. The provider will compile, review
for completeness, and collate complete contract/closeout packages
that meet GLO program requirements for draw requests. If
applications do not have the necessary forms, the provider may
assist the subrecipient by coordinating to acquire the necessary
documentation.

vi. The provider may assist the subrecipient in developing

81



Architectural and Engineering plans with guidance from the GLO. 

vii. Reassignment scope alignment (if necessary).

Grant Administration Services – Infrastructure 

a) Administrative Duties:

i. Ensure program compliance including all CDBG-DR requirements
and all part’s therein, current Federal Register, etc.

ii. Assist subrecipient in establishing and maintaining financial
processes.

iii. Obtain and maintain copies of the subrecipient’s most current
contract including all related change requests, revisions and
attachments.

iv. Establish and maintain record keeping systems.

v. Assist subrecipient with resolving monitoring and audit findings.

vi. Serve as monitoring liaison.

vii. Assist subrecipient with resolving third party claims.

viii. Report suspected fraud to the GLO.

ix. Submit timely responses to the GLO requests for additional
information.

x. Complete draw request forms and supporting documents.

xi. Facilitate outreach efforts, application intake, and eligibility
review.

xii. Perform any other administrative duty required to deliver the
project.

xiii. Utilize and assist with GLO’s system of record to complete
milestones, submit documentation, reports, draws, change requests,
etc.

xiv. Submit change requests and all required documentation related to
any change requests.

(b) Acquisition Duties:

i. Submit acquisition reports and related documents.

82



ii. Establish acquisition files (if necessary).

iii. Complete acquisition activities (if necessary).

(c) Environmental Services

i. Assist detailed scope of services

a. Review each Review each project description to
ascertain and/or verify the level of environmental review
required: Exempt, Categorical Exclusion not Subject to
58.5, Categorical Exclusion Subject to 58.5,
Environmental Assessment, and Environmental Impact
Statements;

b. Prepare, complete and submit HUD required forms for
environmental review and provide all documentation to
support environmental findings;

c. Consult and coordinate with oversight/regulatory
agencies to facilitate environmental clearance;

d. Be able to perform or contract special studies, additional
assessments, or permitting to secure environmental
clearance. These may include, but are not limited to
biological assessments, wetland delineations, asbestos
surveys, lead-based paint assessments, archeology
studies, architectural reviews, Phase I & II ESAs,
USACE permits, etc.;

e. Prepare all responses to comments received during
comment phase of the environmental review, including
State/Federal Agency requiring further studies and/or
comments from public or private entities during public
comment period;

f. Maintain close coordination with local officials, project
engineer and other members of the project team to assure
appropriate level of environmental review is performed
and no work is conducted without authorization;

g. Complete and submit the environmental review into
GLO’s system of record;

h. At least one site visit to project location and
completion of a field observation report

i. Prepare and submit for publication all public

83



notices including, but not limited to the Notice of 
Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI), 
Request for Release of Funds floodplain/wetland 
early and final notices in required order and 
sequence; 

j. Provide documentation of clearance for Parties
Known to be Interested as required by 24 CFR
58.43;

k. Process environmental review and clearance in
accordance with NEPA;

l. Advise and complete environmental re-
evaluations per 24 CFR 58.47 when evidence of
further clearance or assessment is required;

m. Prepare and submit Monthly Status Report; and

n. Participate in regularly scheduled progress
meetings.

Grant Administration Services – Rental Housing 

a) Administrative Duties:

i. Develop and submit for approval rental guidelines.

ii. Assist the grant recipient in developing a Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA).

iii. Develop and submit for approval an Affirmative Marketing Plan on
behalf of the subrecipient utilizing GLO guidance.

iv. Develop a tenant selection policy on behalf of the subrecipient
based on GLO guidance.

v. Develop and submit for approval a needs assessment on behalf of
the subrecipient based on GLO guidance.

vi. Develop and submit to site-specific environmental reviews as
required by 24 CFR Part 58.

vii. Develop and submit a monitoring plan for approved projects on
behalf of the subrecipient based on GLO guidance.

viii. The provider will assist the subrecipient in conducting
assessments of all incomplete projects and align the GLO Form

84



11.17, to the constructed project. The provider will determine the 
percent complete and the dollar value of the partially completed 
project and the dollar value necessary to assign to the new 
Contractor to complete the project. This is accomplished through a 
joint Provider and Contractor site visit utilizing the initial 
Contractor's GLO Form 11.17, as the basis for construction and 
payment due to the contractor. 

b) Project Case Management:

i. Assist the subrecipient with any project, transaction, service or
response that is “opened” and “closed” over a period of time to
achieve resolution of a problem, claim, request, proposal,
development or other complex activity.

ii. Assist the subrecipient in developing project application eligibility
procedures, processing, and approvals.

c) Site Inspections:

i. Assist the subrecipient with Disaster Damage Assessments
(Damage Inspections) - Assist in performing a visual field review of
projects to determine the presence of damage to the project that may
be attributable to the disaster event. The damage assessment will
follow the GLO issued Damage Assessment Guidelines and
includes:

a. Assist the subrecipient with observations and
documentation (written and photographic) of findings of
disaster-related damage to the following:

i. Foundation;

ii. Exterior walls;

iii. Exterior wall finishes;

iv. Windows and doors;

v. Roof system (roof coverings, deck, joists, tie
downs, diaphragms, penetrations, flashing, and
closures);

vi. Floor system and structure;

vii. Electrical system components;

viii. Plumbing system components;

85



ix. Heating, ventilation and air conditioning
system;

x. Interior wall finishes;

xi. Interior fixtures and components;

xii. Porches;

xiii. Exterior stairs and ramps;

xiv. Miscellaneous items not covered by the above
such as septic systems, chimneys/fireplaces, etc.

b. The results of the Disaster Damage Assessment will be
provided according to the GLO sample provided in the
GLO issued Damage Assessment Guidelines. The
damage inspector’s report will include:

i. The reviewer’s name;

ii. The property address;

iii. The homeowner’s name;

iv. A checklist of housing components that may
have received disaster damage, if any;

v. A narrative that specifically and clearly
documents disaster-related property damage via
photographic evidence and detailed narratives of
the damage;

vi. The reviewer’s certification, signature, and date
of review.

c. The results of the disaster damage assessment may be
provided in a format similar to Forms 11.01  or
11.01A. The 11.01A, Initial Inspection Checklist, Short
will be completed for homes that have received disaster
damage that obviously cannot be rehabilitated. Form
11.01 will be completed in accordance with the
guidance contained in HQS 52580.

ii. Estimated Cost of Repair Inspection (Work Write-Up):

a. Assist in providing an estimated cost of repair inspections
with the damage assessments. Upon notification that a
project has been determined eligible for Program

86



assistance, the respondent will prepare an Estimated Cost 
of Repair (ECR) for the program-eligible repairs. 

b. ECR’s will be developed to include repair of damage that
could reasonably be attributed to the disaster event and
repairs to bring the project into compliance with HUD
Housing Quality Standards, local, state and federal building
codes. The scopes of repair will be developed to include
work items necessary for the identified repairs to be
performed in accordance with the International Residential
Code, 2009 Edition (where required) and to meet the GLO's
Minimum Housing Design Standards.

c. Assistance to the subrecipient may include:

i. Contact the project owner to schedule a date and
time to perform the field review.

ii. Travel to the project site.

iii. Perform the visual review of the project to
determine the approximate amount and extent of
damage to the project. The review will include the
observations and documentation (written and
photographic) of findings of disaster-related damage
if not already documented.

iv. Develop a Scope of Repair to address the observed
damage and initially determine the applicability of
the proposed repairs to the criteria of the Program.
The draft Scope of Repair will include:

a. a summary list of items to be
addressed;

b. a basic description of the repair
approach for each item;

c. estimated item quantities; and

d. site photographs.

v. Consider the following in preparation of the ECR:

a. the specific materials needed;

b. the quantity of those materials;

c. trades involved;

87



d. the level of effort and duration for each trade;

e. estimated rates and manpower; and

f. equipment required to accomplish each of the
identified repairs.

vi. Utilize the following to develop the ECR:

a. current industry cost standards as identified by
Xactimate or RSMeans price lists for the project
location;

b. experience with projects of similar size and
scope; and

c. Knowledge of the local market rates and
conditions.

vii. Summarize the data and findings into the final ECR
and will furnish a copy of the ECR to the
subrecipient.  The final ECR will include the
following:

a. a completed Form 11.17, Work Write-up and
Cost Estimate containing a general scope of
repair and summary of construction costs.

viii. Assist the subrecipient with project inspections at:

a. 50% complete

b. A final inspection at 100% complete

ix. In the case of a single family rental, assist the
subrecipient with reconstruction inspections:

a. Foundation

b. 33% complete progress inspection

c. 66% complete progress inspection

d. Final inspection at 100% completion

e. Arrange for and TREC inspection to be
conducted prior to closing.

88



x. Upon notification of a project being ready for a
Construction Review, the provider may:

a. Contact the project owner and or subrecipient to
schedule a date and time to perform the Review.

b. Travel to the project site.

c. Conduct on-site observations (field review) of
the work completed.

The purpose of the field review is to observe and
document: the progress of the work; the
estimated quantity and value of work
accomplished to date; the materials and
workmanship utilized; the general conformance
to the agreed upon Scope of Repairs (Scope); and
identify items necessary for completion.
During the field review, the provider may
observe work which, in its opinion, does not
conform generally to the agreed upon Scope or
may compromise the integrity of the repair. The
provider may recommend rejection of this work.

Upon completion of the field review, the provider
may summarize and present the findings of the
field review to include:

i. Estimated amounts owed to the
Contractor.

ii. Items of work that are incomplete (Punch
List items).

iii. Other items of work that may be required
by the apparent intent of the Scope that is
not included in the Scope.

d) Environmental Service

i. The provider may assist the subrecipient in performing
environmental reviews and documentation for HUD  compliance
in connection with the program. The provider may provide
services for the preparation of Environmental Review Records
(ERR) in accordance with the standards set forth by HUD and
the statutes, executive orders, and regulations listed at 24 CFR
Part 58.

ii. The provider may submit a request for Special Services to

89



subrecipient if environmental document review and site 
inspections indicate that additional investigation is warranted. 

iii. Special services may include, but are not limited to the following
tasks:

a. Archeological study required by SHPO;

b. Lead-based paint and/or asbestos inspection; and

c. Wetlands assessment.

Grant Administration Services – Non-Rental Housing 

a) Administrative Duties:

i. Develop and implement Outreach Plans detailing specific
outreach for the project. Plans will be required to be submitted and
approved by GLO on a project by project basis.

ii. Perform extensive community outreach to affected areas on behalf
of the subrecipient utilizing GLO guidance.

iii. Develop and submit for approval Housing Guidelines on behalf of
the subrecipient utilizing GLO guidance.

iv. Develop and submit for approval a Needs Assessment on behalf
of the subrecipient based on GLO guidance.

v. Provide case management support to subrecipient to manage the
grant applications process, including but not limited to:

a. creating eligibility procedures to lessen the fallout of
applicants;

b. advising applicants on eligibility and program  requirements,
and assist in application preparation and submission;

c. facilitating intake of applications from grant applicants;

d. performing eligibility reviews;

e. processing applications, including necessary 
communications;

f. capture applicant fallout reasons; and

g. the follow-up to grant applicants.

90



vi. Participate in the appeals process and handling of disputes for
disallowed/ineligible applications.

vii. Act as an advocate for applicants through appeals process when
required.

viii. Assist applicants through housing construction process.

ix. Perform other application management and homeowner support
duties as required to ensure the success of the program.

x. Develop and submit to site-specific environmental reviews as
required by 24 CFR Part 58.

xi. Provide construction and builder management services as required
to comply with applicable construction codes and program
requirements.

xii. The provider will assist the subrecipient in conducting
assessments of all incomplete projects and align the GLO Form
11.17, to the constructed project. The provider will determine the
percent complete and the dollar value of the partially completed
project and the dollar value necessary to assign to the new
Contractor to complete the project. This is accomplished through
a joint Provider and Contractor site visit utilizing the initial
Contractor's GLO Form 11.17, as the basis for construction and
payment due to the contractor.

b) Site Inspections

i. Establish Disaster Damage Assessments (Damage
Inspections).

a. Assist in performing a visual field review of single- 
family housing units to determine the presence of
damage to the home that may be attributable to the
disaster event. The damage assessment will follow the
GLO issued Damage Assessment Guidelines and
includes:

b. The respondent may assist the subrecipient with:

i. Contacting the Homeowner to schedule a date
and time to perform the field review.

ii. Traveling to the project site.

iii. Interviewing the Homeowner on site to gain a
perspective of the pre-disaster condition of the

91



structure; damage resulting directly from the 
disaster; and damage resulting from subsequent 
deterioration. The provider may utilize this 
information to assist in its review of the housing 
unit. 

c. Performing the visual review of the housing unit to
determine the presence of damage to the home that
may be attributed to a national disaster declaration. The
review will include the observations and
documentation (written and photographic) of findings
of disaster-related damage to the following:

i. Foundation;

ii. Exterior walls;

iii. Exterior wall finishes;

iv. Windows and doors;

v. Roof system (roof coverings, deck, joists, tie
downs, diaphragms, penetrations, flashing, and
closures);

vi. Floor system and structure;

vii. Electrical system components;

viii. Plumbing system components;

ix. Heating, ventilation and air conditioning
system;

x. Interior wall finishes;

xi. Interior fixtures and components;

xii. Porches;

xiii. Exterior stairs and ramps;

xiv. Miscellaneous items not covered by the above
such as septic systems, chimneys/fireplaces, etc.

d. The results of the Disaster Damage Assessment will be
provided according to the GLO sample provided in the
GLO issued Damage Assessment Guidelines. The
damage inspectors report will include:

92



i. The reviewer’s name;

ii. The property address;

iii. The homeowner’s name;

iv. A checklist of housing components that may
have received disaster damage, if any;

v. A narrative that specifically and clearly
documents disaster-related property damage
via photographic evidence and detailed
narratives of the damage; and

vi. The reviewer’s certification,  signature, and
date of review.

The results of the disaster damage assessment may be 
provided in a format similar to the 11.01 or 11.01A 
forms. The 11.01A, Initial Inspection Checklist, Short 
will be completed for homes that have received disaster-
damage that obviously cannot be rehabilitated. Form 
11.01, will be completed in accordance with the 
guidance contained in HQS 52580. 

ii. Estimated Cost of Repair Inspection (Work Write-Up).

a. Assist in providing an estimated cost of repair
inspections with the damage assessments. Upon
notification that a property has been determined eligible
for Program assistance, the respondent will prepare an
Estimated Cost of Repair (“ECR”) for the program- 
eligible repairs.

b. ECRs will be developed to include repair of damage that
could reasonably be attributed to the disaster event and
repairs to bring the home into compliance with HUD
Housing Quality Standards, local, state and federal
building codes. The scopes of repair will be developed
to include work items necessary for the identified repairs
to be performed in accordance with the International
Residential Code, 2009 Edition (where required) and to
meet the GLO's Minimum Housing Design Standards.

c. Assistance to the subrecipient may include:

i. Contact the Homeowner to schedule a date and
time to perform the field review.

93



ii. Travel to the project site.

iii. Perform the visual review of the housing unit to
determine the approximate amount and extent of
damage to the home. The review will include the
observations and documentation (written and
photographic) of findings of disaster-related
damage if not already documented.

iv. Develop a Scope of Repair to address the observed
damage and initially determine the applicability of
the proposed repairs to the criteria of the Program.
The draft Scope of Repair will include:

a. a summary list of items to be addressed;

b. a basic description of the repair approach
for each item;

c. estimated item quantities; and

d. site photographs.

iii. Consider the following in preparation of the ECR:

a. the specific materials needed;

b. the quantity of those materials;

c. trades involved;

d. the level of effort and duration for each trade;

e. estimated rates and manpower; and

f. equipment required to accomplish each of the identified
repairs.

iv. Utilize the following to develop the ECR:

a. current industry cost standards as identified by
Xactimate or RSMeans price lists for the project
location;

b. experience with projects of similar size and scope; and

c. knowledge of the local market rates and conditions.

94



v. Summarize the data and findings into the final ECR and
will furnish a copy of the ECR to the applicable
subrecipient. The final ECR will include the following:

a. A completed Form 11.17, Work Write-up and Cost
Estimate containing a general scope of repair and
summary of construction costs.

vi. Assist the subrecipient with Rehabilitation Inspections at:

a. 50% complete progress inspection

b. A final inspection at 100% complete

vii. Assist the subrecpieint with reconstruction inspections at:

a. Foundation

b. 33% complete progress inspection

c. 66% complete progress inspection

d. A final inspection at 100% complete

viii. Upon notification of a home being ready for a Construction
Review, the provider may contact the homeowner and
contractor to schedule a date and time to perform the Review.

a. Travel to the project site.

b. Conduct on-site observations (field review) of the
work completed. The purpose of the field review is
to observe and document: the progress of the work;
the estimated quantity and value of work
accomplished to date; the materials and
workmanship utilized; the general conformance to
the agreed upon Scope of Repairs (Scope); and
identify items necessary for completion. During the
field review, the provider may observe work which,
in its opinion, does not conform generally to the
agreed upon Scope or may compromise the integrity
of the repair. The provider may recommend rejection
of this work.

Upon completion of the field review, the provider may 
summarize and present the findings of the field review to 
include: 

a. Estimated amounts owed to the Contractor.

95



b. Items of work that are incomplete (Punch List items).

c. Other items of work that may be required by the
apparent intent of the Scope that is not included in
the Scope.

c) Environmental Services

i. The provider may assist the subrecipient in performing
environmental reviews and documentation for HUD
compliance in connection with the Program. The provider will
provide services for the preparation of Environmental Review
Records (ERR) in accordance with the standards set forth by
HUD and the statutes, executive orders, and regulations listed at
24 CFR Part 58.

ii. The provider may submit a request for Special Services to
subrecipient if environmental document review and site
inspections indicate that additional investigation is warranted.

iii. Special services may include, but are not limited to the following
tasks:

a. Archeological study required by SHPO;

b. Lead-based paint and/or asbestos inspection; and

c. Wetlands assessment.

96



NONEXCLUSIVE LIST OF APPLICABLE LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS 

If applicable to the Project, Provider must be in compliance with the following laws, rules, 
and regulations; and any other state, federal, or local laws, rules, and regulations as may 
become applicable throughout the term of the Contract, and Provider acknowledges that 
this list may not include all such applicable laws, rules, and regulations.  

Provider and is deemed to have read and understands the requirements of each of 
the following, if applicable to the Project under this Contract: 

GENERALLY 

The Acts and Regulations specified in this Contract; 

Consolidated Security, Disaster Assistance, and Continuing Appropriation Act (Public 
Law 110-329);  

The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (12 U.S.C. § 5301 et seq.); 

Cash Management Improvement Act regulations (31 C.F.R. Part 205);  

Community Development Block Grants (24 C.F.R. Part 570);  

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (2 C.F.R. Part 200); 

Disaster Recovery Implementation Manual; 

Plan for Disaster Recovery; and 

Guidance Documents:  2008 Supplemental Disaster Recovery Fund: Hurricanes Dolly 
and Ike; and Non-Housing Activities Application Guide, issued by the Texas Department 
of Housing and Community Affairs. 

CIVIL RIGHTS 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.); 24 C.F.R. Part l, 
"Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964"; 

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Act of 1972 (42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq.); 

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, "The Fair Housing Act of 1968" (42 U.S.C. 3601 
et seq.), as amended; 

Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259, and 24 C. F.R. Part 107, 
"Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity in Housing under Executive Order 11063"; The 

97



failure or refusal of Provider to comply with the requirements of Executive Order 11063 
or 24 C.F.R. Part 107 shall be a proper basis for the imposition of sanctions specified in 24 
C.F.R. 107.60;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.); and 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794.) and "Nondiscrimination 
Based on Handicap in Federally-Assisted Programs and Activities of the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development", 24 C.F.R. Part 8. By signing this Contract, Provider 
understands and agrees that the activities funded shall be performed in accordance with 24 
C.F.R. Part 8; and the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 4151 et seq.), including
the use of a telecommunications device for deaf persons (TDDs) or equally effective
communication system.

LABOR STANDARDS 
The Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (originally, 40 U.S.C. 276a-276a-5 and re-codified at 40 
U.S.C. 3141-3148); 29 C.F.R. Part 5; 

The Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (originally, 18 U.S.C. 874 and re-codified at 40 U.S.C. 
3145): 29 C.F.R. Part 3; 

Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (originally, 40 
U.S.C. § 327A and 330 and re-codified at 40 U.S.C. 3701-3708);  

Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and 
Assisted Construction (Also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Non-construction 
Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act) (29 C.F.R. Part 
5); and 

Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended; 

EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C.1701u): 24 C.F.R. 
§§ 135.3(a)(2) and (a)(3);

The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 (38 U.S.C. § 4212); and 

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1688); and 

Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended; 

GRANT AND AUDIT STANDARDS 

Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 7501; 

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 

98



Federal Awards (2 C.F.R. Part 200); 

Uniform Grant and Contract Management Act (Texas Government Code Chapter 783) and 
the Uniform Grant Management Standards issued by Governor’s Office of Budget and 
Planning; and 

Title 1 Texas Administrative Code § 5.167(c); 

LEAD-BASED PAINT 

Section 302 of the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4831(b)) and 
the procedures established by TDRA thereunder. 

HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

The National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.), 
particularly sections 106 and 110 (16 U.S.C. 470 and 470h-2), except as provided in §58.17 
for Section 17 projects; 

Executive Order 11593, Protection and Enhancement of the Cultural Environment, May 
13, 1971 (36 FR 8921), 3 C.F.R. 1971-1975 Comp., p. 559, particularly section 2(c); 

Federal historic preservation regulations as follows:  36 C.F.R. part 800 with respect to 
HUD programs; and 

The Reservoir Salvage Act of 1960 as amended by the Archeological and Historic 
Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. 469 et seq.), particularly section 3 (16 U.S.C. 469a-
1). 

ENVIRONMENTAL LAW AND AUTHORITIES

Environmental Review Procedures for Recipients assuming HUD Environmental 
Responsibilities (24 C.F.R. Part 58, as amended); 

National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4347); and 

Council for Environmental Quality Regulations for Implementing NEPA (40 C.F.R. Parts 
1500-1508). 

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AND WETLAND PROTECTION 

Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management, May 24, 1977 (42 FR 26951), 3 CFR, 
1977 Comp., p. 117, as interpreted in HUD regulations at 24 C.F.R. part 55, particularly 
Section 2(a) of the Order (For an explanation of the relationship between the decision-
making process in 24 C.F.R. part 55 and this part, see § 55.10.); and 

Executive Order 11990, Protection of Wetlands, May 24,1977 (42 FR 26961), 3 C.F.R., 
1977 Comp., p. 121 particularly Sections 2 and 5. 

99



COASTAL ZONE MANAGEMENT 

The Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. 1451 et seq.), as amended, particularly 
sections 307(c) and (d) (16 U.S.C. 1456(c) and (d)). 

SOLE SOURCE AQUIFERS 

The Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. 201, 300(f) et seq., and 21 U.S.C. 349) 
as amended; particularly section 1424(e)(42 U.S.C. 300h-3(e); and 

Sole Source Aquifers (Environmental Protection Agency-40 C.F.R. part 149.). 

ENDANGERED SPECIES 
The Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16 U.S.C. 1531 et seq.) as amended, particularly section 7 
(16 U.S.C. 1536).  

WILD AND SCENIC RIVERS 

The Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. 1271 et seq.) as amended, particularly 
sections 7(b) and (c) (16 U.S.C. 1278(b) and (c). 

AIR QUALITY 

The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.) as amended, particularly sections 176(c) and 
(d) (42 U.S.C. 7506(c) and (d).

Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans 
(Environmental Protection Agency-40 C.F.R. parts 6, 51, and 93). 

FARMLAND PROTECTION 

Farmland Protection Policy Act of 1981 (7 U.S.C. 4201 et seq.) particularly sections 
1540(b) and 1541 (7 U.S.C. 4201(b) and 4202); and 

Farmland Protection Policy (Department of Agriculture-7 C.F.R. part 658). 

HUD ENVIRONMENTAL STANDARDS 

Applicable criteria and standards specified in HUD environmental regulations (24 C.F.R. 
part 51) (other than the runway clear zone and clear zone notification requirement in 24 
C.F.R. 51.303(a)(3); and

HUD Notice 79-33, Policy Guidance to Address the Problems Posed by Toxic Chemicals 
and Radioactive Materials, September 10, 1979). 

100



ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE 

Executive Order 12898 of February 11, 1994 --- Federal Actions to Address Environmental 
Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, (59 FR 7629), 3 CFR, 1994 
Comp. p. 859. 

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT 
Use of debarred, suspended, or ineligible contractors or subrecipients (24 C.F.R. Section 
570.609);  

General HUD Program Requirements; Waivers (24 C.F.R. Part 5); and 

Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment (2 C.F.R. Part 2424). 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS 

Environmental Review Procedures for Entities Assuming HUD Environmental 
Responsibilities (24 C.F.R. Part 58). 

ACQUISITION / RELOCATION 

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 
(42 U.S.C. 4601 et seq.), 24 C.F.R. Part 42, and 24 C.F.R. Section 570.606. 

FAITH-BASED ACTIVITIES 

Executive Order 13279 of December 12, 2002 - Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-
Based and Community Organizations, (67 FR 77141). 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

101



Attachment E - Insurance

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO OUR POLICYHOLDERS 

THANK YOU FOR RENEWING YOUR POLICY WITH THE HARTFORD. WITH THIS NOTICE WE ARE 

PROVIDING YOU ONLY WITH THE DECLARATIONS PAGE, WHICH OUTLINES YOUR COVERAGES, AND 

WITH THOSE POLICY FORMS, NOTICES, AND BROCHURES WHICH ARE DIFFERENT FROM THOSE 

WHICH WE PROVIDED WITH YOUR PREVIOUS POLICY. YOU SHOULD RETAIN ALL OF THESE 

DOCUMENTS AND THOSE PROVIDED WITH YOUR PREVIOUS POLICY INDEFINITELY SO THAT YOU 

WILL HAVE A COMPLETE SET OF POLICY FORMS AT ALL TIMES FOR YOUR REFERENCE. 

IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS, OR IF AT ANY TIME YOU NEED COPIES OF ANY OF THE FORMS LISTED ON 

YOUR POLICY, PLEASE CALL YOUR HARTFORD AGENT OR BROKER, OR THE OFFICE OF THE 

HARTFORD IDENTIFIED ON YOUR POLICY, AS APPROPRIATE. 

Form G-3187-0 

102

:t 



IMPORTANT NOTICE TO POLICYHOLDERS 

THE HARTFORD CYBER CENTER WEBSITE ACCESS 

Thank you for choosing The Hartford for your business insurance needs. 

You are receiving this Notice because you purchased a business owner's policy from The Hartford, (your Policy 
was issued by The Hartford writing company identified on your policy Declarations page) which includes access to 
The Hartford Cyber Center. This portal was created because we recognize that businesses face a variety of 
cyber-related exposures and need help managing the related risks. These exposures include data breaches, 
computer virus attacks and cyber extortion threats. 

Through The Hartford Cyber Center, you have access to: 
oA panel of third party incident response service providers
oThird party cybersecurlty pre-incident service providers and a list of approved services to help protect

your business before a cyber-threat occurs
oRisk management tools, including self-assessments, best practice guides, templates, sample incident

response plans, and data breach cost calculators
oWhite papers, biogs and webinars fron:i leading privacy and security practitioners
oUp-to-date cyber-related news and events, including examples of privacy and security related events

Accessing The Hartford Cyber Center is easy 
1.Visit www.thehartford.com/cybercenter
2.Enter policyholder information
3.Access code: 952689
4.Login to The Hartford Cyber Center

This Notice does not amend or otherwise affect the provisions of your business owner's policy. 
Coverage Options: 

The Hartford offers a variety of endorsements to your business owner's policy that can help protect your business 
from a broad range of cyber-related threats. Please review your coverage with your insurance agent or broker to 
determine the most appropriate cyber coverages and limits for your business. 
Claims Reporting: 

If. you have a claim, you can report it by calling The Hartford's toll-free claims line at 1-800-327-3636.

Should you have any questions, please contact your insurance agent, broker or you may contact us directly. 
We appreciate your business and look forward to being of continued service to you. 
Please be aware that: 

oThe Hartford Cyber Center is a proprietary web portal exclusively provided to customers of The Hartford.
Please do not share the access code with anyone outside your organization.

oRegistration is required to access the Cyber Center. You may register as many users as necessary.
oContacting a service provider about any issue does not constitute providing The Hartford notice of a claim

as required under your insurance policy. Read your insurance policy and discuss any questions with your
agent or broker.

The Hartford Cyber Center provides third party service provider references and materials for educational 
purposes only. The Hartford does not specifically endorse any such service provider within The Hartford Cyber 
Center and hereby disclaims all liability with respect to use of or reliance on such service providers. All service 
providers are independent contractors and not agents of The Hartford. The Hartford does not warrant the 
performance of the service providers, even if such services are covered under your Business Owners Policy. We 
strongly encourage you to conduct your own assessments of the service providers' services and the fitness or 
adequacy of such services for your particular needs. 

Form SS 89 93 07 16 Page 1 of 1 
© 2016, The Hartford 

103

:t 



Insurance Policy Billing Information 

Thank you for selecting The Hartford for your business insurance needs. 

Shortly, you will receive your first bill from us. You are receiving this Notice so you know 
what to expect as a valued customer of Th-e Hartford. Should you have any questions after 
reviewing this information, please contact us at 866-467-8730, and we will be happy to 
assist you. 

o Your total policy premium will appear on your policy's Declarations Page. You will be billed based on the payment
plan you selected.

o You may pay the "minimum due" as it appears on your insurance bill or pay the policy balance in full.

o An installment service fee is added to each installment. A late fee will also be applied if the "minimum due" is not
received by the due date shown on your bill. Service and late payment fees do not apply in all states.

o If you selected installment billing, any credit or additional premium due as the result of a change made to your
policy, will be spread over the remaining billing installments. Additional premium due as a result of an audit will be
billed in full on your next bill date following the completion of the audit.

o If you elected Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT), policy changes may result in changes to the amount automatically
withdrawn from your bank account. The invoice you receive following a policy change will include future withdrawal
amounts. If you need to adjust or stop your next scheduled EFT withdrawal, please contact us at least 3 days
prior to the scheduled withdrawal date at the telephone number shown below.

o If you selected installment billing and pay the premiums for your first policy term on time, at renewal, your account
-may qualify for our "Equal Installment" feature. This means that the percentage due for each installment, including
the initial renewal installment, will be the same throughout the policy term - helping you better manage cash flow.
Equal installments will continue as long as you pay your premiums on time and no cancellation notices are issued
for any policy on your account. If you no longer qualify for Equal Installments, future renewals will be billed based
on the payment plan you selected, whi�h includes a higher initial installment amount.

o If your policy is eligible for renewal, your bill for the upcoming policy term will be sent to you approximately 30 days
prior to your policy's renewal date. If your insurance needs change, please contact us at least 60 days prior to your
renewal date so we can properly address any adjustments needed.

o One bill convenience -- you have the option of combining all eligible Hartford policies on one single bill allowing
you to make one payment for all policies on your account as payments are due.

You're In Control 

In addition to selecting a bill plan option that best meets your budget, you have the flexibility to decide how your 
payments are made ... 

o Repetitive EFT: Sign up for Repetitive EFT payments and have payments automatically withdrawn from your bank
account. This option saves you money by reducing the amount of the installment service fee.

o Pay Ol)line: Register at www.thehartford.com/servicecenter. Online Bill Pay is Quick, Easy and Secure!
o Pay by Check: Send a check with your remittance stub in the envelope provided with your bill.
o Pay by Phone: Call toll-free 1-866-467-8730.

Should you have any questions about your bill, please call Customer Service toll-free number:
1-866-467-8730 - 7 AM - 7PM CST. We look forward to being of service to you.

Form 100722 11th Rev. Printed in U.S.A. 
104



S
p

e
c

t
r

u
m

®
 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 O

w
n

e
r'

s
 P

o
li
c

y
 

F
o

rm
 S

S
 0

0
 0

1
 0

3
1

4
 

T
H

E
 

H
A

R
T

F
O

R
D

 

P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
1

 

10
5

;I 



PRODUCER COMPENSATION NOTICE 

You can review and obtain information on The Hartford's producer compensation practices at 
www.TheHartford.com or at 1-800-592-5717. 

Form G-3418-0 

106



POLICY NUMBER: 65 SBA NN6521 

THIS ENDORSEMENT IS ATTACHED TO AND MADE PART OF YOUR POLICY IN 

RESPONSE TO THE DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS OF THE TERRORISM RISK 

INSURANCE ACT. 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO TERRORISM RISK 

INSURANCE ACT 

SCHEDULE 

Terrorism Premium: 

$ $24.00 

A.Disclosure Of Premium

In accordance with the federal Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act, as amended (TRIA), we are required
to provide you with a notice disclosing the portion of
your premium, if any, attributable to coverage for
"certified acts of terrorism" under TRIA. The portion
of your premium attributable to such coverage is
shown in the Schedule of this endorsement.

B.The following definition is added with respect to the
provisions of this endorsement:

1.A "certified act of terrorism" means an act that is
certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in
accordance with the provisions of TRIA, to be
an act of terrorism under TRIA. The criteria
contained in TRIA for a "certified act of
terrorism" include the following:

a.The act results in insured losses in excess
of $5 million in the aggregate, attributable to
all types of insurance subject to TRIA; and

b.The act results in damage within the United
States, or outside the United States in the
case of certain air carriers or vessels or the
premises of an United States mission; and

c.The act is a violent act or an act that is
dangerous to human life, property or
infrastructure and is committed by an
individual or individuals as part of an effort
to coerce the civilian population of the

Form SS 83 76 0115 

United States or to influence the policy or 
affect the conduct of the United States 
Government by coercion 

C.Disclosure Of Federal Share Of Terrorism
Losses

The United States Department of the Treasury will
reimburse insurers for a portion of insured losses,
as indicated in the table below, attributable to
"certified acts of terrorism" under TRIA that exceeds
the applicable insurer deductible:

Calendar Year Federal Share of 
Terrorism Losses 

2015 85% 

2016 84% 

2017 83% 

2018 82% 

2019 81% 

2020 or later 80% 

However, ii aggregate industry insured losses under 
TRIA exceed $100 billion in a calendar year, the 
Treasury shall not make any payment for any 
portion of the amount of such losses that exceeds 
$100 billion. The United States government has not 
charged any premium for their participation in 
covering terrorism losses. 

Page 1 of 2 
© 2015 , The Hartford 

(Includes copyrighted material of the Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.) 
107

:t 



D. Cap On Insurer Liability for Terrorism Losses

If aggregate industry insured losses attributable to
"certified acts of terrorism" under TRIA exceed $100
billion in a calendar year and we have met, or will
meet, our insurer deductible under TRIA, we shall
not be liable for the payment of any portion of the
amount of such losses that exceed $100 billion. In
such case, your coverage for terrorism losses may
be reduced on a pro-rata basis in accordance with
procedures established by the Treasury, based on
its estimates of aggregate industry losses and our
estimate that we will exceed our insurer deductible.
In accordance with the Treasury's procedures,
amounts paid for losses may be subject to further
adjustments based on differences between actual
losses and estimates.

E. Application of Other Exclusions

The terms and limitations of any terrorism exclusion,
the inapplicability or omission of a terrorism
exclusion, or the inclusion of terrorism coverage, do
not serve to create coverage for any loss which
would otherwise be excluded under this Coverage
Form, Coverage Part or Policy.

F. All other terms and conditions remain the same.

Form SS 83 76 0115 Page 2 of 2 
108



IMPORTANT NOTICE TO POLICYHOLDERS -

EXCLUSION -UNMANNED AIRCRAFT (LIABILITY) 

Thank you for trusting The Hartford with your Business Insurance needs. 

You are receiving this Notice because an Exclusion -Unmanned Aircraft (Liability) (Form SS 51 10) has been 
added to your policy. This fonm modifies the Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft exclusion such that any coverage for 
unmanned aircraft is completely excluded. This is a reduction in the coverage provided by your policy. 

In addition, the Personal and Advertising Injury exclusion in your Business Liability Coverage (Form SS 00 08) is 
revised to exclude coverage for Personal and Advertising Injury damages arising out of the ownership, 
maintenance, use or entrustment to others of any aircraft that is an "unmanned aircraft". This is a reduction in the 
coverage provided by your policy. 

The changes described above do not impact your policy premium. 

Please contact your agent, broker or representative of The Hartford with any questions. 

Please be aware that no coverage is provided by this Notice nor should it be construed to replace any provision 
of your policy. You should read your policy and review your Declarations Page for complete information on the 
coverages you are provided. If there is a conflict between the policy and this Notice, the provisions of the policy 
shall prevail. 

Form SS 90 02 03 17 Page 1 of 1 
© 2017, The Hartford 

109

:t 



IMPORTANT NOTICE TO POLICYHOLDERS

EXCLUSION - UNMANNED AIRCRAFT (PROPERTY) 

Thank you for trusting The Hartford with your Business Insurance needs. 

You are receiving this Notice because an Exclusion - Unmanned Aircraft (Property) Form SS 51 11 has been 
added to your policy. This form clarifies that the term "aircraft" listed in the Property Not Covered section of your 
Special Property Coverage Form (SS 00 07), is also intended to apply to "unmanned aircraft", more commonly 
known as drones. This clarification does not impact the coverage provided by your policy. 

This change does not impact your policy premium. 

Please contact your agent, broker or representative of The Hartford with any questions. 

Please be aware that no coverage is provided by this Notice nor should it be construed to replace any provision 
of your policy. You should read your policy and review your Declarations Page for complete information on the 
coverages you are provided. If there is a conflict between the policy and this Notice, the provisions of the policy 
shall prevail. 

Form 55 90 04 0317 Page 1 of 1 
© 2017, The Hartford 

110



IMPORTANT NOTICE 

To obtain information or make a complaint: 

You may contact your agent who is listed on the Declarations/Information Page of your policy, or 
on your binder or certificate of insurance. 

You may call The Hartford's toll-free telephone number for information or to make a complaint at: 

1-800-392-7805

You may contact the Texas Department of Insurance to obtain information on companies, 
coverages, rights or complaints at: 

1-800-252-3439

You may write the Texas Department of Insurance: 

P.O. Box 149104 
Austin, TX 78714-9104 
Fax: (512) 490-1007 

Web: http://www.tdi.texas.gov 
e-Mail: ConsumerProtection @tdi.texas.gov

PREMIUM OR CLAIM DISPUTES: 

Should you have a dispute concerning your premium or about a claim you should contact the 
agent or the company first. If the dispute is not resolved, you may contact the Texas Department 
of Insurance. 

ATTACH THIS NOTICE TO YOUR POLICY: 

This notice is for information only and does not become a part or condition of the attached 
document. 

Form G-3116-3 © 2015, The Hartford 
111



IMPORTANT NOTICE TO POLICYHOLDERS 

To help your insurance keep pace with increasing costs, we have increased your amount of insurance ... giving you 

better protection in case of either a partial, or total loss to your property. 

If you feel the new amount is not the proper one, please contact your agent or broker. 

Form PC-374-0 Printed in U.S.A. 112



21 This Spectrum Policy consists of the Declarations, Coverage Forms, Common Policy Conditions and any 
65 other Forms and Endorsements issued to be a part of the Policy. This insurance is provided by the stock 
NN insurance company of The Hartford Insurance Group shown below. 
SBA 

INSURER: HARTFORD LLOYDS INSURANCE COMPANY 

785 GREENS PARKWAY, SUITE 200, HOUSTON, TX 77067 
COMPANY CODE: B 

Policy Number: 65 SBA NN6521 SC 

SPECTRUM POLICY DECLARATIONS 

Named Insured and Mailing Address: 
(No., Street, Town, State, Zip Code) 

LANGFORD COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES, INC. 

2901 COUNTY ROAD 175 
LEANDER TX 78641 

THEX 
HARTFORD 

Policy Period: From 01/09/10 To 01/09/19 1 YEAR 
12:01 a.m., Standard time at your mailing address shown above. Exception: 12 noon in New Hampshire. 

Name of Agent/Broker: CENTRAL INSURANCE AGENCY INC 
Code: 012310 

Previous Policy Number: 65 SBA NN6521 

Named Insured is: CORPORATION 

Audit Period: NON-AUDITABLE 

Type of Property Coverage: SPECIAL 

Insurance Provided: In return for the payment of the premium and subject to all of the terms of this policy, we 
agree with you to provide insurance as stated in this policy. 

TOTAL ANNUAL PREMIUM IS: 

Countersigned by 

Form SS 00 02 12 06 
Process Date: 10/25/17 

$1,243 

Authorized Representative 
10/25/17 

Date 

Page O O 1 ( CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 

Policy Expiration Date: 01/09/19 

113



SPECTRUM POLICY DECLARATIONS (Continued) 
POLICY NUMBER: 65 SBA NN6521 

Location(s), Building(s), Business of Named Insured and Schedule of Coverages for Premises as designated by 
Number below. 

Location: 001 Building: 001 

2901 COONTY ROAD 175 
LEANDER TX 78641 

Description of Business: 
ACTUARIAL SERVICES 

Deductible: $ 500 PER OCCURRENCE 

BUILDING AND BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

BUILDING 

BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY 

REPLACEMENT C,OST 

PERSONAL PROPERTY OF OTHERS 

REPLACEMENT COST 

MONEY AND SECURITIES 

INSIDE THE PREMISES 
OUTSIDE THE PREMISES 

Form SS 00 02 12 06 

Process Date: 10/25/17 

NO COVERAGE 

$ 191,100 

NO COVERAGE 

$ 
$ 

10,000 

5,000 

Page 002 (CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 

Policy Expiration Date: 01/09/19 
114



SPECTRUM POLICY DECLARATIONS (Continued) 
POLICY NUMBER: 65 SBA NN6521. 

Location(s), Building(s), Business of Named Insured and Schedule of Coverages for Premises as designated by 
Number below. 

Location: 001. Building: 001. 

PROPERTY OPTIONAL COVERAGES APPLICABLE LIMITS OF INSURANCE 
TO THIS LOCATION 

STRETCH COVERAGES 
FORM: SS 04 08 

THIS FORM INCLUDES MANY ADDITIONAL 
COVERAGES AND EXTENSIONS OF 
COVERAGES. A SUMMARY OF THE 
COVERAGE LIMITS IS ATTACHED. 

LIMITED FUNGI, BACTERIA OR VIRUS 
COVERAGE: 
FORM SS 40 93 
THIS IS THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF 
INSURANCE FOR THIS COVERAGE, 
SUBJECT TO ALL PROPERTY LIMITS 
FOUND ELSEWHERE ON THIS 
DECLARATION. 
INCLUDING BUSINESS INCOME AND EXTRA 
EXPENSE COVERAGE FOR: 

Form SS 00 02 12 06 
Process Date: 1.0/25/1. 7 

$ 50,000 

30 DAYS 

Page 003 (CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 

Policy Expiration Date: 01./09/1.9 
115



SPECTRUM POLICY DECLARATIONS (Continued) 
POLICY NUMBER: 65 SBA NN6521 

P.ROPERTY OPTIONAL COVERAGES APPLICABLE LIMITS OF INSURANCE 
TO ALL LOCATIONS 

BUSINESS INCOME AND EXTRA EXPENSE 
COVERAGE 
COVERAGE INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING 
COVERAGE EXTENSIONS: 

ACTION OF CIVIL AUTHORITY: 
EXTENDED BUSINESS INCOME: 

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN COVERAGE 
COVERAGE FOR DIRECT PHYSICAL LOSS 
DUE TO: 

MECHANICAL BREAKDOWN, 
ARTIFICIALLY GENERATED CURRENT 
AND STEAM EXPLOSION 

THIS ADDITIONAL COVERAGE INCLUDES 
THE FOLLOWING EXTENSIONS 

HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES 
EXPEDITING EXPENSES 

MECHANICAL BREAKDOWN COVERAGE ONLY 
APPLIES WHEN BUILDING OR BUSINESS 
PERSONAL PROPERTY IS SELECTED ON 
THE POLICY 

IDENTITY RECOVERY COVERAGE 
FORM SS 41 12 

Form SS 00 0212 06 
Process Date:10/25/17 

12 MONTHS ACTUAL LOSS SUSTAINED 

30 DAYS 
3 0 CONSECUTIVE DAYS 

$ 
$ 

$ 

50,000 

50,000 

15,000 

Page 004 (CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 

Policy Expiration Date: 01/ 09 /19 
116



SPECTRUM POLICY DECLARATIONS (Continued) 
POLICY NUMBER: 65 SBA NN6521 

BUSINESS LIABILITY 

LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES 

MEDICAL EXPENSES - ANY ONE PERSON 

PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY 

DAMAGES TO PREMISES RENTED TO YOU 
ANY ONE PREMISES 

AGGREGATE LIMITS 
PRODUCTS-COMPLETED OPERATIONS 

FORM SS 05 09 
GENERAL AGGREGATE 

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY 
COVERAGE: FORM ss 09 01 

EACH CLAIM LIMIT 

DEDUCTIBLE - EACH CLAIM LIMIT 

NOT APPLICABLE 

AGGREGATE LIMIT 

RETROACTIVE DATE: 01092009 

LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

$1,000,000 

$ 10,000 

$1,000,000 

$ 300,000 

$2,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 5,000 

This Employment Practices Liability Coverage contains claims made coverage. Except as may be otherwise 
provided herein, specified coverages of this insurance are limited generally to liability for injuries for which claims are 
first made against the insured while the insurance is in force. Please read and review the insurance carefully and 
discuss the coverage with your Hartford Agent or Broker. 

The Limits of Insurance stated in this Declarations will be reduced, and may be completely exhausted, by the payment 
of "defense expense" and, in such event, The Company will not be obligated to pay any further "defense expense" or 
sums which the insured is or may become legally obligated to pay as "damages". 

BUSINESS LIABILITY OPTIONAL 
COVERAGES 

HIRED/NON-OWNED AUTO LIABILITY 
FORM: SS 06 66 

Form SS 00 02 12 06 
Process Date: 10/25/17 

$1,000,000 

Page 005 (CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 

Policy Expiration Date: 01/09/19 
117



SPECTRUM POLICY DECLARATIONS (Continued) 
POLICY NUMBER: 65 SBA NN6521 

BUSINESS LIABILITY OPTIONAL COVERAGES 
(Continued) 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY 

COVERAGE: FORM SS 06 56 

CLAIMS-MADE 

RETROACTIVE DATE: 01/09/2009 

EACH CLAIM 

AGGREGATE 

Form SS 00 02 12 06 
Process Date: 10/25/17 

LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

$1,000,000 
$2,000,000 

Page 006 (CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 
Policy Expiration Date: 01/09/19 

118



SPECTRUM POLICY DECLARATIONS (Continued) 
POLICY NUMBER: 65 SBA NN6521

Form Numbers of Forms and Endorsements that apply: 

ss 00 01 03 14 ss 00 05 12 06 ss 00 07 
ss 00 64 09 16 ss 84 01 09 07 ss 10 11 
ss 00 60 09 15 ss 00 61 09 15 ss 04 08 
ss 04 22 07 05 ss 04 30 07 05 ss 04 39 
ss 04 42 03 17 ss 04 44 07 05 ss 04 45 
ss 04 47 04 09 ss 04 80 03 00 ss 04 86 
ss 40 93 07 05 ,SS 41 12 12 07 ss 41 51 
ss 05 09 07 00 ss 05 47 09 15 ss 50 19 
ss 51 11 03 17 ss 06 56 01 94 ss 06 66 
ss 09 67 09 14 ss 09 70 12 14 ss 09 71 

IH 99 40 04 09 IH 99 41 04 09 ss 83 76 

07 05 ss 00 08 04 05 
10 15 ss 89 93 07 16 
09 07 ss 04 19 07 05 
07 05 ss 04 41 04 09 
07 05 ss 04 46 09 14 
03 00 ss 40 18 07 05 
10 09 ss 41 63 06 11 
01 15 ss 51 10 03 17 
09 09 ss 09 01 12 14 
12 14 ss 09 82 12 14 
01 15 

IH 12 00 11 85 ADDITIONAL INSURED - PERSON-ORGANIZATION 

Form SS 00 0212 06 
Process Date: 10 / 2 s / 1 7 

Page 001

Policy Expiration Date: 01/ 09 /19
119



STRETCH SUMMARY 

SUMMARY OF COVERAGE LIMITS 

This is a summary of the Coverages and the Limits of Insurance provided by the Stretch Coverage form SS 04 08 
which is included in this policy. No coverage is provided by this summary. Reier to coverage form SS 04 08 to 
determine the scope of your insurance protection. 

The Limit of Insurance for the following Additional Coverages are in addition to any other limit of insurance provided 
under this policy: 

Coverage 
Accounts Receivable -On/Off-Premises 
Brands and Labels 
Claim Expenses 
Computer Fraud 
Computers and Media 
Debris Removal 
Employee Dishonesty (including ERISA) 
Fine Arts 
Forgery 
Laptop Computers -World-Wide Coverage 
Off Premises Utility Services-Direct Damage 
Outdoor Signs 
Pairs or Sets 
Personal Property of Others 
Property at Other Premises 
Salespersons' Samples 
Sewer and Drain Back Up 
Sump Overflow or Sump Pump Failure 
Temperature Change 
Tenant Building and Business Personal Property Coverage
Required by Lease 
Transit Property in the Care of Carriers for Hire 
Unauthorized Business Card Use 
Valuable Papers and Records -On/Off-Premises 

Limit 
$25,000 
Up to Business Personal Property Limit 
$10,000 
$5,000 
$10,000 
$25,000 
$10,000 
$10,000 
$10,000 
$5,000 
$10,000 
Full Value 
Up to Business Personal Property Limit 
$10,000 
$10,000 
$1,000 
Included up to Covered Property Limits 
$15,000 
$10,000 
$20,000 

$10,000 
$2,500 
$25,000 

The Limits of Insurance for the following Coverage Extensions are a replacement of the Limit of Insurance provided 
under the Standard Property Coverage Form or the Special Property Coverage Form, whichever applies to the policy: 

Coverage 
Newly Acquired or Constructed Property -180 Days 

Building 
Business Personal Property 
Business Income and Extra Expense 

Outdoor Property 
Personal Effects 

Property Off-Premises 

Form SS 84 01 09 07 

© 2007, The Hartford 

Limit 

$1,000,000 
$500,000 
$500,000 
$ 20,000 aggregate/ $1,000 per item 
$25,000 

$15,000 

Page 1 of2 

120

:t 



The following changes apply only if Business Income and Extra Expense are covered under this policy. The Limits of 
Insurance for the following Business Income and Extra Expense Coverages are in addition to any other Limit of 
Insurance provided under this policy: 

Coverage 
Business Income Extension for Off-Premises Utility Services 
Business Income Extension for Web Sites 
Business Income from Dependent Properties 

Limit 
$25,000 
$ 10,000/7 days 
$25,000 

The following Limit of Insurance for the following Business Income Coverage is a replacement of the Limit of 
Insurance provided under the Standard Property Coverage Form or the Special Property Coverage Form, whichever 
applies to the policy: 

Coverage 
Extended Business Income 

The following changes apply to Loss Payment Conditions: 

Coverage 
Valuation Changes 

Commodity Stock 
11Finished Stock" 

Mercantile Stock - Sold 

Page 2 of 2 

Limit 
60 Days 

Limit 

Included 
Included 
Included 

Form SS 84 01 09 07 

121



COMMONPOLICYCONDITIONS 

Form SS 00 0512 06 
© 2006, The Hartford 

122



QUICK REFERENCE - SPECTRUM POLICY 

DECLARATIONS 

and 

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS 

I. DECLARATIONS

Named Insured and Mailing Address

Policy Period

Description and Business Location

Coverages and Limits of Insurance

II. COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS Beginning on Page 

A. Cancellation

B. Changes

C. Concealment, Misrepresentation Or Fraud

D. Examination Of Your Books And Records

E. Inspections And Surveys

F. Insurance Under Two Or More Coverages

G. Liberalization

H. Other Insurance - Property Coverage

I. Premiums

J. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us

K. Transfer Of Your Rights And Duties Under This Policy

L. Premium Audit

Form 55 00 05 12 06 

1 

1 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

3 

3 

123



COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS 

All coverages of this policy are subject to the following conditions. 

A. Cancellation

1. The first Named Insured shown in the
Declarations may cancel this policy by mailing
or delivering to us advance written notice of
cancellation.

2. We may cancel this policy by mailing or
delivering to the first Named Insured written
notice of cancellation at least:

a. 5 days before the effective date of
cancellation if any one of the following
conditions exists at any building that is
Covered Property in this policy:

(1) The building has been vacant or
unoccupied 60 or more consecutive
days. This does not apply to:

(a) Seasonal unoccupancy; or

(b) Buildings in the course of 
construction, renovation or
addition.

Buildings with 65% or more of the rental 
units or floor area vacant or unoccupied 
are considered unoccupied under this 
provision. 

(2) After damage by a Covered Cause of
Loss, permanent repairs to the
building:

(a) Have not started; and

(b) Have not been contracted for,

within 30 days of initial payment of 
loss. 

(3) The building has:

(a) An outstanding order to vacate;

(b) An outstanding demolition order;
or

(c) Been declared unsafe by 
governmental authority. 

(4) Fixed and salvageable items have
been or are being removed from the
building and are not being replaced.
This does not apply to such removal
that is necessary or incidental to any
renovation or remodeling.

Form SS 00 05 12 06 

(5) Failure to:

(a) Furnish necessary heat, water,
sewer service or electricity for 30
consecutive days or more, except
during a period of seasonal
unoccupancy; or

(b) Pay property taxes that are owing
and have been outstanding for
more than one year following the
date due, except that this
provision will not apply where you
are in a bona fide dispute with the
taxing authority regarding payment
of such taxes.

b. 10 days before the effective date of
cancellation if we cancel for nonpayment
of premium.

c. 30 days before the effective date of
cancellation if we cancel for any other
reason.

3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the first
Named lnsured's last mailing address known
to us.

4. Notice of cancellation will state the effective
date of cancellation. The policy period will end
on that date.

5. If this policy is canceled, we will send the first
Named Insured any premium refund due.
Such refund will be pro rata. The cancellation
will be effective even if we have not made or
offered a refund.

6. If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be
sufficient proof of notice.

7. If the first Named Insured cancels this policy,
we will retain no less than $100 of the
premium.

B. Changes

This policy contains all the agreements between you
and us concerning the insurance afforded. The first
Named Insured shown in the Declarations is
authorized to make changes in the terms of this policy
with our consent. This policy's terms can be 
amended or waived only by endorsement issued
by us and made a part of this policy.

Page 1 of 3 
© 2006, The Hartford 

124



COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS 

C. Concealment, Misrepresentation Or Fraud

This policy is void in any case of fraud by you as it
relates to this policy at any time. It is also void if you
or any other insured, at any time, intentionally conceal
or misrepresent a material fact concerning:

1. This policy;

2. The Covered Property;

3. Your interest in the Covered Property; or

4. A claim under this policy.

D. Examination Of Your Books And Records

We may examine and audit your books and
records as they relate to the policy at any time
during the policy period and up to three years
afterward.

E. Inspections And Surveys

We have the right but are not obligated to:

1. Make inspections and surveys at any time;

2. Give you reports on the conditions we find; and

3. Recommend changes.

Any inspections, surveys, reports or 
recommendations relate only to insurability and the 
premiums to be charged. We do not make safety 
inspections. We do not undertake to perform the duty 
of any person or organization to provide for the health 
or safety of any person. And we do not represent or 
warrant that conditions: 

1. Are safe or healthful; or

2. Comply with laws, regulations, codes or
standards.

This condition applies not only to us, but also to 
any rating, advisory, rate service or similar 
organization which makes insurance inspections, 
surveys, reports or recommendations. 

F. Insurance Under Two Or More Coverages

If two or more of this policy's coverages apply to
the same loss or damage, we will not pay more
than the actual amount of the loss or damage.

G. Liberalization

If we adopt any revision that would broaden the
coverage under this policy without additional
premium within 45 days prior to or during the policy
period, the broadened coverage will immediately
apply to this policy.

H. Other Insurance - Property Coverage

If there is other insurance covering the same loss
or damage, we·, will pay only for the amount of
covered loss or damage in excess of the amount
due from that other insurance, whether you can
collect on it or not. But we will not pay more than
the applicable Limit of Insurance.

Page 2 of 3 

I. Premiums

1. The first Named Insured shown in the
Declarations:

a. Is responsible for the payment of all
premiums; and

b. Will be the payee for any return premiums
we pay.

2. The premium shown in the Declarations was
computed based on rates in effect at the time
the policy was issued. If applicable, on each
renewal, continuation or anniversary of the
effective date of this policy, we will compute
the premium in accordance with our rates and
rules then in effect.

3. With our consent, you may continue this policy
in force by paying a continuation premium for
each successive one-year period. The
premium must be:

a. Paid to us prior to the anniversary date; and

b. Determined in accordance with Paragraph
2. above.

Our forms then in effect will apply. If you do 
not pay the continuation premium, this policy 
will expire on the first anniversary date that we

have not received the premium. 

4. Changes in exposures or changes in your
business operation, acquisition or use of
locations that are not shown in the Declarations
may occur during the policy period. If so, we may 
require an additional premium. That premium will
be determined in accordance with our rates and
rules then in effect.

J. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others
To Us

Applicable to Property Coverage:

If any person or organization to or for whom we
make payment under this policy has rights to
recover damages from another, those rights are
transferred to us to the extent of our payment.
That person or organization must do everything
necessary to secure our rights and must do
nothing alter loss to impair them. But you may
waive your rights against another party in writing:

1. Prior to a loss to your Covered Property.

2. After a loss to your Covered Property only ii, at
time of loss, that party is one of the following:

a. Someone insured by this insurance;

b. A business firm:

(1) Owned or controlled by you; or

(2) That owns or controls you; or 

Form SS 00 05 12 06 
125



c. Your tenant.

You may also accept the usual bills of lading or 
shipping receipts limiting the liability of carriers. 

This will not restrict your insurance. 

K. Transfer Of Your Rights And Duties Under This
Policy

Your rights and duties under this policy may not be
transferred without our written consent except in
the case of death of an individual Named Insured.

If you die, your rights and duties will be transferred
to your legal representative but only while acting
within the scope of duties as your legal
representative. Until your legal representative is
appointed, anyone having proper temporary
custody of your property will have your rights and
duties but only with respect to that property.

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS 

L. Premium Audit

a. We will compute all premiums for this policy in
accordance with our rules and rates.

b. The premium amount shown in the
Declarations is a deposit premium only. At the
close of each audit period we will compute the
earned premium for that period. Any
additional premium found to be due as a result
of the audit are due and payable on notice to
the first Named Insured. If the deposit
premium paid for the policy term is greater
than the earned premium, we will return the
excess to the first Named Insured.

c. The first Named Insured must maintain all
records related to the coverage provided by
this policy and necessary to finalize the
premium audit, and send us copies of the
same upon our request.

Our President and Secretary have signed this policy. Where required by law, the Declarations page has also been 
countersigned by our duly authorized representative. 

Lisa Levin, Secretary Douglas Elliot, President 

Form 55 00 05 12 06 Page 3 of 3 
126



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

STANDARD PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM 
SPECIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM 

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the 
terms and conditions of the policy apply to the insurance 
stated below. 

A.COVERAGE

1.The following is added to Paragraph A.5.,
Additional Coverages, of the Special Property
Coverage Form:

Employee Dishonesty Coverage 

(1)We will pay for loss of, and loss from
damage to, Covered Property resulting
directly from the Covered Causes of
Loss.

Covered Property, solely as used in this
Additional Coverage, means "money",
"securities", and other tangible property
of intrinsic value and not otherwise
excluded.

Covered Causes of Loss means
dishonest acts committed by an
"employee", except you, whether
identified or not, acting alone or in
collusion with other persons, with the
manifest intent to:

(a)Cause you to sustain loss; and also

(b)Obtain financial benefit (other than
salaries, comm1ss1ons, fees,

bonuses, promotions, awards, profit
sharing or pensions or other
employee benefits earned in the
normal course of employment) for:

(i)That "employee"; or

(ii)Any person or organization
intended by the "employee" to
receive that benefit.

(2)EmployeeDishonesty Additional 
Coverages:

(a)We will pay for loss of Covered
Property arising out of a Covered

Form SS 04 42 0317 
© 2017, The Hartlord 

Cause of Loss caused by any 
"employee" while temporarily 
outside the Coverage Territory for a 
period of not more than 90 days. 

(b)We will pay for any loss of Covered
Property arising out of a Covered
Cause of Loss caused by your
"employee" while at the premises of
your client or customer.

Any claim for loss sustained by any
client or customer and covered by
this policy may only be made by you
in your Proof of Loss. No third party
has a direct right against this
insurance and no third party may
make a direct claim against us as
the writer of your insurance.

(3)Coverage under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, as amended ("ERISA")

(a)We will pay for loss of, and loss
from damage to, Covered Property
resulting directly from the Covered
Causes of Loss.

Covered Property, solely as
applicable to ERISA coverage,
means the funds or other property
of any employee pension benefit
plan or employee welfare benefit
plan that:

(i)Is subject to (and not exempt
from) the bond requirement set
forth in Section 412 of ERISA,
and

(ii)You establish and maintain for
your employees ( a "Plan")

and which is not otherwise 
excluded. 

Covered Causes of Loss, solely as 
applicable to ERISA coverage, 

Page 1 of 3 

127

:t 



Page 2 of 3 

means an act of fraud or dishonesty 
committed by an "employee", 
except you, whether identified or 
not, acting alone or in collusion with 
other persons, that results in a loss 
to a Plan of funds or other property 
which is used or may be used to 
pay benefits under the Plan. 
"Covered Causes of Loss" does not 
include investment losses or any 
other loss resulting from a breach of 
fiduciary duty under ERISA or a 
prohibited transaction as defined by 
ERISA and for which coverage is 
not required by Section 412 of 
ERISA. 

(b) Welfare and Pension Plan ERISA
Compliance

In compliance with certain
provisions of the ERISA:

(i) For the purposes of this
insurance, the Plans you
establish and maintain for the
benefit of your employees shall
be Named Insureds under this
Employee Dishonesty
Coverage.

(ii) "Employee" includes any
natural person you employ and
any owner, officer, trustee or
director of your company who
"handles" the funds or other
property of the Plan (as defined
in 29 C.F.R. 2580.412-6)
including, but not limited to, the
Plan Administrator. "Employee"
does not include any third party
(including but not limited to a
broker, independent contractor,
record keeper, payroll provider,
trustee or other fiduciary) who
provides services to you or to a
Plan.

(iii) If any Plan is insured jointly with
any other entity under this
insurance, you or the Plan
Administrator must select a
Limit of Insurance under this
Employee Dishonesty Coverage
Form that is sufficient to provide
an amount of insurance for
each Plan that is at least equal
to that required if each Plan
were separately insured.

(iv) If the insured first named in the
Declarations is an entity other
than a Plan, any payment we
make to that insured for loss
sustained by any Plan must be

paid promptly into such plan for 
the use and benefit of the 
Plan(s) sustaining the loss. 

(v) If two or more Plans are insured
under this insurance, any
payment we make for loss
either sustained by two or more
plans, or of commingled funds
or other property of two or more
Plans that arises out of one
occurrence, is to be shared by
each Plan sustaining loss in the
proportion that the amount of
insurance required for each
such Plan under ERISA
provisions bears to the total of
those amounts.

(4) Theft Limitation Exception

Limitation A.4.c., of the Special Property
Coverage Form does not apply to
coverage provided by this endorsement.

(5) Additional Exclusions

(a) Employee Terminated Under
Prior Insurance

We will not pay for loss caused by
any "employee" of yours, or
predecessor in interest of yours, for
whom similar prior insurance has
been terminated and not reinstated
since the last such termination.

(b) Insurance Operations

We will not pay for direct or indirect
loss resulting from contractual or
extra-contractual liability sustained
by you in connection with the
issuance of contracts or purported
contracts of insurance, indemnity or'
suretyship.

(c) Inventory Shortages

We will not pay loss, or that part of
any loss, the proof of which as to its
existence or amount is dependent
upon:

(i) An inventory computation; or

(ii) A profit and loss computation.

( d) Partners

We will pay only for loss caused by
any partner or member of a limited
liability corporation that is in excess
of the sum of:

(i) Any amounts you owe that
partner or member; and 

(ii) The value of that partner's or 
member's ownership interest
determined by the closing of.

Form SS 04 42 0317 
128



you organization's books on the 
date of discovery of the loss by 
anyone in your organization not 
involved in the Employee 
Dishonesty; and 

(iii) Any applicable deductible 
amount. 

(e) Trading Loss

We will not pay for loss resulting
directly or indirectly from trading,
whether in your name or in a
genuine or fictitious account if such
loss does not result from dishonesty
or fraud.

(6) Additional Conditions

(a) Termination As To Any
11Employee 11 

This insurance is terminated as to
any "employee":

(i) Immediately upon discovery by
you, or any of your partners,
officers or directors not in
collusion with the "employee", of
any dishonest or fraudulent act
committed by that "employee"
whether before or after
becoming employed by you; or 

(ii) On the date specified in a notice
mailed to you. That date will be
at least 30 days after the date of
mailing.

Form SS 04 42 0317 

The mailing of notice to you at
the last mailing address known
to us will be sufficient proof of
notice. Delivery of notice is the
same as mailing.

(7) Limit of Insurance

The most we will pay for each
occurrence of loss under this Additional
Coverage is the Employee Dishonesty
Limit of Insurance stated in the
Declarations.

(8) Deductible

We will not pay for loss in any one
occurrence unless the amount of loss
exceeds the Deductible shown
Paragraph D.5. the Special Property
Coverage Form, unless a separate
Deductible for Employee Dishonesty
applies and is stated in the
Declarations. We will then pay the
amount of the loss in excess of the
Deductible, up to the Limit of Insurance.

No deductible applies to the coverage 
granted in Paragraph A.1.(3) of this 
endorsement. 

(9) Occurrence Definition

As used in this Additional Coverage,
occurrence means all loss caused by, or
involving, one or more "employees",
whether the result of a single act or
series of acts.

Page 3 of 3 
129

r 
I 
I 
I 



X 
THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

BUILDING LIMIT- AUTOMATIC INCREASE REVISION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

SPECIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM 
STANDARD PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM 

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the 
terms and conditions of the policy apply to the insurance 
stated below. 
A. Paragraph C.5 Building Limit-Automatic Increase

of the SPECIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM or
STANDARD PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM is
deleted.

B. The following is added to Additional Coverages,
paragraph A.5 of the SPECIAL PROPERTY
COVERAGE FORM or paragraph A.4. of the
STANDARD PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM:

Building Limit - Automatic Increase

a. If the covered loss or damage to Building
property at a "scheduled premises" exceeds the
Limit of Insurance stated in the Declarations, the
Limit of Insurance available for the covered loss
or damage in that occurrence will automatically
increase by up to 8%.

b. The amount of increase will be:

(1) The Limit of Insurance for Buildings that
applied on the most recent of the policy
inception date, policy anniversary date, or
the date of any other policy change
amending the Building limit, multiplied by

(2) The 8% annualized percentage of Automatic
Increase, expressed as a decimal

(08), multiplied by 

Form SS 41 51 10 09 

(3) The number of days since the beginning of
the current policy year or the effective date
of the most recent policy change amending
the Limit of Insurance for Buildings, divided
by 365.

Example: 

The applicable Limit of Insurance for Buildings is 
$100,000. The automatic increase percentage is 
8%. The number of days since the beginning of 
the policy period (or last policy change) is 146. 

The amount of increase is: 

$100,000 X .08 X 146 divided by 365 = $3,200 

Page 1 of 1 

© 2009, The Hartford 
130



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

EXCLUSION -UNMANNED AIRCRAFT (LIABILITY) 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the 
terms and conditions of the policy apply to the insurance 
stated below. 

A.The following changes are made to Section B.1.,
EXCLUSIONS:

1.Paragraph g., Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft, is
deleted and replaced with the following:

g.Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft

(1)Unmanned Aircraft

"Bodily injury" or "property damage"
arising out of the ownership,
maintenance, use or entrustment to
others of any aircraft that is an
"unmanned aircraft". Use includes
operation and "loading or unloading".

This Paragraph g.(1) applies even ii the
claims against any insured allege
negligence or other wrongdoing in the
supervision, hiring, employment, training
or monitoring of others by that insured, ii
the "occurrence" which caused the
"bodily injury" or "property damage"
involved the ownership, maintenance,
use or entrustment to others of any
aircraft that is an "unmanned aircraft".

(2)Aircraft (Other Than Unmanned
Aircraft), Auto Or Watercraft

"Bodily injury" or "property damage"
arising out of the ownership,
maintenance, use or entrustment to
others of any aircraft (other than
"unmanned aircraft), 11auto

11 

or watercraft
owned or operated by or rented or
loaned to any insured. Use includes
operation and "loading or unloading:'.

This Paragraph g.(2) applies even ii the
claims against any insured allege
negligence or other wrongdoing in the
supervision, hiring, employment, training
or monitoring of others by that insured, ii
the "occurrence" which caused the "bodily
injury'' or "property damage" involved the
ownership, maintenance, use or

Form 55 5110 0317 

entrustment to others of any aircraft (other 
than "unmanned aircraft), "auto' or 
watercraft that is owned or operated by or 
rented or loaned to any insured. 

Paragraph g.(2) does not apply to: 

(a)A watercraft while ashore on
premises you own or rent;

(b)A watercraft you do not own that is:

(i)Less than 51 feet long; and

(ii)Not being used to carry persons
for a charge;

(c)Parking an "auto" on, or on the
ways next to, premises you own or
rent, provided the "auto" is not
owned by or rented or loaned to you
or the insured;

(d)Liability assumed under any
"insured contract" for the ownership,
maintenance or use of aircraft or
watercraft;

(e)"Bodily injury" or "property damage"
arising out of the operation of any of
the equipment listed in Section G
Liability and Medical Expenses
Definitions, Paragraph 15 f.(2) or
f.(3) of the definition of "mobile
equipment"; or

(f)An aircraft (other than unmanned
aircraft) that is not owned by any
insured and is hired, chartered or
loaned with a paid crew. However,
this exception does not apply ii the
insured has any other insurance for
such "bodily injury" or "property
damage", whether the other
insurance is primary, excess,
contingent or on any other basis.

2. The following is added to Section B.1.,
EXCLUSIONS Paragraph p., Personal and
Advertising Injury:

Arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use
or entrustment to others of any aircraft that is an
"unmanned aircraft". Use includes operation and
"loading or unloading".

Page 1 of 2 
131

:t 



This exclusion applies even if the claims against 
any insured allege negligence or other 
wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring, 
employment, training or monitoring of others by 
that insured, if the offense which caused the 
"personal and advertising injury" involved the 
ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to 
others of any aircraft that is an "unmanned 
aircraft

11

• 

However, this exclusion does not apply if the 
only allegation in the claim or "suit" involves an 
intellectual property right which is Jim ited to: 

(a) Infringement, in your "advertisement", of:

(i) Copyright;

(ii) Slogan; or

(iii) Title of any literary or artistic work; or

(b) Copying, in your "advertisement", a person's
or organization's "advertising idea" or style
of "advertisement".

Page 2 of 2 

B. The following changes apply to
LIABILITY AND MEDICAL
DEFINITIONS:

1. The following definition is added:

Section G. 
EXPENSES 

"Unmanned aircraft" means an aircraft that is
not:

a. Designed;

b. Manufactured; or

c. Modified after manufacture

to be controlled directly by a person from within 
or on the aircraft. 

Form SS 5110 0317 
132



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

EXCLUSION - UNMANNED AIRCRAFT (PROPERTY) 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

SPECIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM 

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the 
terms and conditions of the policy apply to the insurance 
stated below. 

A. COVERAGE

Paragraph A.2., Property Not Covered,
Subparagraph a. is deleted and replaced with the
following:

a. Aircraft (including "unmanned aircraft"),
automobiles, motor trucks and other
vehicles subject to motor vehicle
registration.

C. DEFINITIONS

The following changes are made to Section G.,
PROPERTY DEFINITIONS:

1. The following definition is added:

"Unmanned aircraft" means an aircraft that is
not:

a. Designed;

b. Manufactured; or

c. Modified after manufacture

Form SS 5111 0317 

to be controlled directly by a person from within 
or on the aircraft and which is owned by you or 
owned by others but in your care, custody, or 
control. 

"Unmanned aircraft" includes equipment 
designed for and used exclusively with the 
"unmanned aircraft", provided such equipment is 
essential for operation of the "unmanned 
aircraft" or for executing "unmanned aircraft 
operations 11

• 

2. The following definition is added:

"Unmanned aircraft operations" means your
business activities in support of the specific
operations listed in the Description of Business
section of the Declarations.

Page 1 of 1 
133



POLICY NUMBER: 65 SBA NN6521 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - PERSON-ORGANIZATION 

TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE 
P.O. BOX 12873 
AUSTIN, TX 78711 

Form IH 12 00 11 85 T SEQ. NO. o 02 Printed in U.S.A. Page o o 1 
Process Date: 10/25/17 Expiration Date: 01/09/19 

134



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY, OFFICE OF FOREIGN ASSETS 
CONTROL ("OFAC") ADVISORY NOTICE TO POLICYHOLDERS 

No coverage is provided by this Policyholder Notice nor can it be construed to replace any provisions of your 
policy. You should read your policy and review your Declarations page for complete information on the 
coverages you are provided. 

This Notice provides information concerning possible impact on your insurance coverage due to directives 
issued by the United States. Please read this Notice carefully. 

The Office of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC") of the U.S. Department of the Treasury administers and 
enforces economic and trade sanctions based on U.S. foreign policy and national security goals against 
targeted foreign countries and regimes, terrorists, international narcotics traffickers, those engaged in activities 
related to the proliferation of weapons of mass destruction, and other threats to the national security, foreign 
policy or economy of the United States. OFAC acts under Presidential national emergency powers, as well as 
authority granted by specific legislation, to impose controls on transactions and freeze assets under U.S. 
jurisdiction. OFAC publishes a list of individuals and companies owned or controlled by, or acting for or on 
behalf of, targeted countries. It also lists individuals, groups, and entities, such as terrorists and narcotics 
traffickers designated under programs that are not country-specific. Collectively, such individuals and 
companies are called "Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons" or "SDNs". Their assets are 
blocked and U.S. persons are generally prohibited from dealing with them. This list can be located on OFAC's 
web site at- http//www.treas.gov/ofac. 

In accordance with OFAC regulations, if it is determined that you or any other insured, or any person or entity 
claiming the benefits of this insurance has violated U.S. sanctions law or is an SON, as identified by OFAC, the 
policy is a blocked contract and all dealings with it must involve OFAC. When an insurance policy is 
considered to be such a blocked or frozen contract, no payments nor premium refunds may be made without 
authorization from OFAC. 

Form IH 99 40 04 09 Page 1 of 1 

135

THEX 
HARTFORD 



Named Insured: 

Policy Number: 

Effective Date: 

LANGFORD COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT 

65 SBA NN6521 

01/09/18 Expiration Date: 01/ 09 /19 

Company Name: HARTFORD LLOYDS INSURANCE COMPANY 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

TRADE OR ECONOMIC SANCTIONS ENDORSEMENT 

This insurance does not apply to the extent that trade or economic sanctions or other laws or regulations 
prohibit us from providing insurance, including, but not limited to, the payment of claims. 

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

Form IH 99 41 04 09 Page 1 of 1 

136



REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS (CONTRACTS USING FEDERAL FUNDS) 
Italics – Explanatory; NOT CONTRACT LANGUAGE 

THRESHOLD PROVISION CITATION 

None 

H) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and  12689)-A contract  award (see 2
CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties  listed  on  the  government-wide Excluded Parties
List System in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMS guidelines
at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR Part 1986 Camp., p. 189) and 12689
(3 CFR Part 1989 Camp.,  p,  235),  "Debarment  and  Suspension."   SAM Exclusions   contains
the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties
declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

2 CFR 200 
APPENDIX II (H) 

None 

Grantees or subgrantees must retain all required records for three years after grantees or 
subgrantees make final payments and all other pending matters are closed. 

2 CFR 200.333 
(former 24 CFR 
(85.36(i) {11)) 

>$10,000 

B) All contracts in excess of $10, 000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by

the non-• Federal entity including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for

settlement.

Termination for Cause: 

If the Contractor fails to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this 
Agreement, or if the Contractor violates any of the covenants, conditions, agreements, or 
stipulations of this Agreement. The City/County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 
by giving written notice to the Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date 
thereof, which shall be at least five days before the effective date of such termination. In the 
event of termination for cause, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, 
drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by the Contractor pursuant to this 
Agreement shall, at the option of the City/County, be turned over to the City/County and 
become the property of the City/County. In the event of termination for cause, the Contractor 
shall be entitled to receive reasonable compensation for any necessary services actually and 
satisfactorily performed prior to the date of termination. 

Notwithstanding the above. The Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the City/County 
for damages sustained by the City/County by virtue of any breach of contract by the Contractor, 
and the City/County may set-off the damages it incurred as a result of the Contractor's breach of 
contract from any amounts it might otherwise owe the Contractor. 

Termination for Convenience of the City/County: 
City/County may at any time and for any reason terminate Contractor 's services and work at 
City/County's convenience upon providing written notice to the Contractor specifying the extent 
of termination and the effective date. Upon receipt of such notice, Contractor shall, unless the 
notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue the work and placing of orders for materials, 
facilities and supplies in connection with the performance of this Agreement. 

Upon such termination, Contractor shall be entitled to payment only as follows: (1) the actual 
cost of the work completed in conformity with this Agreement; plus, (2) such other costs actually 
incurred by Contractor as are permitted by the prime contract and approved by City/County; (3) 
plus  ten  percent  (10%)  of  the  cost  of  the  work  referred  to  in  subparagraph  (1)  above  for 
overhead and profit. There shall be deducted from such sums as provided in this subparagraph 
the amount of any payments made to Contractor prior to the date of the termination of this 
Agreement. Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim or claim of lien against City/County for 
any additional compensation or damages in the event of such termination and payment. 

2 CFR 2:00 
APPENDIX ll (B) 

Attachment F
Page 1 of 5

137



>$50,000 

(A) Contracts for more than $50,000 must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies
in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms and provide for such sanctions
and penalties as appropriate.

Use the following language for contracts > $50,000: 

Resolution of Program Non-compliance and Disallowed Costs: 
In the event of any dispute, claim, question, or disagreement 
- arising from or relating to this agreement, or the breach thereof, including determination of
responsibility for any costs disallowed as a result of non-compliance with federal, state or
TxCDBG program requirements, the parties hereto shall use their best efforts to settle the
dispute, claim, question or disagreement. To this effect, the parties shall consult and negotiate
with each other in good faith within 30 days of receipt of a written notice of the dispute or
invitation to negotiate and attempt to reach a just and equitable solution satisfactory to both
parties. If the matter IS not resolved by negotiation within 30 days of receipt of written
notice or invitation to negotiate, the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the matter by
mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Commercial
Mediation Procedures before resorting to arbitration, litigation, or some other dispute
resolution procedure. The parties may enter into a written amendment to this Agreement and
choose a mediator that is not affiliated with the American Arbitration Association. The parties
shall bear the costs of such mediation equally.

2 CFR 200 
APPENDIX II (A) 

Equal Opportunity Clause for Construction Contracts > $10K, including 
administration & engineering contracts associated with construction contracts. 

>$10,000 

2 CFR 200 Appendix II (C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 
41 CFR Part 60 all contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract” 
in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the Equal Opportunity. Clause provided under 41 CFR 60- 
1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 
12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part. 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, 
"Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity, "and 
implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, 
Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” 

§60-1.4(b) Equal opportunity clause:

(b) Federally assisted construction contracts. Except as otherwise provided, each administering
agency shall require the inclusion of the following language as a condition of any grant, contract.
loan, insurance, or guarantee involving federally assisted construction which is not exempt from
the requirements of the equal opportunity clause:

The applicant hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract 
for construction work, or modification thereof, as defined in the regulations of the Secretary of 
Labor at 41 CFR chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the 
Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a grant 
contract, loan insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any Federal program involving 
such grant, contract loan, insurance, or guarantee, the following equal opportunity clause: 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.
The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be
limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation;
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in
conspicuous places. Available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be
provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

41 CFR §60-1.4 (b) 
and 2 CFR 200 

APPENDIX II (C) 

Attachment F
Page 2 of 5

138



(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,
or national origin.

(3) The Contractor will not discourage or in any other manner discriminate against any
employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired
about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another
employee or applicant. This Provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee
who has access to the compensation information of other employees or  applicants  as  a
part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other
employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such
information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in
furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation
conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish
information.

(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has
a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be
provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's
commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places
available to employees and applicants for employment.

(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246
of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the
administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain
compliance with such rules, regulations and orders.

(7) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled ,
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible
for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance
with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such
other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or
as otherwise provided by law.

(8) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence Immediately preceding paragraph
(1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order
unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant
to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions
will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action
with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as
a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided,
however. That in the event a contractor becomes involved in. or is threatened with litigation
with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency the
contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests
of the United States.

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause 
with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted 
construction work: Provided, That if the applicant so participating is a State or local 
government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, 
instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on 
or under the contract.

The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency 
and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors 
with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations. and relevant

Attachment F
Page 3 of 5

139



orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the 
Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such 
compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of 
the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance. 

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract 
modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24 , 1965, with a contractor 
debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and 
federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive order and will carry out 
such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be 
imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the 
Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive order . In addition, the 
applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings. the 
administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or 
suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan. insurance. guarantee); refrain from 
extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which 
the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been 
received from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for 
appropriate legal proceedings. 

(c) Subcontracts. Each nonexempt prime contractor or subcontractor shall include the equal
opportunity clause in each of its nonexempt subcontracts.

(d) Incorporation by reference. The equal opportunity clause may be incorporated by reference
in all Government contracts and subcontracts, including Government bills of lading,
transportation requests, contracts for deposit of Government funds, and contracts for issuing
and paying U.S. savings bonds and notes, and such other contracts and subcontracts as the
Deputy Assistant Secretary may designate.

(e) Incorporation by operation of the order. By operation of the order, the equal opportunity
clause shall be considered to be a part of every contract and subcontract required by the order
and the regulations in this part to include such a clause whether or not it is physically
incorporated in such contracts and whether or not the contract between the agency and the
contractor is written

(f) Adaptation of language. Such necessary changes in language may be made in the equal
opportunity clause as shall be appropriate to identify properly the parties and their
undertakings.

[43 FR 49240, Oct. 20, 1978, as amended at 62 FR 66971, Dec. 22, 1997; 79 FR 72993, Dec. 9, 
2014; 80 FR 54934, September 11. 2015] 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

>$2,000 for 
Davis Bacon 

and Copeland 
"Anti- 

Kickback" 
Act; 

>$100,000 
for 

Contract 
Work Hours 
and Safety 

Standards Act 

Federal labor standards provisions include: 

1. Davis Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141 et seq) as supplemented by DOL regulations (29 CFR
part 5);

2. Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of

Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3): and

3. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701 et seq)

Attachment F
Page 4 of 5

140



>$2,000 

Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141 et seq.) as supplemented by Department of 
Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5) and with the Copeland Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874: 40 
U.S.C. 3145) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 3) 

(D) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program
legislation. All prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities
must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144 and 3146-
3148 as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations {29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards
Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In
accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and
mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made
by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than
once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage
determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a
contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination.
The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding
agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland ''Anti-
Kickback " Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations {29 CFR
Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or
in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or sub
recipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the
construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to
which he or she is otherwise entitled.  The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or
reported violations to the Federal awarding agency

2 CFR 200 
APPENDIX II (D) 

>$100,000 

(E) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C.  1352) - Contractors that apply or bid for an award
of $100,000 or more must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it
will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any
Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose
any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal
award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award.

2 CFR 200 
APPENDIX II (I) and 

24 CFR §570.303 

>$100,000 

(F) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all

contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment

of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704,

as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of

the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer

on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is

permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half

times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The

requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer

or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are

unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of

supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for

transportation or transmission of intelligence.

2 CFR 200 
APPENDIX II (E) 

>$150,000 

(G) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C.

1251-1387), as amended-Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must

contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable

standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and

the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C 1251- 1387). Violations must be

reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental

Protection Agency (EPA).

2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II 
(G)

Attachment F
Page 5 of 5

141



Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Langford Community Management Services
Leander, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

3

Langford Community Management Services, INC

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a 
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

Wimberley 2015 CDBG-DR
Grant Administrative Services

Certificate Number: 
2020-606465

Date Filed:
05/17/2018

Date Acknowledged:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Hardin, Margaret XLeander, TX United States

Langford, Judy XLeander, TX United States

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V1.1.3a6aaf7dwww.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

Judy Langford 12/25/60

2901 CR 175 Leander TX 78641 USA

Williamson Texas 17 May 18

142

□ 

~~d~ 



 
 
 
 
Lift Station (RR12 @ FM 3237) 
 
All trenching on FM 3237 is complete. Two manholes and individual customer 
connections have been installed which includes the trailer park and the 
Wimberley Inn. 
 
Collection Lines 
All collection lines and customer connections have been installed on Oldham 
Rd.  
 
Individual customer connection on RR12 have been installed. 
Capital Excavation will work nights this week to finish paving on the square.  
 
Force main installation in Blue Hole Park is still scheduled the end of August. 

 
 
 
Coordination 
Our engineers with Plummer and Associates are still working with TXDOT to 
get approval of the project north of Cypress Creek so we can go out for bids.  
 
 
Reed Smith with TXDOT is considering a waiver on the casing of the line that 
will cross under FM2325 which would save us time and money. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Property/Business Owners 
Any property or business owners who would like to meet with the City, please reach out to the City of 
Wimberley for an update on the status of the project.       
 
As we did previously, the City and Capital Excavation will work with each property owner to determine 
the best location for their connection to the system.  Historically, this involved going door to door to 
contact the resident or property owner.  We will also utilize written notices to contact those we are unable 

Construction 

Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) 

TxDOT 

Communication 

143



to meet face to face.  This will involve a notice at the property (typically on the front door) which will 
provide a time frame for construction and contact information for the contracts and City.  If you think we 
may miss anyone, please have them contact the city.  We will make sure they are included in the project’s 
coordination.  
 
 
 
 
An updated schedule chart has been put together by Gilpin Engineering.  Included in the chart is the 
construction schedule provided by Capital Excavation and the design/review schedule from Plummer 
Associates. 
 

Construction 
Component Start Completion 

Collection Lines (CO#4) February 2020 August 2020 
- Gravity Lines (RR12) May 2020 Completed June 2020 
- Gravity Lines (FM 3237) June 2020 Completed August 2020 
- Force Main (Deer Creek/Blue Hole) Aug 2020 September 2020 
- Lift Station July 2020 August 2020 

Collection Lines (Aqua Connection) Sept 2020 November2020 
- Design Force Main February 21, 2020 June 2020 
- Connection to Cypress Creek Bridge Aug 2020 Aug 2020 

- Force Main (RR12-Directional Drill) Pending Review from 
TxDOT 

2-3 Months from 
Awarded Contract 

- Tie in to HEB Lift Station Oct 2020 November 2020 
Contract 

Negotiate Aqua Contract August 2018 Signed April 2020 
Other 

Update Sewer Utility Rates August 2020 November 2020 
Impact Fees TBD TBD 
Utility Billing January 2021 June 2021 

 

Schedule 

144



 

145



 

146


	Cover Page
	City Council Agenda 08-20-2020 (Reg)
	6.1. Oak Drive Presentation
	6.2. Wayfinding Signage Presentation
	7. Consent Agenda
	7.1. City Council Minutes 08-06-2020 (Reg)
	7.2. Noland Martin Application 08-13-2020
	7.3. Buck Baccus Application 08-07-2020
	7.4. Matt Buchanan Application 08-02-2020
	7.5. Stephen Klepfer Application 08-13-2020
	7.6. Chris Oddo Application 08-05-2020
	7.7. Russell Whisler Application 08-12-2020

	9.1. ZA-20-002 - Staff Report
	Ord 2020-17 (Rezone 100 Oak Dr.).pdf

	9.2. CUP-20-004 - Staff Report
	Ord 2020-18 (CUP-Bar-Tavern - 100 Oak Dr.).pdf

	9.3. Ordinance No. 2020-22 - C-3 Amendment
	10.1. Amendment No. 1 - Grant Administration Services
	Complete_Wimberley_2015 CDBG-DR_Admin_Contract

	10.2. Central Wimberley Wastewater Project Status Update


	Name: Noland H. Martin
	Employer: Texas State University
	PositionOccupation: Professor
	Business Number: 512-245-3317
	Fax: n/a
	If Yes please explain 1: ** I don't believe so. I am unaware of the extent  of Texas State University's contracts and contractual obligations. 
	If Yes please explain 2: However, I am not personally or professionally involved in any grants, contracts, or obligations with the City of Wimberley. 
	Please describe any qualifications expertise credentials or special interests that relate to your possible appointment If you are not responding to a specific advertisement please indicate the BoardCommissionCommittee that you would prefer to serve on Attach a separate sheet if necessary: * Founding board member of the Ellerbe Creek Watershed Association in Durham, NC  (https://www.ellerbecreek.org/) - "... a nonprofit working to restore a healthy, living creek that connects people and nature in Durham [and that manages] five nature preserves for public recreation, water quality, and native plant and habitat restoration."* Director of Texas State MS Program in Population and Conservation Biology (https://www.bio.txstate.edu/Graduate-Programs/M.S.PopulationConservationBiology.html)* Teach BIO 4319: Biological Resources: Conservation and Planning. 
	Text1: Parks and Recreation Board
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Yes
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Yes
	Check Box11: Off
	Signature12_es_:signer:signature: 
	Date14_es_:signer:date: 13 August, 2020
	Check Box17: Yes
	Check Box18: Off


